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MANAGEMENT REPORT
PACIFIC LIFE FUNDING, LLC
Background

Pacific Life Funding, LLC (“PLF") is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on January 23, 1998 pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The only business activity of PLF is to issue debt instruments and to purchase funding agreements from
Pacific Life. The indentures governing the terms of the instruments issued by PLF prohibit PLF from
engaging in any other business activity. PLF has not issued any instruments or purchased any funding
agreements since 2005. Between its organization in 1998 and 2005, PLF issued $5,813 million in
aggregate principal amount of instruments, of which $1,751 million aggregate principal amount remained
outstanding as of December 31, 2009. PLF issued these instruments in a variety of currencies and with
maturities that varied from one to 20 years both to institutional investors in a variety of jurisdictions and to
retail investors in the United Kingdom, The Netherlands, Germany and Switzerland.

PLF’'s principal assets are funding agreements issued by Pacific Life. Each outstanding series of
instruments issued by PLF is secured by one or more funding agreements. No instruments of a series
have any right to receive payments under a funding agreement related to any other series of instruments.
Accordingly, PLF is only able to make timely payments with respect to a series of instruments if Pacific
Life has made all required payments under the funding agreements securing such series of instruments.
Because PLF’s ability to satisfy its obligations under a series of instruments depends upon Pacific Life’s
performance under the related funding agreements, this Annual Report includes detailed information
regarding Pacific Life. See “Pacific Life Insurance Company” below.

The obligations of PLF evidenced by the instruments are not obligations of, and are not guaranteed or
insured by, any other person, including, but not limited to, Pacific Life or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates. None of these entities nor any agent or trustee of PLF is under any obligation to provide funds
or capital to PLF, except for Pacific Life’s payment obligations under the funding agreements and an
agreement by Pacific Life to pay certain operating expenses of and fees to PLF. In addition, the
instruments do not benefit from any insurance guaranty fund coverage or similar protection.

Management

The directors of PLF are Ms. Dianne Scott and Mr. Martin Couch. Each of the directors is also an
employee of Maples Finance Limited. Maples Finance Limited acts as administrator to PLF (the
“Administrator”). The office of the Administrator serves as the general business office of PLF. Through
the office, and pursuant to the terms of an administration agreement between PLF and the Administrator,
the Administrator performs in the Cayman Islands various management functions on behalf of PLF,
including communications with shareholders and the general public, and the provision of certain clerical,
administrative and other services until termination of the administration agreement. The Administrator’'s
principal office is P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall, Cricket Square, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1102, Cayman Islands. There are currently no committees of the board of directors. There are currently
no existing or proposed service contracts between PLF or any subsidiary thereof and any of the directors
of PLF. The directors of PLF are not currently entitled to remuneration or benefits in kind from PLF and do
not currently hold any interests in the share capital of PLF.

Capitalization

The authorized share capital of PLF is US$50,000 divided into 50,000 ordinary shares of US$1.00 each,
1,000 of which have been issued. All of the issued shares of PLF are fully paid and are held by Maples
Finance Limited (the “Share Trustee”) under the terms of a Declaration of Trust dated April 15, 1998
(the “Declaration of Trust”) under which the Share Trustee holds the shares in trust. Under the terms of



the Declaration of Trust, so long as there are instruments outstanding, the Share Trustee may not sell or
otherwise deal with the shares except to a person previously approved in writing by the indenture trustee
for the instruments. It is not anticipated that any distribution will be made on the shares while any
instrument is outstanding. When all of the outstanding instruments have matured or otherwise been
redeemed, it is expected that the Share Trustee will wind up the trust and make a final distribution to
charity. The Share Trustee has no beneficial interest in, and derives no benefit (other than its fee for
acting as Share Trustee) from, its holding of the shares.

The following table presents PLF’s capitalization as of December 31, 2009 prepared in conformity with
GAAP. The information as of December 31, 2009 in this table is derived from the audited GAAP financial
statements of PLF as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007.

December 31,

2009
Debt:
ShOrt-term debt ......oooiiiiie i -
LONG-termM deDt..... e $1,751,425,632
TOtAI DEDL ... 1,751,425,632
Equity:
Paid-in CAPItal ....ccoeieeiiiii e 1,000
RetaiNed @arNiNgS .......uuuiiiieiiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e s s srrrer e e e e e s e nnnes 24,589
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME.........ccccccvveeeeiiiciiieeieeee s -
TOtAl EQUILY ...ttt ettt e e 25,589
Total capitaliZAtiON ......coiciiieieee e $1,751,451,221

Development of PLF's Business

Other than as described herein, there were no developments having a material effect on PLF or its
business during the year ended December 31, 2009. In addition, other than as described herein, there
have been no recent developments having a material effect on PLF or its business since December 31,
2009. As of the date of this Annual Report, there exists no condition or event that would constitute an
event of default under the terms of the instruments of PLF that are currently outstanding.

There are currently no indications that the business of PLF will change between the date of this report
and June 30, 2010.



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
Pacific Life Funding, LLC
The directors of PLF confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that:

. the financial statements of PLF included in this report were prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP and applicable law; and

. this report constitutes a review by PLF’'s management of the business and position of
PLF during the year ended December 31, 2009, and contains a fair review of that period.

Dated: April 29, 2010

/s/__Martin Couch
Martin Couch
Director

/s| _Dianne Scott
Dianne Scott
Director




PACIFIC LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
Selected Consolidated GAAP Financial Information of the Company

The following table sets forth selected consolidated GAAP financial information for the Company. You
should read it in conjunction with the sections of the Annual Report that follow and the Audited GAAP
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from such estimates. Additionally, the
results for past accounting periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any
future accounting period.

Effective December 31, 2009, Pacific LifeCorp, Pacific Life’s parent, contributed its 100% stock ownership
of Aviation Capital Group Corp. (“ACG") to Pacific Life. ACG is engaged in the acquisition and leasing of
commercial jet aircraft. The Audited GAAP Financial Statements included in this Annual Report have
been prepared by combining the previously separate financial statements of Pacific Life and ACG as if
the two entities had been combined as of the beginning of 2007, the first period presented in the Audited
GAAP Financial Statements. This retrospective treatment is prescribed by GAAP whenever a transfer
between entities under common control is effected.

The selected consolidated GAAP financial information for the Company as of December 31, 2009 and
2008 (other than “life insurance in force” and “employees” included in “Other Data”) and for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 has been derived from the Audited GAAP Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report. The selected consolidated GAAP financial information for the
Company as of December 31, 2007 (other than “life insurance in force” and “employees” included in
“Other Data”) has been derived from the Company’s audited GAAP consolidated financial statements not
included in this Annual Report and includes unaudited adjustments to give effect to the ACG transfer to
Pacific Life, since the audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007 were not
reissued for purposed of this Annual Report, and also reflect certain reclassifications for noncontrolling
interest (previously referred to as minority interest). These reclassifications are due to new guidance to
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification’s
(“Codification™) Consolidation Topic, which the Company adopted effective January 1, 2009.

Certain of the Company’s broker-dealer operations are classified as discontinued. Discontinued broker-
dealer operations do not include the operations of Pacific Select Distributors, Inc. (“PSD”), a wholly
owned broker-dealer subsidiary of Pacific Life, which primarily serves as the underwriter/distributor of
registered investment-related products and services, principally variable life and variable annuity
contracts issued by the Company, and mutual funds.

In March 2007, the Company initially classified its broker-dealer subsidiaries, other than PSD, as held for
sale. During 2007 and 2008, these broker-dealers were sold. For consistency, other financial data in this
Annual Report also classify the broker-dealer operations as discontinued operations.



Years Ended December 31,

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data: 2009 2008 2007
(in millions)

Revenues:
Policy fees and insurance premiums .................... $ 2,275 $ 1,997 $ 1,780
Net investment iNCOMEe...........occeveiiiieeeiiiieeee 1,862 1,994 2,120
Net realized investment 0SS .........cccccvviiiiiiienennn, (158) (1,329) (29)
Realized investment gain on interest in PIMCO ... - 109 -
Investment advisory fees .......ccccccviiiiiiine, 208 255 327
Aircraft leasing revenue ..........ccccceeeeeiniiiiiieeeeneenn, 578 571 535
Other INCOME.......cvieieieec e 137 167 147

TOtal FEVENUES. .....coi i 4,902 3,764 4,880

Benefits and Expenses:
Interest credited to policyholder account

DalanCes ......oovveiii 1,253 1,234 1,266
Policy benefits paid or provided .............cccueeeeeenn, 1,226 1,206 855
COMMISSION EXPENSES ....vvveriieeeeiiiiiieeeaae e e eiieeeens 691 715 690
Operating and other expenses.........cccccceeeeviuveeeen. 1,246 1,178 1,235
Total benefits and expenses.........cccccceeeviiiiiiieeneeen, 4,416 4,333 4,046
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

provision (benefit) for income taxes..........cccceeee..n. 486 (569) 834
Provision (benefit) for income taxes.........cccccceeeeennnee, 44 (315) 129
Income (loss) from continuing operations.................. 442 (254) 705
Noncontrolling interest .........ccccocveeeeieccciiieeeeee e, 14 3 (38)
Discontinued operations, net of taxes™.................... (20) (6) 11
Net iNCOME (I0SS) ...uveeveerieciieciieciee ettt $ 436 $ (257) $ 678

Discontinued operations primarily include the Company’'s broker-dealer operations. Discontinued
broker-dealer operations do not include the operations of PSD. In March 2007, the Company initially
classified its broker-dealer subsidiaries, other than PSD, as held for sale. During 2007 and 2008,
these broker-dealers were sold. For consistency, other financial data in this Annual Report also
classify the Company’s broker-dealer operations as discontinued operations.



Consolidated Statement of Financial
Condition Data:

Assets:

INVESTMENES .....ovvviiiiiiiiiii
Cash and cash equivalents..................
Restricted cash........ccooccviiieiiiiiinnn
Deferred policy acquisition costs.........
Aircraft leasing portfolio, net................
Other assets .......ooocvvveeeeieeiiiiiiieieeenn
Separate account assets..........ccoeeueeene
Total aSSetS ....cccvvvveeeree e

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:

Policyholder account balances............
Future policy benefits ......cccccceeevvnneee
Short-term debt.........ccccoeeeiiiiii.
Long-term debt ..o
Other liabilities .........c..oeeeeieeiiiiiee,
Separate account liabilities..................
Total liabilities.........ceeeeiiiiiie

Equity:
Common StOCK.........ceevrviiieiiiiiie e,
Paid-in capital ............cccccvvvieeeeeriiiinnne
Retained earnings ........cccccceeveeeveiiennnen
Accumulated other comprehensive

iNCOME (I0SS) ..vvvvvveeeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee

Total stockholder’s equity........................
Noncontrolling interest.............ooccvveeeeeen.
Total eqUItY ......cooviiiiiiiieee e
Total liabilities and equity ...........ccc.c.....

Other Data:

Life insurance in force......cccooeevveeeiivinnnnen.

Employees:

Continuing operations ..........cccccceeeennns
Discontinued operation®.....................

Total employees .........cceeeeiiiiiiiiieiinnnnnnne

December 31,

2009 2008 2007
($ in millions)

$ 41,410 $ 36,752 $ 40,417
1,919 3,397 694
221 227 234
4,806 5,012 4,481
5,304 4,999 4,655
2,253 3,276 1,794
52,564 41,505 57,605
$108,477 $ 95,168 $109,880
$ 33,984 $ 32,670 $ 32,017
7,403 9,841 6,025
105 150 100
5,632 4,459 4,471
1,872 1,863 2,418
52,564 41,505 57,605
101,560 90,488 102,636
30 30 30
982 782 781
6,037 5,426 6,028
(363) (1,802) 191
6,686 4,436 7,030
231 244 214
6,917 4,680 7,244
$108,477 $ 95,168 $109,880
$220,935 $220,822 $207,548
2,592 2,892 2,755
- - 234
2,592 2,892 2,989

Discontinued operations primarily include the Company’s broker-dealer operations. Discontinued
broker-dealer operations do not include the operations of PSD. In March 2007, the Company
initially classified its broker-dealer subsidiaries, other than PSD, as held for sale. During 2007 and
2008, these broker-dealers were sold. For consistency, other financial data in this Annual Report
also classify the Company’s broker-dealer operations as discontinued operations.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations of the Company

The following should be read in conjunction with the Selected Consolidated GAAP Financial Information
of the Company set forth above and the Audited GAAP Financial Statements included in this Annual
Report.

Background

Pacific Life was established in 1868 and is a Nebraska stock life insurance company that conducts
business in the District of Columbia and every state except the State of New York. Pacific Life is a direct,
wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific LifeCorp, a Delaware stock holding company. Pacific LifeCorp is a
direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific Mutual Holding Company (“PMHC”), a Nebraska mutual
insurance holding company. PMHC and Pacific LifeCorp were created in 1997 when Pacific Life
converted into a mutual insurance holding company structure. Under this mutual insurance holding
company structure, certain owners of insurance policies and annuity contracts (other than funding
agreements and certain other types of contracts) issued by Pacific Life are automatically members of
PMHC. Members of PMHC have the right to elect the directors of PMHC, to vote on other matters coming
to a vote of the members at annual and special meetings and to receive distributions of surplus in the
event of the dissolution or liquidation of PMHC. Under Nebraska law and the applicable organizational
and conversion documents, PMHC must at all times own at least 51% of the outstanding voting stock of
Pacific LifeCorp, and Pacific LifeCorp must at all times own all of the voting stock of Pacific Life.

Pacific Life transferred its legal domicile from the State of California to the State of Nebraska, effective
September 1, 2005. PMHC transferred its legal domicile from the State of California to the State of
Nebraska, effective June 29, 2007, in order to reunite PMHC and Pacific Life under one regulatory
authority. Pacific Life’s principal administrative offices are at 700 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach,
California, in a 285,000 square-foot office building it owns.

On December 31, 2009, Pacific LifeCorp contributed its 100% stock ownership of ACG to Pacific Life.
The Audited GAAP Financial Statements included in this Annual Report have been prepared by
combining the previously separate financial statements of Pacific Life and ACG as if the two entities had
been combined as of the beginning of 2007, the first period presented in the Audited GAAP Financial
Statements. This retrospective treatment is prescribed by GAAP whenever a transfer between entities
under common control is effected.

The Company’s primary business operations include (1) providing life insurance products, individual
annuities and mutual funds, (2) offering to individuals, businesses and pension plans a variety of
investment products and services, and (3) acquiring and leasing commercial aircraft. As of December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company had $108.5 billion, $95.2 billion and $109.9 billion, respectively, in
total assets, and total stockholder’'s equity of $6.7 billion, $4.4 billion and $7.0 billion, respectively. Life
insurance in force was $220.9 billion, $220.8 billion and $207.5 billion as of December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively. Net income (loss) was $436 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 as
compared to ($257) million for the year ended December 31, 2008 and $678 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

The following discusses the Company's primary operating segments: Life Insurance, Investment
Management, Annuities & Mutual Funds (* A&MF"), Aircraft Leasing and Corporate and Other, as well as
its principal subsidiaries and affiliates.



Segments

The Life Insurance segment provides a broad range of life insurance products through multiple
distribution channels operating in the upper income and corporate markets. Principal products include
universal life, variable universal life, survivor life, interest sensitive whole life, corporate owned life
insurance and traditional products such as whole life and term life. Distribution channels include regional
life offices, marketing organizations, broker-dealer firms, wirehouses and M Financial Group, an
association of independently owned and operated insurance and financial producers. As of December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, the Life Insurance segment represented 26%, 28% and 25% of the Company’s
total assets, respectively.

The Investment Management segment provides investment and insurance products to institutional
investors, pension fund sponsors and structured settlement annuitants. The segment’s principal products
include traditional guaranteed interest contracts (“GICs”), synthetic GICs, funding agreement-backed
notes issued to institutional investors via medium—term note programs or to the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB”) of Topeka, as well as group retirement annuities sold to pension plans and structured
settlement annuities issued in conjunction with personal injury awards. As of December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, the Investment Management segment represented 12%, 16% and 15% of the Company’s total
assets, respectively. Effective January 1, 2010, the Investment Management segment’s insurance
products, including institutional investment products, were moved into other segments of the Company.
Structured settlement and retirement annuities were moved to the A&MF segment and the other
institutional investment products became part of the Corporate and Other segment. Going forward, the
Investment Management segment will focus its strengths on managing the Company’s investment
portfolio.

The A&MF segment offers variable and fixed annuity products and mutual funds through multiple
distribution sources. Distribution channels include independent planners, financial institutions and
national/regional wirehouses. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the A&MF segment represented
53%, 48% and 52% of the Company’s total assets, respectively. Effective March 1, 2010, the A&MF
segment was renamed the Retirement Solutions segment.

The Aircraft Leasing segment encompasses the operations of ACG. This segment focuses primarily on
the commercial aircraft acquisition and operating lease market, while also providing brokerage and asset
management services to other third parties. Prior to December 31, 2009, ACG was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Pacific LifeCorp. On December 31, 2009, Pacific LifeCorp contributed its 100% stock
ownership in ACG to Pacific Life. The Aircraft Leasing segment’s portfolio included, as of December 31,
2009, 241 aircraft that were leased to various airline customers throughout the world. As of December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, the Aircraft Leasing segment represented 6%, 6% and 5% of the Company’s total
assets, respectively.

The Corporate and Other segment primarily includes investment income, expenses and assets not
attributable to the operating segments, and other subsidiaries not included elsewhere.

Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates

ACG, which was founded in 1989, comprises the Company’s Aircraft Leasing segment. ACG’s corporate
offices are located in Newport Beach, California. ACG also maintains offices in metropolitan New York,
Seattle, London (United Kingdom), Shanghai (China), Singapore, and Santiago (Chile). ACG’s business
is comprised of two basic components. The first component consists of long-term aviation investments in
owned aircraft, which ACG offers to its clients worldwide under operating leases. The second component
involves aircraft trading activities, brokerage services and third-party management advisory services. In
March 2010, Pacific Life made a cash capital contribution of $350 million to ACG.

Pacific Life & Annuity Company (“PL&A"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific Life, markets and
distributes variable universal life, structured settlement annuities, GICs, and variable annuities. PL&A is
licensed to sell certain of its products in the State of New York and currently sells variable universal life



insurance, term life insurance, variable annuity products and institutional products and services in New
York. Additionally, PL&A has been deemed to be commercially domiciled in the State of New York and
subject to certain requirements under New York insurance law that do not otherwise apply to New York-
licensed insurers domiciled outside New York.

PSD is a registered broker-dealer and the underwriter and wholesale distributor of certain of the
Company'’s investment-related products and services, principally variable life and annuity contracts and
retail mutual funds. Effective May 1, 2007, a service plan adopted by the Pacific Select Fund, the
investment vehicle provided to the Company’s variable life insurance policyholders and variable annuity
contract owners, went into effect whereby the fund pays PSD, as distributor of the fund, a service fee in
connection with services rendered or procured to or for shareholders of the fund or their variable contract
owners. These services may include, but are not limited to, payment of compensation to broker-dealers,
including PSD itself, and other financial institutions and organizations which assist in providing any of the
services.

Effective January 1, 2006, PSD distributed its ownership interests in its subsidiaries, including five broker-
dealer subsidiaries, and certain related activities to Pacific Life, which contributed them to Pacific Select
Group LLC (“PSG”). During the second quarter of 2007, Pacific Life formed a new wholly owned
subsidiary, Pacific Select LLC (“Pacific Select”), to which Pacific Life contributed its ownership in PSG.
In March 2007, the Company classified its broker-dealer subsidiaries, other than PSD, as held for sale.
During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, these broker-dealers were sold for an insignificant
pre-tax gain and a pre-tax gain of $53 million, respectively. The Pacific Select broker-dealers were
determined to be a discontinued operation and have been classified as such in the Audited GAAP
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.

Pacific Asset Holding LLC (“PAH"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific Life, holds certain other
investments, primarily private equity and real estate holdings. Until recently, PAH also held the
Company’s remaining beneficial economic interest in Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
(“PIMCQ").

As of December 31, 2007, the Company owned a beneficial economic interest in PIMCO. PIMCO offers
investment products through separately managed accounts and institutional, retail and offshore mutual
funds. The interest in PIMCO was reported at estimated fair value, as determined by a contractual put
and call option price, with changes in estimated fair value reported as a component of other
comprehensive income, net of taxes. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company exercised
a put option and sold all of its remaining interest in PIMCO to Allianz of America Inc., a subsidiary of
Allianz SE for $288 million and recognized a pre-tax gain of $109 million.

Pacific Life Fund Advisors LLC (“PLFA"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific Life formed in 2007,
serves as the investment adviser for the Pacific Select Fund, an investment vehicle provided to the
Company'’s variable life insurance policyholders and variable annuity contract owners, and the Pacific Life
Funds, the investment vehicle for the Company’s mutual fund products. Prior to May 1, 2007, Pacific Life
served in this capacity. PLFA charges advisory and other fees based primarily upon the net asset value of
the underlying portfolios.

Revenues and Expenses

The Company derives operating revenues from (1) premiums and policy fees on life and other insurance
products, (2) net investment income from general account assets, (3) asset management fees and
mortality and expense fees related to variable annuities and variable life insurance policies and (4) fees
for other services, including aircraft leasing revenue. Under GAAP, total premiums paid on guaranteed
premium policies are included in revenues with a corresponding expense for increases in policy reserves.
For universal life and investment-type products, amounts received from policyholders are considered
deposits and are not recorded as revenues, and increases in reserves are not shown as an expense.
Only the amounts deducted from policy values for mortality and expenses, as and when deducted, are
recorded as revenues on universal life and investment-type products.
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Operating earnings result primarily from (1) the spread between the rates earned on invested assets and
the rates credited to policyholders, (2) the fees earned on mortality and expense charges on variable
products and (3) investment advisory fees earned on separate account assets. Operating earnings are
affected by claims experience and the persistency of policies and their continuing premiums and the
investment markets. In addition, the Company seeks to increase earnings by carefully managing
operating expenses through its budgeting process, monitoring of expense recoveries and improvements
through the use of technology. Included in operating expenses are components such as salary and
wages, employee benefits, rent, professional services, depreciation and other sundry expenses.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2009 compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $436 million as compared to net loss of $257
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The increase was primarily due to a decrease in net
realized investment loss in 2009 of $1,171 million as compared to 2008. The primary reason for the
decrease in net realized investment loss was an $806 million increase in the positive mark-to-market of
certain embedded derivatives related to variable annuity guaranteed living benefits in the A&MF segment,
net of hedges and policy fees, in 2009 compared to 2008. Also contributing to the decrease in net
realized investment loss in 2009 were lower other than temporary impairments (“OTTI") of $311 million in
2009 compared to $580 million in 2008. These changes were partially offset by a pre-tax realized
investment gain of $109 million that was recorded in relation to the sale of the Company’s interest in
PIMCO during 2008.

Policy fees and insurance premiums in 2009 were $2,275 million compared to $1,997 million for 2008, an
increase of 14%. Policy fees consist of cost-of-insurance charges, expense loads, surrender charges and
other fees related to products. These fees increased in the Life Insurance segment primarily as a result of
an increase in amortization of unearned revenue and policy fee assessments. The Investment
Management segment also recorded increases to insurance premiums from increases in retirement
annuity sales and increases in structured settlement annuity sales. These increases were partially offset
by total policy fees that decreased in the A&MF segment primarily from lower contract fees from lower
average assets under management.

Net investment income decreased from $1,994 million in 2008 to $1,862 million in 2009, a decrease of
7%. The decrease in 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily related to lower returns from the private equity
portfolios, lower returns on equity real estate funds and other partnership returns, and lower investment
income from other investments.

Net realized investment loss for 2009 amounted to $158 million compared to $1,329 million for 2008, a
decrease of $1,171 million. The primary reason for the decrease in net realized investment loss was an
$806 million increase in the positive mark-to-market of certain embedded derivatives related to variable
annuity guaranteed living benefits in the A&MF segment, net of hedges and policy fees, in 2009
compared to 2008. Also contributing to the decrease in net realized investment loss in 2009 were lower
OTTI of $311 million in 2009 compared to $580 million in 2008.

Realized investment gain on the sale of the Company’s interest in PIMCO amounted to $109 million for
2008. See “Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates” above for a discussion of the Company’'s interest in
PIMCO.

Investment advisory fees decreased $47 million, or 18%, to $208 million in 2009 as compared to $255
million in 2008. This decrease was primarily attributable to lower average assets under management in
the separate accounts during 2009 as compared to 2008. This decrease in average separate account
assets was primarily the result of the impact of a significant drop in the equity markets during the recent
financial market turmoil. See “Assets” below for further discussion of the changes in separate account
assets.
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Aircraft leasing revenue increased $7 million to $578 million in 2009 as compared to $571 million in 2008.
This increase of $7 million was primarily the result of aircraft purchased after January 1, 2008, which
earned revenue during the entire 2009 year as compared to no or partial earned revenue for 2008. This
was offset by decreases in certain lease rates due to periodic interest rate index-based adjustments.

Other income decreased $30 million, or 18%, to $137 million in 2009 as compared to $167 million in
2008. The decrease in other income was primarily related to a decrease in the fees earned by PSD in
connection with the Pacific Select Fund service plan. These fees are asset-based fees that are calculated
on separate account assets and decreased primarily due to lower average separate account assets
during 2009 compared to 2008. See “Assets” below for further discussion of the changes in separate
account assets and “Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates” above for a discussion of PSD and the Pacific
Select Fund service plan.

Interest credited to policyholder account balances increased slightly to $1,253 million for 2009 as
compared to $1,234 million in 2008. This includes interest credited on the universal life and annuities
products and on floating rate institutional investment products. This slight increase in interest credited to
policyholder account balances was the result of an increase in policyholder account values in the Life
Insurance segment and an increase in average fixed account balances in the A&MF segment. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease in the Investment Management segment’s institutional
investment products from maturing funding agreements, which decrease was partially offset by lower
gains on the repurchase of funding agreements in 2009 as compared to 2008.

Policy benefits paid or provided increased $20 million, or 2%, to $1,226 million for 2009 as compared to
$1,206 million for 2008. This increase was mainly attributable to the Investment Management segment,
which also experienced a corresponding increase in insurance premiums as described above. In addition,
there was an increase in benefits in the A&MF segment due to higher death benefit payments. This
increase was slightly offset by a decrease in benefits paid by the Life Insurance segment due to lower
mortality.

Commission expenses decreased $24 million, or 3%, to $691 million for 2009 as compared to $715
million for 2008. Commission expenses include components of deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”) and
vary with the level of sales by business segment due to the mix of products. The decrease in 2009 versus
2008 was due to lower DAC amortization of commission expenses in the A&MF segment, mostly offset by
higher DAC amortization resulting from the annual unlocking process and model revisions in the Life
Insurance segment for 2009 as compared to 2008.

Operating and other expenses for 2009 increased $68 million, or 6%, to $1,246 million as compared to
$1,178 million in 2008. The Corporate and Other segment’s operating expenses increased $73 million
principally due to the termination of the Company’s defined benefit pension plan and the payment of plan
benefits to the participants, which occurred in the fourth quarter of 2009. Operating expenses include
components of DAC; the amortization of DAC, which directly affects operating expenses, is dependent on
various factors that affect future gross profits by business segment. For most products, DAC amortization
represents a percentage of gross profits. In addition, the increase in operating expenses was due to
increased DAC amortization from the Life Insurance segment partially offset by A&MF segment’s lower
DAC amortization and a general reduction of other operating expenses. Also included in operating and
other expenses is interest expense that remained consistent in 2009 as compared to 2008. Interest
expense in the Aircraft Leasing segment decreased $39 million as a result of a significant decrease in the
interest rates on variable rate debt at ACG; however, such decreases were offset by increased interest
expense of $38 million in the Corporate and Other segment due to the issuance of $1.0 billion of surplus
notes in June 2009. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for further discussion of the surplus note
issuance.

The provision for income taxes was $44 million for 2009 as compared to a benefit for income taxes of
$315 million for 2008. The taxes in 2009 and 2008 were lower than the statutory rate due to a tax
settlement from the favorable resolution of an issue relating to the separate account dividends received
deduction and accrued interest on net refunds due from the Internal Revenue Service for prior years.
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Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Net income (loss) was ($257) million for 2008 as compared to $678 million for 2007. The net loss for 2008
was primarily attributable to the impact of the economic recession and severely negative economic
conditions which led to (1) higher investment losses and (2) the significant decline in the equity markets,
leading to increases in the negative mark-to-market of certain embedded derivatives, net of hedges and
policy fees, related to variable annuity guaranteed living benefits in the A&MF segment in 2008 compared
to 2007. See the discussion of consolidated statement of operations line items below.

Policy fees and insurance premiums for 2008 were $1,997 million compared to $1,780 million for 2007,
an increase of 12%. Policy fees increased in the Life Insurance segment primarily as a result of an
increase in amortization of unearned revenue and cost-of-insurance charges. In addition to the increase
in policy fees, there was also an increase in insurance premiums from the sale of structured settlement
and retirement annuities in the Investment Management segment in 2008 as compared to 2007.

Net investment income decreased 6% from $2,120 million for 2007 to $1,994 million for 2008. The
decrease in 2008 as compared to 2007 primarily related to prepayment fees on fixed maturity securities
and mortgage loans, which were $33 million lower in 2008 as compared to 2007. In addition, there was
also a decrease in net investment income on private equity investments in 2008 as compared to 2007.

Net realized investment loss for 2008 amounted to $1,329 million compared to $29 million for 2007. The
increase in net realized investment loss was primarily related to $482 million higher OTTI charges in 2008
as compared to 2007 and a $666 million increase in the negative mark-to-market of embedded
derivatives, net of hedges and policy fees, related to variable annuity guaranteed living benefits in the
A&MF segment in 2008 compared to 2007. In connection with the significant disruption in the residential
mortgage and credit markets in 2008, OTTI charges recorded during 2008 were primarily related to the
Company’s exposure to Alt-A residential mortgage backed securities, certain structured securities, and
direct exposure to financial companies through corporate equity and debt holdings. See the Audited
GAAP Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for additional information on the components
of net realized investment gains and losses.

Realized investment gain on the Company'’s interest in PIMCO amounted to a pre-tax gain of $109 million
for 2008. See “Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates” above for a discussion of the Company’s interest in
PIMCO.

Investment advisory fees decreased $72 million to $255 million for 2008 as compared to $327 million for
2007. Effective May 1, 2007, there was a reduction in certain advisory fees charged by the Company,
which contributed to the decrease. Additionally, the decrease in separate account assets during 2008 as
compared to 2007 also contributed to this decrease. See “Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates” above for
additional information.

Aircraft leasing revenue increased $36 million to $571 million for 2008 as compared to $535 million for
2007. This increase was primarily the result of favorable terms negotiated in fixed leases during 2008 and
the growth in the number of aircraft in the portfolio, partially offset by a decrease in revenues from floating
rate leases.

Other income was $167 million for 2008 as compared to $147 million for 2007. Other income was higher
in 2008 as compared to 2007 due to fees earned by PSD in connection with the Pacific Select Fund
service plan. See “Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates” above for additional information about the Pacific
Select Fund service plan.

Interest credited to policyholder account balances decreased to $1,234 million for 2008 as compared to
$1,266 million for 2007. This slight decrease in interest credited to policyholder account balances was
primarily related to a decrease in interest credited on floating rate institutional investment products due to
a fall in short term interest rates in 2008 as compared to 2007, which was slightly offset by an increase in
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interest credited to policyholder account balances by the Life Insurance segment due to a growth in
account values.

Policy benefits paid or provided increased $351 million to $1,206 million for 2008 as compared to $855
million for 2007. The increase was primarily related to the sale of structured settlement annuities in the
Investment Management segment, which is discussed above. The A&MF segment also had an increase
of $138 million in this line item due to increases in guaranteed living and death benefit reserves. The Life
Insurance segment experienced an increase in life insurance benefits of $64 million, principally due to an
increase in average death claim size and increased other benefit reserves.

Commission expenses for 2008 increased $25 million to $715 million compared to $690 million for 2007.
The primary reason for the increase was higher amortization of DAC in the Life Insurance segment as a
result of increased sales and the adverse impact of negative market returns in 2008. This increase was
partially offset by the A&MF segment’s lower trail commissions and a DAC benefit from embedded
derivative losses.

Operating expenses for 2008 decreased by $57 million, or 5%, to $1,178 million from $1,235 million in
2007. The decrease was partially attributable to decreased interest expense resulting from lower interest
rates on variable rate debt at ACG. In addition, the decrease was due to a settlement accrual recorded in
2007, partially offset by an increase in net DAC and other operating expenses in 2008.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for 2008 was ($315) million as compared to $129 million for
2007. This decrease in tax expense was primarily due to lower taxable income realized by the Company
in 2008. The taxes in 2008 and in 2007 were lower than the statutory rate primarily due to the separate
account dividends received deduction and utilization of low income housing and foreign tax credits.

Assets

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had total assets of $108.5 billion as compared to $95.2 billion as
of December 31, 2008. This increase in total assets was primarily attributable to the increase in separate
account assets from $41.5 billion as of December 31, 2008 to $52.6 billion as of December 31, 2009,
primarily due to positive returns in the equity markets between December 31, 2008 and December 31,
2009. Also contributing to the increase in total assets was an increase of $4.7 billion in total investments
primarily due to increases in fixed maturity securities, mortgage loans and equity securities, partially offset
by a decrease in policy loans and other investments. These increases in total assets were also partially
offset by a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $1.5 billion and a decrease in other assets of $1.0
billion due to decreases in net deferred tax assets and reinsurance receivables, which decreases were
partially offset by increases in premium receivables. See the Audited GAAP Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report for additional information on investments.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had total assets of $95.2 billion as compared to $109.9 billion as
of December 31, 2007. This decrease in total assets was primarily a result of the decrease in separate
account assets from $57.6 billion as of December 31, 2007 to $41.5 billion as of December 31, 2008,
primarily due to the significant decline in the equity markets in 2008. Total investments also decreased
from $40.4 billion at December 31, 2007 to $36.8 billion at December 31, 2008, primarily as a result of
lower estimated fair values due to an increase in net unrealized losses. General spread widening on fixed
maturity investments caused by the disruption in the financial markets in 2008 led to the decrease in
estimated fair values. Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in mortgage loan investments
of $1.0 billion and an increase to cash and cash equivalents of $2.7 billion. See the Audited GAAP
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for additional information on investments.

Liabilities
As of December 31, 2009, the Company had total liabilities of $101.6 billion as compared to $90.5 billion

as of December 31, 2008. This increase in total liabilities was primarily attributable to the increase in
separate account liabilities from $41.5 billion as of December 31, 2008 to $52.6 billion as of December
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31, 2009, primarily due to positive returns in the equity markets between December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2009. In addition, long-term debt increased $1.1 billion primarily due to the issuance of
$1.0 billion of surplus notes in June 2009. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for further
discussion of the surplus note issuance. Total liabilities also increased as a result of a $1.3 billion
increase to policyholder account balances. These increases were slightly offset by a $2.4 billion decrease
in future policy benefits.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had total liabilities of $90.5 billion as compared to $102.6 billion
as of December 31, 2007. This decrease in total liabilities was primarily the result of a decrease in
separate account liabilities from $57.6 billion at December 31, 2007 to $41.5 billion at December 31,
2008, consistent with the decrease in separate account assets described above. This decrease was
partially offset by an increase to future policy benefits of $3.8 hillion.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s principal capital resources come from insurance premiums, deposits to policyholder
account balances, investment income, sales, maturities, calls and principal repayments of investments
and cash flows from other operations, including aircraft leasing revenue. The principal uses of these
funds are investment purchases, payment of policy acquisition costs, payment of policyholder benefits,
withdrawal of policyholder account balances, income taxes and current operating expenses. Remaining
funds not used as noted above are generally used to increase the asset base, to provide funds to meet
the need for future policy benefit payments and for writing new business. As described below, total cash
and cash equivalents decreased $1,478 million during 2009 as compared to an increase of $2,703 million
during 2008. Total cash and cash equivalents decreased $747 million during 2007.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $2,410 million during 2009, $2,456 million during 2008 and
$2,451 million in 2007. Net cash provided by operating activities can vary depending on the level and type
of sales, particularly those of annuity and other investment-type products. For example, sales of universal
life insurance products and investment-type products result in cash flows that are predominantly shown
as cash flows from financing activities rather than as cash flows from operations, while sales of variable
products result in cash flows that are predominantly reflected in the separate accounts and are not a part
of the cash flow statement.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities was ($5,334) million during 2009 and was $837 million
in 2008 as compared to ($3,212) million during 2007. The increase in net cash used in investing activities
in 2009 was due to increased purchases of fixed maturity and equity securities in 2009. The Company
had reduced purchases of fixed maturity and equity securities during 2008 resulting in increased investing
cash flow. It is the Company’s objective to remain fully invested in assets with maturities and yields that it
believes are matched to its product liabilities. As assets mature, are redeemed or are sold, the Company
evaluates the available investment alternatives, reinvests according to existing and expected product
liabilities as well as seeks to ensure that sufficient marketable assets and other sources of liquidity are in
place to provide for large unexpected demands for cash. Discrepancies between the timing of financial
statement preparation and the timing of reinvestment activity sometimes result in the presentation of
levels of short-term investments that are not typical of day-to-day operations. These short-term
investments are considered cash equivalents. The Company also had fluctuations in payments for
nonhedging derivative settlements and change in collateral received or pledged during 2009, 2008 and
2007. The increase from 2008 to 2009 in cash payments for nonhedging derivative settlements was due
to instruments which are tied to the return of the S&P 500 Index. In 2009, on an aggregate basis, the
Company returned cash collateral to counterparties due to a decrease in the net aggregate exposure
resulting from a decrease in the derivative positions’ market value.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities was $1,446 million during 2009 and was ($590) million
in 2008 as compared to $14 million during 2007. The increase in 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily
related to the issuance by Pacific Life of an aggregate principal amount of $1.0 billion in surplus notes in
June 2009 and a $200 million contribution from Pacific LifeCorp to Pacific Life in 2009 compared to a
$345 million cash dividend paid by Pacific Life to Pacific LifeCorp in 2008. The decrease in 2008 as
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compared to 2007 was primarily due to the $345 million cash dividend paid by Pacific Life to Pacific
LifeCorp in 2008. Also, changes in universal life and investment-type product account balances and
changes in short-term and long-term debt were additional drivers of the change in cash flows from
financing activities.

The payment of dividends by Pacific Life to Pacific LifeCorp is subject to restrictions set forth in the
insurance laws of the State of Nebraska. Under these laws, Pacific Life must deliver notice to the
Nebraska Department of Insurance of any dividend or distribution to Pacific LifeCorp within five business
days after declaration of the dividend or distribution, and may not pay the dividend or distribution to
Pacific LifeCorp within the ten business day period following delivery of such notice unless the Nebraska
Department of Insurance approves payment of the dividend or distribution within such ten business day
period. In addition, Pacific Life may not pay an “extraordinary” dividend or distribution to Pacific LifeCorp
until the Nebraska Department of Insurance has either (i) approved the payment of the dividend or
distribution or (ii) not disapproved the payment of the dividend or distribution within thirty days after
receiving notice of the declaration of the dividend or distribution. For purposes of applicable Nebraska
law, an “extraordinary” dividend or distribution is a dividend or distribution of cash or other property with a
fair market value that, together with that of other dividends or distributions made by Pacific Life to Pacific
LifeCorp within the preceding twelve months, exceeds the greater of either (i) 10% of Pacific Life’s
statutory policyholders surplus as of the preceding December 31 or (ii) Pacific Life’'s statutory net gain
from operations for the twelve month period ending the preceding December 31. Based on the 2009
statutory results, Pacific Life could pay $629 million in ordinary dividends or distributions during 2010,
subject to the ten business day notice period described above. Dividends in excess of such amount would
be considered “extraordinary” dividends or distributions for purposes of Nebraska law and would be
subject to the thirty day notice and non-disapproval requirement described above. No dividends were paid
by Pacific Life during 2009 and 2007. During 2008, Pacific Life paid a cash dividend to Pacific LifeCorp of
$345 million. In March 2010, Pacific Life paid a cash dividend to Pacific LifeCorp of $150 million.

Liquidity and Capital Sources and Requirements

The Company’s liquidity needs vary by product line. Factors that affect each product line's need for
liquidity include interest rate levels, customer type, termination or surrender charges, federal income
taxes, benefit levels and level of underwriting risk. Pacific Life's asset/liability management process takes
into account the varying liquidity needs of its different product lines.

The Company believes that its product mix contributes to its strong liquidity position. A primary liquidity
concern for the Company is the risk of early contract owner and policyholder withdrawals. The Company
closely evaluates and manages this risk. A significant portion of the Company’s life insurance, institutional
and annuity products contain surrender charges for varying durations or fair value adjustments, reducing
the risk that customers will seek withdrawals during the periods when surrender charges or fair value
adjustments are in place. Surrender charges or fair value adjustments help the Company to better plan
the maturities of its invested assets by reducing the risk that future outflows will exceed anticipated levels.
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The following table describes Pacific Life’'s withdrawal characteristics of certain annuity actuarial reserves
and deposit-type contracts, including GICs and funding agreements. Amounts are derived from Pacific
Life’s statutory financial information at the dates noted.

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
% of % of
Amount Total Amount Total
($ in millions)

Subject to discretionary withdrawal:

With fair value adjustment ...........ccccccoevveeeiinnnn. $ 3,720 6% $ 2,263 4%
At book value less current surrender charge of

5% OF MOIE ..ottt 2,811 4% 1,923 3%
At fair value........ooceeveiii e 44,216 70% 35,114 63%
Total with adjustment or at fair value.................. 50,747 80% 39,300 70%
At book value without adjustment...................... 2,129 3% 1,790 3%
Not subject to discretionary withdrawal............... 10,850 17% 14,816 27%
Total (QrOSS) .ocvvvrreeieeeee ittt e e e s e s e e e e e 63,726 100% 55,906 100%
Reinsurance ceded..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiieeee, - 409
Total (NEL) .ovvveeee e $ 63,726 $ 55,497

As noted in the table above, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, only 3% of these liabilities were subject
to withdrawal at book value without adjustment. The other 97% of these liabilities as of December 31,
2009 and 2008 were either subject to withdrawal with an adjustment or at fair value or were not subject to
discretionary withdrawal. The products are designed in this manner to discourage early withdrawals and
protect Pacific Life from liquidity risks. Pacific Life believes the structuring of liabilities in this manner
provides it with a stable block of liabilities that reduces its exposure to unexpected cash withdrawals and
demands and the adverse financial effects that could occur as a result.

In June 2009, Pacific Life issued an aggregate principal amount of $1.0 billion in surplus notes maturing
on June 15, 2039. Pacific Life is required to pay interest on these surplus notes at an annual rate of
9.25%, subject to regulatory approval. Pacific Life also has outstanding $150 million of surplus notes due
December 30, 2023 on which Pacific Life is required to pay interest at an annual rate of 7.90%, subject to
regulatory approval. The Company has entered into interest rate swaps to convert some of these fixed
rate obligations to variable rate obligations based upon the London InterBank Offered Rate. See Note 13
in the Audited GAAP Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for additional information.

In February 2010, Pacific LifeCorp issued $450 million of senior notes at a fixed interest rate of 6.0%,
maturing on February 10, 2020. Interest is payable semiannually on February 10 and August 10. Pacific
LifeCorp may redeem all or a portion of the notes at any time at the redemption price described under the
terms of the senior notes. In March 2010, the Nebraska Department of Insurance approved the issuance
of an internal surplus note by Pacific Life to Pacific LifeCorp for $450 million. Pacific Life is required to pay
Pacific LifeCorp interest on the internal surplus note semiannually on February 5 and August 5 at a fixed
annual rate of 6.0%, subject to regulatory approval. The internal surplus note matures on February 5,
2020.

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity to meet unexpected cash outflows are its portfolio of liquid
assets and its net operating cash flow. Liquid assets include U.S. Treasury securities, short-term money
market investments, and other marketable securities. Furthermore, the Company monitors and manages
cash flows in order to maximize investment returns relative to client obligations and to minimize the
number, length of time and severity of asset and liability cash flow mismatches.

Additional sources of liquidity include facilities for short-term borrowing to meet working capital
requirements. Pacific Life maintains a $700 million commercial paper program. There was no commercial
paper debt outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. As of December 31, 2007, there was $100
million outstanding under the commercial paper program. In addition, a bank revolving credit facility
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totaling $400 million is also in place that serves as a back-up line of credit for the commercial paper
program. The credit facility matures in June 2012 and does not contain a material adverse change clause.
This facility had no debt outstanding as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. As of and during the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, Pacific Life was in compliance with its debt covenants
related to this credit facility.

PL&A maintains a $40 million reverse purchase line of credit with a commercial bank. These borrowings
are at variable rates of interest based on collateral and market conditions. There was no debt outstanding
in connection with this line of credit as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Pacific Life is a member of the FHLB of Topeka. Pacific Life has approval from the FHLB of Topeka to
advance amounts up to 40% of Pacific Life’s statutory general account assets provided it has available
collateral and is in compliance with debt covenant restrictions and insurance laws and regulations. There
was no debt outstanding with the FHLB of Topeka as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. The
Company had $127 million and $1.0 billion of additional funding capacity from eligible collateral as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

PL&A is a member of the FHLB of San Francisco. PL&A is eligible to borrow from the FHLB of San
Francisco amounts based on a percentage of statutory capital and surplus and could borrow amounts up
to $102 million. Of this amount, half, or $51 million, can be borrowed for terms other than overnight, to a
maximum term of nine months. These borrowings are at variable rates of interest, collateralized by certain
mortgage loan and government securities. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, PL&A had no debt
outstanding with the FHLB of San Francisco.

In the Aircraft Leasing segment, ACG finances the equity for its aircraft investments through internally
generated funds and from capital contributions. In March 2010, Pacific Life made a cash capital
contribution of $350 million to ACG. ACG has raised debt financing for its assets from the domestic U.S.
bank loan market, the issuance of asset-backed debt in the capital markets, European Export Credit
Agency and U.S. Export-Import Bank guaranteed loans, and the issuance of corporate debt obligations.

ACG had a revolving credit agreement with a bank for a $105 million borrowing facility, which was
entered into in May 2009. Interest was at variable rates and the facility matured and was repaid in March
2010. The amount outstanding as of December 31, 2009 was $105 million, bearing an interest rate of
4.8%. As of and during the year ended December 31, 2009, ACG was in compliance with the debt
covenants related to this facility.

ACG had a revolving credit agreement with a bank for a $150 million borrowing facility, which was
entered into in April 2008. The amount outstanding as of December 31, 2008 was $150 million, bearing
an interest rate of 2.3%. This credit facility matured and was repaid in May 2009.

The majority of ACG’s aircraft are financed through the issuance of asset-backed securitized notes sold in
the capital markets. All asset-backed securitized debt is non-recourse to ACG. Asset-backed securitized
debt is very long-term, effectively offering permanent financing for the aircraft in the pool. ACG acts as
administrative and remarketing agent in each securitization.

ACG has also established corporate note programs aimed at raising debt financing for the repayment of
existing debt and for general corporate purposes. In April 2010, ACG issued $255 million of senior
unsecured notes in a private placement offering with maturities ranging from 2015 to 2020 at fixed
interest rates ranging from 5.71% to 7.20%.
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Dividends and Distributions from Subsidiaries

In recent years, the subsidiaries of Pacific Life have provided other sources of liquidity through the
payment of distributions and dividends. Of its principal subsidiaries, only PAH has recently made cash
distributions to Pacific Life. Dividends received from other subsidiaries of Pacific Life have been nominal
during the past few years.

Operating cash flow for PAH has been generated by the cash distributions from the interest in PIMCO
owned by PAH. These cash distributions from the interest in PIMCO are the primary source of
distributions that PAH has previously paid to Pacific Life. In connection with the exercise of the final put
option of the Company’s interest in PIMCO, as noted above, PAH made distributions to Pacific Life of
$300 million during the year ended December 31, 2008. PAH paid distributions to Pacific Life of $12
million during the year ended December 31, 2007. PAH made no distributions to Pacific Life during the
year ended December 31, 2009.

The payment of dividends and other distributions by PL&A to Pacific Life is subject to restrictions set forth
in the Arizona insurance laws. These laws require that PL&A notify the Arizona Department of Insurance
of the declaration of any dividend or distribution to be paid by PL&A to Pacific Life. PL&A may not pay an
“extraordinary” dividend or distribution to Pacific Life until the Arizona Department of Insurance has either
(i) approved the payment of the dividend or distribution or (ii) not disapproved the payment of the dividend
or distribution within thirty days after receiving notice of the declaration of the dividend or distribution. For
purposes of applicable Arizona law, an “extraordinary” dividend or distribution is a dividend or distribution
of cash or other property whose fair market value, together with that of other dividends or distributions
made by PL&A to Pacific Life within the preceding twelve months, exceeds the lesser of either (i) 10% of
PL&A’s statutory policyholders surplus as of the preceding December 31 or (ii) PL&A’s statutory net gain
from operations for the twelve month period ending the preceding December 31. Based on this limitation
and 2009 statutory results, PL&A could pay $23 million in dividends to Pacific Life in 2010 without prior
regulatory approval. PL&A did not pay any dividends to Pacific Life during the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 or 2007.

General

The Company believes that these sources of liquidity are adequate to meet its anticipated cash
obligations.

There can be no assurance that future experience regarding benefits and surrenders will be similar to
historic experience since withdrawal and surrender levels are influenced by such factors as the interest
rate environment and the Company’s claims-paying and financial strength ratings.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Company operates in a business environment that is subject to various risks and uncertainties which
are difficult to predict and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations. These risks and uncertainties include:

e continued downturns and volatility in the equity and credit markets and the global economy;

o fluctuations in reserves relating to the Company's guaranteed minimum benefit riders

together with changes in the valuation of derivatives, including derivatives entered into in

connection with these guaranteed minimum benefit riders;

e changes in interest rates which may reduce profitability, negatively affect liquidity and
significantly affect the value of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio;

19



adverse capital and credit market conditions which may significantly affect the Company’s
access to debt and capital markets and affect the Company'’s ability to meet liquidity needs or
refinancing requirements in the future;

losses due to defaults by others, including issuers of investment securities or reinsurance and
derivative counterparties;

the ability of the U.S. government, the Federal Reserve and other governmental and
regulatory bodies to act successfully to stabilize the financial markets;

adverse regulatory developments;

new accounting rules or changes to existing accounting rules;
downgrades or potential downgrades in Pacific Life’s ratings;
strong competition in the Company’s business;

the ability of ACG'’s airline customers to meet their obligations;

the ability of ACG’s manufacturers to remain financially stable and to fulfill their contractual
obligations;

the ability of ACG to recover its entire investment in the aircraft in its fleet;
changes in tax laws and the interpretation thereof;

the adoption of new tax laws that would adversely affect the products offered by the
Company;

deviations from assumptions regarding future persistency, mortality and interest rates used in
calculating reserve amounts and pricing the Company’s products;

significant market valuation fluctuations of the Company’s investments that are relatively
illiquid;

subjectivity in methodology, estimates and assumptions in the valuation of fixed maturity,
equity and trading securities;

sensitivity of the statutory risk-based capital the Company is required to hold to factors
outside of the Company’s control;

market capacity constraints on statutory reserve financings;
litigation and regulatory investigations;
lack of available, affordable or adequate reinsurance;

the inability of Pacific LifeCorp, the parent company of Pacific Life, to access its credit
facilities and the availability of credit to the Company as a whole;

significant variances from pricing expectations for mortality or persistency rates;

the inability to attract and retain key personnel;
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e the occurrence of events that would require the acceleration of the amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs;

e the impact of current international tensions between the U.S. and other nations, including any
terrorist attack, or on-going military and other actions, or a large-scale pandemic;

e requirements to post collateral or make payments related to declines in the market value of
specified assets;

e exposure to unidentified or unanticipated risks;

e acomputer system failure or security breach; and
e adverse global climate changes.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recently adopted accounting pronouncements, see the Audited GAAP Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to a number of legal proceedings, some of which involve allegations for extra-
contractual damages. In addition, in connection with the sale of certain broker-dealer subsidiaries, certain
indemnifications triggered by breaches of representations, warranties or covenants were provided by
Pacific Life, including indemnification for certain third-party claims arising from the normal operation of the
broker-dealers prior to the closing and within the nine month period following the sale.

Although the Company is confident of its position in these matters, success is not a certainty and it is
possible that in any case a judge or jury could rule against the Company. In the opinion of management,
the outcome of such proceedings is not likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position. The Company believes adequate provision has been made in its
consolidated financial statements for all probable and estimable losses for litigation and indemnification
claims against the Company. For a further discussion, see Note 21 to Pacific Life’s Audited GAAP
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.
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Ratings

An insurer’s financial strength rating represents an opinion by the issuing rating agency regarding the
ability of an insurance company to meet its financial obligations to its policyholders and contract holders.
A rating is an opinion of the rating agency only and not a statement of fact or recommendation to
purchase, sell or hold any security, policy or contract. These ratings do not imply approval of the
Company'’s products and do not reflect any indication of their performance. There can be no assurance
that Pacific Life’s ratings will continue for any given period of time or that they will not be adjusted or
withdrawn. A negative outlook indicates that the rating could change based on certain future events
relating to the financial condition of the rated entity. Pacific Life’s financial strength ratings and outlook as
of the date of this Annual Report are set forth in the chart below.

Rating Agency Rating Rating Structure Ratings Outlook
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. Al (Good) Fifth highest of 21 Stable
ratings
Standard and Poor’s Rating Services AA- (Very strong) Fourth highest of 21 Negative
ratings
Fitch Ratings A+ (Strong) Fifth highest of 21 Stable
ratings
A.M. Best Company, Inc. A+ (Superior) Second highest of 16 Negative
ratings

Pacific Life’s ratings are of interest to policyholders and holders of debt securities of Pacific Life and PLF,
but are not ratings of the instruments issued by PLF and do not reflect an evaluation of the safety and
security of such instruments.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had approximately 2,600 employees. None of the Company’s
employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. The Company believes that its employee
relations are satisfactory.

Properties

The Company’s principal administrative offices are located at 700 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach,
California, in a 285,000 square-foot office building it owns. The Company also leases office space at
various locations throughout the U.S. Other principal leases include other subsidiary home offices,
regional life and other sales offices and storage facilities. In February 2008, the Company completed
construction of a new office building in Aliso Viejo, California. The Company believes that its facilities are
adequate for its present needs in all material respects.
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AUDITED GAAP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
PACIFIC LIFE FUNDING, LLC
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008 AND
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D I I tt
e OI e Deloitte & Touche LLP

695 Town Center Drive
Suite 1200

Costa Mesa, CA 92626
UsSA

Tel: +1 714 436 7100
Fax: +1 714 436 7200
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Pacific Life Funding, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Pacific Life Funding, LLC (the Company) as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of operations and retained earnings and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, aswell as
evaluating the overall financia statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide areasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

DA o

April 23, 2010

Member of
F-3 Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Pacific Life Funding, LLC

BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

December 31,
2009 2008
(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaents $26 $26
Funding Agreements 1,751,426 2,653,076
Accrued interest receivable 51,737 78,805
TOTAL ASSETS $1,803,189 $2,731,907
LIABILITIESAND MEMBER'SEQUITY
Liabilities:

Notes payable $1,751,426 $2,653,076

Accrued interest payable 51,737 78,805
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,803,163 2,731,881
Member's Equity:

Share capita 1 1

Retained earnings 25 25
TOTAL MEMBER'SEQUITY 26 26
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND MEMBER'SEQUITY $1,803,189 $2,731,907

See Notes to Financial Satements
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Pacific Life Funding, LLC

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Y ears Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

(In Thousands)

INCOME

Interest on Funding Agreements $111,951 $166,269 $213,154
Foreign exchange gain on Funding Agreements 21,579
Foreign exchange gain on notes payable 179,611 564,384

Other 18
TOTAL INCOME 291,562 730,653 234,751
EXPENSES

Interest on notes payable 111,951 166,269 213,154
Foreign exchange loss on Funding Agreements 179,611 564,384

Foreign exchange |oss on notes payable 21,579
Other 17
TOTAL EXPENSES 291,562 730,653 234,750
NET INCOME $0 $0 $1
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR $25 $25 $24
Net income 0 0 1
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $25 $25 $25

See Notes to Financial Satements

F-5



Pacific Life Funding, LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Y ears Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

(In Thousands)
CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $0 $0 $1
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Change in accrued interest receivable 27,068 25,666 23,610
Change in accrued interest payable (27,068) (25,666) (23,610)
Amortization on Funding Agreements 965 931 342
Amortization on notes payable (965) (931) (342)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 0 0 1

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturities of Funding Agreements 696,074 408,204 783,352

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 696,074 408,204 783,352

CASH FLOWSFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Redemption of notes payable (696,074) (408,204) (783,352)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (696,074) (408,204) (783,352)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 0 0 1
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 26 26 25
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $26 $26 $26

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cancellation of Funding Agreement $25,000
Cancellation of notes payable (25,000)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 139,984 $ 192,866 $ 237,106

See Notes to Financial Satements
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Pacific Life Funding, LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Pacific Life Funding, LLC (the Company) was incorporated on January 23, 1998, as an exempted company
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and commenced operations on May 28, 1998. The Company
has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands government exempting it from all local income or capital
gains taxes until February 17, 2018. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present time. The
Company was established as a special purpose vehicle under the terms of a Charitable Trust. QSPV Limited, the
trustee of the Charitable Trust, is the sole member of the Company.

The Company has established a program (the Program) for the issuance of up to $8 billion of debt instruments.
Each series or tranche of instruments issued under the Program is secured by a funding agreement (the Funding
Agreements) entered into between the Company and Pacific Life Insurance Company (Pacific Life), astock life
insurance company domiciled in the State of Nebraska. The Company has funded its investment in the Funding
Agreements through the issuance of notes payable (Note 4). The creation and issuance of each series of notesis
governed by an indenture dated April 15, 1998, as supplemented between the Company, Banque Generale du
Luxembourg S.A. as Transfer Agent and Paying Agent, and The Bank of New Y ork as trustee.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Company’ s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Reclassifications have been made to certain operating activities on the statements of cash flows for 2008 and
2007 to conform them to the 2009 presentation. Changes in accrued interest receivable and accrued interest
payable, as well as amortization on Funding Agreements and notes payable have been presented on a gross basis,
instead of anet basis. Reclassifications have also been made to the 2008 financial statements to conform to the
2009 financial statement presentation to separately disclose accrued interest receivable and accrued interest

payable.

The Company has evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2009 and through April 23, 2010, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. The Company has not eval uated subsequent events after that
date for presentation in these financial statements.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Effective September 30, 2009, the Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standard Codification (Codification) as the single source of authoritative U.S. GAAP. The
Codification does not create new accounting and reporting guidance, rather it reorganized then-existing U.S.
GAAP pronouncements into approximately 90 Topics within a consistent structure. All guidance in the
Codification carries an equal level of authority. After the effective date of the Codification, al nongrandfathered
accounting literature not included in the Codification is superseded and deemed nonauthoritative. Adoption of
the Codification also changed how the Company referencesthe U.S. GAAP initsfinancia statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalentsinclude al investments with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying
values approximate fair values due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

FUNDING AGREEMENTS AND NOTES PAYABLE

The Funding Agreements and related notes payable (together, the Instruments) have been classified as held to
maturity and are reported at amortized cost, adjusted for changes in foreign exchange rates. Most of the
instruments are denominated in foreign currencies and are subject to both foreign exchange and interest rate
fluctuations.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar have been trandlated at
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses involving other currencies have been
tranglated at exchange ratesin effect at the time of those transactions. Gains or |osses onforeign exchange are
recorded in the statements of operations and retained earnings.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of financial instruments, disclosed in Note 5, has been determined using available
market information and appropriate val uation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is often required
to interpret market datato devel op the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented may not be
indicative of the amounts the Company could redlize in a current market exchange. The use of different market
assumptions and/or estimation methodol ogies could have a significant effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financid statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those amounts.

3. TRANSACTIONSWITH AFFILIATES
In addition to purchases of Funding Agreements from Pacific Life, certain operating expenses of the Company
are paid directly by Pacific Life. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, Pacific Life paid

$313 thousand, $510 thousand, and $268 thousand, respectively, on behalf of the Company for general operating
and administrative expenses.
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4. FUNDING AGREEMENTSNOTESPAYABLE

Each series of notes payable issued under the Program is secured by one or more Funding Agreements. Under
the terms of the Funding Agreements, Pacific Life agrees to accept, and the Company agrees to pay, net proceeds
from the issuance of notes payable under the Program. The notes of one series do not have any right to receive
payments under afunding agreement related to any other series of notes. Therefore, the Company isonly ableto
make timely payments with respect to a series of notes payableif Pacific Life has made all required payments
under the Funding Agreements securing such series of notes payable.

The Company’ s obligations under the notes payable are not obligations of, and are not guaranteed or insured by,
any other person, including, but not limited to, Pacific Life or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. None of these
entities nor any agent or trustee of the Company is under any obligation to provide funds or capital to the
Company, except for Pacific Life's payment obligations under the Funding Agreements and an agreement by
Pacific Life to pay certain operating expenses of and fees to the Company. In addition, the Instruments do not
benefit from any insurance guaranty fund coverage or similar protection.

The Instruments may be interest bearing or non-interest bearing, and any interest may accrue at either afixed or
floating rate. The notes mature on dates ranging from January 2010 to September 2021.

The following schedul es detail the notes payable outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. The detall

schedules for the Funding Agreements are not included, but would contain similar information, except that the
schedules would reflect the investments related to the Instruments.
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4. FUNDING AGREEMENTS/NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2009:

Issue

Series 11 Tranche 1
Series 23 Tranche 1
Series 25 Tranche 1
Series 26 Tranche 1
Series 31 Tranche 1
Series 33 Tranche 1
Series 36 Tranche 1
Series 39 Tranche 1
Series 40 Tranche 1
Series 41 Tranche 1
Series 47 Tranche 1
Series 47 Tranche 2
Series 63 Tranche 1
Series 66 Tranche 1
Series 67 Tranche 1
Series 68 Tranche 1
Series PLFO03 Tranche 1
Series PLFO05 Tranche 1
Series PLFOO7 Tranche 1
Series PLFO12 Tranche 1
Series PLFO14 Tranche 1
Series PLFO15 Tranche 1
Series PLFO19 Tranche 1
Series PLFO25 Tranche 1
Series PLF029 Tranche 1
Series PLFO31 Tranche 1

TOTAL

Principal
Denominated in
Currency  Currency of Issuance Maturity
(In Thousands)
EUR 36,500 3/12/2019
EUR 100,000 12/12/2011
EUR 90,000 8/17/2011
JPY 3,000,000 1/26/2010
CHF 100,000 6/30/2010
usD 28,560 9/15/2021
EUR 29,000 9/29/2020
GBP 25,000 12/7/2015
EUR 27,000 2/5/2021
GBP 200,000 2/8/2011
GBP 150,000 8/16/2013
GBP 50,000 8/16/2013
usD 111,146 12/20/2010
HKD 160,000 7/31/2014
GBP 200,000 1/20/2015
HKD 200,000 1/26/2015
EUR 25,358 2/15/2014
EUR 200 2/15/2010
GBP 1,010 2/15/2013
EUR 10,000 3/15/2015
GBP 256 3/15/2013
GBP 500 5/15/2013
EUR 5,016 6/15/2017
GBP 250 7/15/2010
GBP 650 11/15/2013
EUR 1,350 12/15/2015
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Interest Rate

4.70 %

(A)

6.08 %

2.00 %

4.75 %

6 mth USD LIBOR + .40%
3 mth EURIBOR + .37%
5.81 %

3 mth EURIBOR + .43%
6.25 %

6.00 %

6.00 %

5.28 %

5.00 %

513 %

4.28 %

4.00 %

315 %

5.00 %

3.80 %

4.80 %

5.00 %

4.00 %

4.55 %

4.65 %

3.80 %

Foreign Currency Carrying
Principal Gains (Losses) Value
($ In Thousands)
$40,880 $11,319 $52,199
103,250 39,760 143,010
90,855 37,854 128,709
28,400 3,969 32,369
60,032 36,030 96,062
28,560 - 28,560
25,418 16,054 41,472
35,500 4,526 40,026
25,313 13,301 38,614
295,000 25,210 320,210
214,000 26,157 240,157
72,900 7,153 80,053
79,130 - 79,130
20,600 31 20,631
375,000 (54,790) 320,210
25,664 125 25,789
33,219 3,046 36,265
259 27 286
1,906 (289) 1,617
12,860 1,441 14,301
484 (74) 410
959 (158) 801
6,340 833 7,173
453 (53) 400
1,159 (118) 1,041
1,580 351 1,931
$1,579,721 $171,705 $1,751,426




4. FUNDING AGREEMENTS/NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2008:

Principal
Denominated in Foreign Currency Carrying
Issue Currency  Currency of Issuance Maturity Interest Rate Principal Gains (Losses) Vaue
(In Thousands) ($ In Thousands)

Series 1 Tranche 1 FRF 2,000,000 5/28/2009 5.50 % $330,315 $99,587 $429,902
Series5 Tranche 1 NLG 106,000 7/15/2009 5.15 % 51,961 16,075 68,036
Series 11 Tranche 1 EUR 36,500 3/12/2019 4.70 % 40,880 10,747 51,627
Series 20 Tranche 1 EUR 10,000 12/30/2009 (B) 10,500 3,644 14,144
Series 23 Tranche 1 EUR 100,000 12/12/2011 (A) 103,250 38,195 141,445
Series 25 Tranche 1 EUR 90,000 8/17/2011 6.08 % 90,855 36,445 127,300
Series 26 Tranche 1 JPY 3,000,000 1/26/2010 2.00 % 28,400 4,867 33,267
Series 31 Tranche 1 CHF 100,000 6/30/2010 475 % 60,031 34,999 95,030
Series 33 Tranche 1 usD 28,560 9/15/2021 6 mth USD LIBOR + .40% 28,560 - 28,560
Series 36 Tranche 1 EUR 29,000 9/29/2020 3 mth EURIBOR + .37% 25,418 15,600 41,018
Series 39 Tranche 1 GBP 25,000 12/7/2015 5.81 % 35,500 571 36,071
Series 40 Tranche 1 EUR 27,000 2/5/2021 3 mth EURIBOR + .43% 25,313 12,878 38,191
Series 41 Tranche 1 GBP 200,000 2/8/2011 6.25 % 295,000 (6,429) 288,571
Series 45 Tranche 1 JPY 3,100,000 7/17/2013 3 mth JPY LIBOR + .15% 25,000 9,376 34,376
Series 47 Tranche 1 GBP 150,000 8/16/2013 6.00 % 214,000 2,428 216,428
Series 47 Tranche 2 GBP 50,000 8/16/2013 6.00 % 72,900 (757) 72,143
Series 58 Tranche 1 EUR 300,000 5/14/2009 5.50 % 269,400 154,934 424,334
Series 61 Tranche 1 usD 72,257 12/20/2009 447 % 14,570 - 14,570
Series 62 Tranche 1 usD 43,473 12/20/2009 4.47 % 8,821 - 8,821
Series 63 Tranche 1 uSsD 111,146 12/20/2010 5.28 % 79,270 - 79,270
Series 65 Tranche 1 usD 30,645 12/20/2009 454 % 6,185 - 6,185
Series 66 Tranche 1 HKD 160,000 7/31/2014 5.00 % 20,600 45 20,645
Series 67 Tranche 1 GBP 200,000 1/20/2015 513 % 375,000 (86,429) 288,571
Series 68 Tranche 1 HKD 200,000 1/26/2015 4.28 % 25,664 142 25,806
BALANCE TO CARRYFORWARD $2,237,393 $346,918 $2,584,311
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4. FUNDING AGREEMENTS/NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2008 (Continued):

Principal

Denominated in Foreign Currency Carrying
Issue Currency  Currency of Issuance Maturity Interest Rate Principal Gains (Losses) Value

(In Thousands) ($ In Thousands)
CARRYFORWARD BALANCE $2,237,393 $346,918 $2,584,311
Series PLFO02 Tranche 1 EUR 2,792 2/15/2009 3.05% 3,657 292 3,949
Series PLFO0O3 Tranche 1 EUR 25,358 2/15/2014 4.00% 33,219 2,649 35,868
Series PLFOO5 Tranche 1 EUR 200 2/15/2010 3.15% 259 24 283
Series PLFOO7 Tranche 1 GBP 1,010 2/15/2013 5.00% 1,906 (449) 1,457
Series PLFO12 Tranche 1 EUR 10,000 3/15/2015 3.80% 12,861 1,284 14,145
Series PLF014 Tranche 1 GBP 256 3/15/2013 4.80% 484 (115) 369
Series PLFO15 Tranche 1 GBP 500 5/15/2013 5.00% 958 (237) 721
Series PLF018 Tranche 1 EUR 1,000 6/15/2009 2.05% 1,264 150 1,414
Series PLFO19 Tranche 1 EUR 5,016 6/15/2017 4.00% 6,340 755 7,095
Series PLF020 Tranche 1 EUR 180 6/15/2009 1.90% 227 28 255
Series PLFO25 Tranche 1 GBP 250 7/15/2010 4.55% 453 (92) 361
Series PLF029 Tranche 1 GBP 650  11/15/2013 4.65% 1,159 (221) 938
Series PLFO31 Tranche 1 EUR 1,350  12/15/2015 3.80% 1,580 330 1,910

TOTAL $2,301,760 $351,316 $2,653,076
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4.

FUNDING AGREEMENTS/NOTES PAYABLE (Continued)

(A) Interest shall be calculated as the greater of 86.75% of the mid spot ten-year EUR fixed versus six-
month EUR EURIBOR swap rate and 5.25%.

(B) Interest shall be calculated at 87% of the mid spot ten-year EUR fixed versus six-month EUR
EURIBOR swap rate.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As described previoudly in Note 2, the Instruments have been classified as held-to-maturity and are carried

at amortized cost, adjusted for changesin foreign exchange rates. The estimated fair value of Funding

Agreements and notes payable is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar

remaining maturities.

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’ s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2009

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Vaue
(In Thousands)
Assets:
Funding agreements (Note 4) $1,751,426 $1,847,305
Liabilities:
Notes payable (Note 4) 1,751,426 1,847,305
December 31, 2008
Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Vaue
(In Thousands)
Assets:
Funding agreements (Note 4) $2,653,076 $2,728,329
Liabilities:
Notes payable (Note 4) 2,653,076 2,728,329

6. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized:
50 thousand ordinary shares of U.S. $1 par value each

Issued and fully paid:
One thousand ordinary shares of U.S. $1 par value each

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, one thousand ordinary shares had been issued at par to QSPV Limited.
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AUDITED GAAP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
PACIFIC LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008 AND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
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Deloitte

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 1200

695 Town Center Drive
Costa Mesa, CA 92626-7188
USA

Tel: +1 714 436 7100
Fax: + 1 714 436 7200
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Pacific Life Insurance Company and
Subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pacific
Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been retrospectively adjusted to give effect of comparative information as a result of the aircraft leasing
company transfer.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2009, the Company changed its method of accounting
and reporting for other than temporary impairments of debt and equity securities.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2009, the Company adopted new guidance requiring
retrospective application and presentation requirements for noncontrolling interest (previously known as minority interest).

Deloitle 2 Touche Lcp

March 4, 2010

Member of
F-15 Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu


www.deloitte.com

Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31,
2009 2008
{In Millions)

ASSETS
investments:

Fixed maturity securities avaifable for sale, at estimated fair value $26,039 $21,942

Equity securities available for sale, at estimated fair value 278 216

Morigage loans 8,577 5,622

Policy loans 6,509 §,920

Other investments 2,007 2,052
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 41,410 36,752
Cash and cash equivalents 1,919 3,397
Restricted cash 221 227
Deferred policy acquisifion costs 4,806 5,012
Aircraft leasing portfolio, net 5,304 4,999
Other asssts 2,253 3,276
Separate account assets 52,564 41,605
TOTAL ASSETS $108,477 $95,168
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Policyholder account balances $33,984 $32,670

Future policy benefits 7,403 9,841

Short-term debt 105 150

Long-ferm debt 5,632 4,459

Other liabilfties 1,872 1,863

Separate account fiabilities 52,564 41,505
TOTAL LIABILITIES 101,560 80,488
Commitments and contingencies (Note 21)
Stockhoider's Equity:

Common stock - $50 par value; 600,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding 30 30

Paid-in capital 982 782

Retained eamings 6,037 5420

Acocumulated other comprehensive loss (363) {1,802)
Total Stockholder's Equity 6,686 4,436
Noncontroliing interest 231 244
TOTAL EQUETY 8,917 4,680
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $108,477 $95,168

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Endad December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)

REVENUES
Policy fees and insurance premiums $2,275 $1.,997 $1,780
Net investment income 1,862 1,994 2,120
Net realized investment gain (loss) 153 {749) 69
Other than temporary impairments, consisting of 3641 in total, net of $330 recognized in

other comprehensive income {loss) for the year ended December 31, 2009 (311) {580) {98
Realized investment gain on inferest in PIMCO 100
[nvestment advisory fees 208 285 327
Aircraft leasing revenue 578 571 535
Other income 137 167 147
TOTAL REVENUES 4,902 3,764 4,880
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Interest credited to poficyhofder account balances 1,253 1,234 1,266
Policy benefits paid cr provided 1,226 1,206 855
Cormmission expenses 691 715 690
Operating and ofher expenses 1,248 1,178 1,235
TOTAL BENEFITS AND EXPENSES 4,416 4,333 4,048
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES 486 (569) 834
Provision {benefif} for income taxes 44 (315) 129
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 442 (254) 705
Discontinued operations, net of faxes (20) (6) 11
Net income {ioss) 422 (260) 716
Less: net (income} loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest from continuing operations 14 3 (38)
NET INCOME (LCSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COMPANY 5436 {§257) $678

See Notes fo Consolidafed Financial Statements
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Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income {Loss)
Unrealized
(3ain (Loss) On
Derivatives
and Securities Total
Common Paid-in Retained  Available for Other,  Stockholder's Nonconirofling  Total
Stock  Capital Earnings Sale, Net Net Equity Interest Equity
{In Millions)
BALANCES, JANUARY 1, 2007 $30  $780 $5,379 $445 $62 $6,696 $107  $6,803
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income 678 §78 38 716
Other comprehensive loss, net {300} (16} (318) (316)
Total comprehensive income 362 400
Cumulative effect of adoption of new
accounting principie, net of tax {29) {29) {29)
Confributions, net, received by
noncordrolling interest 89 89
Other equity adjustment 1 1 1
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2007 3 781 6028 145 46 7,030 214 7,244
Comprehensive loss:
Netioss (257) (257} (3) (260
Other comprehensive foss, net (1,896) (97} (1,993} {1,993)
Total comprehensive loss (2,25Q) {2,253)
Dividend to parent (345) (345) (345)
Contributions, net, received by
noncontroffing interest 33 33
Cther equity adiustment 1 1 1
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2008 30 782 542 {1,751) {51) 4,436 244 4580
Cumulative effect of adoption of new
accounting principle, net of fax 175 {170} 5 5
REVISED BALANCES,
DECEMBER 31, 2008 30 782 5,601 (1,921) (54) 4,441 244 4,685
Comprehensive Income {loss):
Net income (foss) 436 436 {14) 429
Other comprehansive income (loss) 1,662 47 1,609 (fy 1,602
Total comprehensive income 2,045 2,024
Contfribution from parent 200 200 200
Contributions, net, received by
noncentrolling interest 8 8
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2009 $30 3982 $6,037 ($359) (54) $6,686 $231 $6,917

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(n Miflions)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income {loss) excluding discontinued operations $442 ($254) $705
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) excluding disconfinued operations
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net accretion on fixed maturity securities (142) {144) {150}
Depreciation and amortization 281 259 255
Deferred income taxes 451 (511) 86
Net realized invesiment (gain) loss (183) 749 (69)
Other than temporary impairments 311 580 98
Realized investment gait on interest in PIMCO {109}
Net change in deferred policy acquisition costs {202) {175) (302)
Interest credited to policyholder account balances 1,253 1,234 1,266
Change in future policy bensfits and other insurance liabififies 1 1,182 566
(ther operaling activities, net 85 {337) {33)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 2,437 2474 2,522
Net cash used in operating activities of disconfinued operations (27) (18) {71)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES 2410 2,456 2,451
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed maturity and equity securities available for sale:
Purchases (6507)  (2,73G)  (5,885)
Sales 1,463 2,084 2,041
Maturities and repayments 2,542 2,138 2,718
Repayments of mortgage loans 4086 470 439
Fundings of mortgage loans and real estate (1,434) {1,885  (1,658)
Change in policy loans 411 510) {342)
Saie of interest in PIMCO 288
Change in restricted cash 6 7 80
Purchases of derivafive insfruments {20 {12) (17}
Terminations of derivative instruments 20 84 (41)
Proceeds from nonhedging derivative settlements 64 728 2
Payments for nonhedging derivative settlements {1,540) {89) (43)
Change in collateral received or pledged {1,226) 1,056 17
Purchases of and advance payments on aircraft Isasing porticlio (561) {694} {648)
Other investing activifies, net 42 {323} 67
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  {5,334) 830  (3,288)
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations 7 76
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES {5,334) 837 {3,212)

{Continued)
See Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements
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Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

(Continued) 2009 2008 2007
{in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Policyhoider account balances: :

Deposits $8,003 $7.320 $6,876

Withdrawals (7,972) {7,602) (7,131
Net change in short-ferm debt (45) B0 100
issuance of long-term debt 1,692 335 1,013
Payments of long-term dabt (433) (381) (913)
Contribution from {dividend to} parent 200 (345)
Other financing activities, net 1 33 89
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,448 (590) 14
Net change in cash and cash equivalenis (1,478) 2,703 (747)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,397 694 1,441
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $1,919 $3,397 $694
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
income taxes paid (received), net ($143) ($20) $67
Interest paid $146 $195 §272

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pacific Life Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Pacific Life Insurance Company (Pacific Life) was established in 1868 and is domiciled in the State of Nebraska as a stock life
insurance company. Pacific Life is an indirect subsidiary of Pacific Mutual Holding Company (PMHC), a Nebraska mutual holding
company, and a wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific LifeCorp, an intermediate Delaware stock holding company. PMHC and Pacific
LifeCorp were organized pursuant fo consent received from the Caifornia Department of Insurance and the implementation of a
plan of conversion to form a mutual holding company structure in 1997 (the Conversion).

Pacific Life fransferred its legal domicile from the State of California to the State of Nebraska effective September 1, 2005, PMHC
transferred its state of legal domicile from the State of California to the State of Nebraska, effective June 29, 2007, io reunite PMHC
and Pacific Life under one regulatory authorty.

Effective December 31, 2009, Pacific LifeCorp contributed its 100% stock ownership of Aviation Capital Group Corp. (ACG) fo
Pacific Life (Note 9). ACG is engaged in the acquisition and leasing of commercial jet aircraft. These financial statements and the
accompanying footnotes have been prepared by combining the previously separate financial statements of Pacific Life and ACG as
if the two entities had been combined as of the beginning of 2007, the first pericd presented in these consofidated financial
statements. This retrospective freatment is prescribed by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.8. GAAP) whenever a fransfer between entities under common controi is effected.

Pacific Life and its subsidiaries and affiliates have primary business operations consisting of life insurance, individual annuifies,
mutual funds, pension and institutional products, and aircraft leasing.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The atcompanying consolidated financfal statements of Pacific Life and its subsidiaries {the Company) have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and include the accounts of Pacific Life and its majority owned and controlled subsidiaries and variable
interest entities (VIES) in which the Company was determined fo be the primary beneflciary. Noncontrolling interest is primarily
comprised of private equity funds (Note 4). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been sfiminated in
consolidation.

Pacific Life prepares its regulatory financial statements in accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by
the Nebraska Department of insurance (NE DO, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. GAAP {Note 2).
These consotidated financial statements materially differ from those filed with regulatory authorities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management {o make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and fiabilifies as of the date of the financia! statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

In developing these estimates, management makes subjecfive and complex judgments that are inherently uncertain and subject to
material change as facts and circumstances develop. Management has identified the following estimates as significant, as they
involve a higher degree of judgment and are subject to a significant degree of variability:

The fair value of investments in the absence of quoted market values

Investment impairments

Application of the consotidation rules to certain investments

The fair value of and accounting for derivatives

Aircraft valuation and impairment

The capitalization and amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC)

The fiabifity for future policyholder benefits

Accounting for income taxes and the valuafion of deferred income fax assets and liabilities and unrecognized tax benefits
Accounting for reinsurance transactions
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¢ Lifigation and other contingencies

Certain reclassifications have been made fo the 2008 and 2007 consolidated financial statemenis o conform to the 2009 financial
statement presentation. The most significant conforming reciassification was retrospectively adjusting the consclidated financial
statements and respeciive notes to reflect the ACG fransfer.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Effective September 30, 2008, the Company adopted the Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (Codification) as the single source of authoritative U.S. GAAP. The Codification does not create new accounting and
reporting guidance, rather it reorganized then-existing U.S. GAAP proncuncements into approximately 90 Topics within a consistent
structure. Alf guidance in the Codification carries an equal level of authority. After the effective date of the Codification, all
nongrandfathered accounting literature not included in the Codification is superseded and deemed nonauthoritative. Adoption of
the Codification aiso changed how the Company references U.S. GAAP in its consolidated financial statements,

In Aprit 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance under the Codification's Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic. This
Update relates to determining fair values when there is no active market or where the price inputs being used represent distressed
sales. The Company early adopted this guidance on March 31, 2009, This update provides additional guidance for estimating fair
vaiue when the volume and level of activily for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. Also included is guidance on
identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is nof orderly. The adopfion of this guidance resulted in an increase of $436
million to the estimated fair value and a resuiting decrease of $438 million to gross unrealized investment loss of residential
morigage-backed securities (RMBS) as of March 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the year to date effect of this adoption was
an increase of $214 million to the estimated fair value and a decrease of $214 million to the gross unrealized investment Joss of
RMBS. See Note 14 for information on the Company's fair value measurements and expanded disciosures.

In April 2008, the FASB issued additional guidance under the Codification’s Investments — Debt and Equity Securities Topic. For
debt securities, this guidance replaces the management assertion that it has the intent and ability to hold an impaired debt security
until recovery with the reguirement that management assert if it either has the infent fo sell the debt security or if i is more likely
than not the entity will be required to sell the debt security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If management intends to
sell the debt security or it is more likely than not the entity will be required fo sell the debt security before recovery of its amortized
cost basis, an other than temporary impairment (OTTI) shall be recognized in earnings equal fo the enfire difference between the
debt security’s amortized cost basis and ifs fair value at the reporting date. After the recognition of an OTTY, the debt security is
accounted for as if it had been purchased on the measurement date of the OTT!, with an amortized cost basis equal to the previous
amortized cost basis less the OTTi recognized in earnings. The update also changes the presentation in the financial statements
of non credit related impairment amounts for instruments within its scope. When the entity asserts it does not have the infent to sell
the security and i is more likely than not i will not have to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, only the
credit related impairment losses are to be recoghized in earnings and non credit losses are to be recognized in other
comprehensive Income (OCH). Additionally, this update provides for enhanced presentation and disclosure of OTTls of debt and
equity securities in the consolidated financial statements. The Company early adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2009,
resulting in an after tax decrease fo OCI of $170 million, including an after tax DAC impact of $5 milion, and an after tax increase to
retained earnings of $175 million.

Effective January 1, 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance to the Codification's Consolidation Topic. This guidance improves
the relevance, comparability and transparency of the finrancial information that a company provides in % consolidated financial
statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards for the nonconfrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. As a resuit of the adoption of this guidance, which required refrospective application of
presentation reguirements, fotal equity as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, increased by $244 million and $214 mitlion,
respectivety, represeniing the noncontrolling interest, and other fiabilities and total liabilities as of December 31, 2008 ang 2007
decreased by $244 million and $214 million, respectively, as a result of reclassifying noncontrolling interest (previously known as
minority interest) to equity.

Effective January 1, 2007, the FASB issued additional guidance to the Codification's Financial Services ~ Insurance Topic. This
guidance governs the accounting for DAC on internal replacements on insurance and investment contracts. This guidance defines
an internal reptacement as a modification in product benefits, features, rights, or coverages that occur by the exchange of a
contract for a new contract, or by amendment, endorsement, or rider fo a contract, or by the election of a feature or coverage within
acontract. The adoption of this guidance resuited in a reduction fo DAC and the Company recorded a cumulative effect adjustment
of $29 million, after tax, which was recorded as a reduction to retained earnings during the year ended December 31, 2007.
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INVESTMENTS

Fixed maturity and equity securities avallable for sale are reported at estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of
adjustments related to DAC, fisfure policy benefits and deferred income taxes, recorded as a component of OCL For mortgage-
backed securities and asset-backed securities included in fixed maturity securities available for sale, the Company recognizes
income using a constant effective yield based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic life of the securities. When
esfimates of prepayments change, the effective yield is recaiculated o reflect actual payments fo date and anticipated future
payments. For fixed rate securities, the net investment in the securifies is adjusted o the amount that would have existed had the
new effective yield been applied since the acquisition of the securities. These adjustments are reflected in netinvestment income.
Trading securities are reported at estimated fair value with changes in estimated fair value included in nef realized investment gain
{loss).

Investment income consists primarily of interest and dividends, net investment income from parinership interests, prepayment fees
on fixed maturity securities and morigage loans, and income from certain derivatives. Interest is recognized on an accrual basis
and dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Amortization of premium and accretion of discount on fixed maturity securities
is recorded using the effective interest method.

The Company's available for sale securities are regularly assessed for CTTls. If a decline in the estimated fair value of an available
for sale security is deemed fo be other than temporary, the OTTl s recorded equal to the difference between the estimated fair
value and net carrying amount of the security. i the OTT| for a debt security is atkributable to both credit and other factors, then the
QTTlis bifurcated and the non credit related portion is recorded to CCl while the credit poriton is recorded as a net realized
investment loss. If the OTTlis related to credit factors only, it is recorded as a net realized investment loss.

The evaluation of OTTls is a2 quantitative and qualitative process subject to significant estimates and management judgment. The
Company has rigorous controls and procedures in place to monifor securities and identify those that are subject o greater analysis
for OTTis. The Company has an investment impairment committee comprised of invesiment and accounting professionals that
reviews and evaluates securities for potential OTTls at ieast on a quarterly basis.

In evaluating whether a decline in value is other than temporary, the Company considers many factors including, buf not limited fo,
the following: the extent and duration of the decline in vaiue; the reasons for the decline (credit event, currency, or interest-rate
related, inctuding spread widening); the abifity and intent to hotd the investment for a pericd of time to allow for a recovery of value;
and the financial condition of and near-term prospecis of the issuer.

Analysis of the probability that all cash flows will be collected under the confractual terms of a fixed maturity security and
determination as to whether the Company does not intend to sell the security and that it is more likely than not that the Company
will not be required to sell the security before recovery of the investmant were key factors in determining whether a fixed maturity
security is other than temporarily impaired.

For mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, scrutiny was placed on the performance of the underfying collateral and
projected future cash flows. In projecting future cash flows, the Company incorperates inputs from third-party sources and applies
reasonabie judgment in developing assumptions used fo esfimate the probabilify and timing of collecting all contractual cash flows.

In evaluating investment grade perpetual preferred securities, which do not have final contractual cash flows, the Company applied
OTTI considerations used for debt securities, placing emphasis on the probabiiity that all cash flows will be collected under the
contractuat terms of the security and the Company's intent and ability to hold the security to allow for a recovery of value. Perpetual
preferred securities are reported as equity securities as they are structured in eguity form, but have significant debt-like
characteristics, including periodic dividends, call features, and credit ratings and pricing similar fo debt securities. The SEC /ssues
Letter Clarifying Other-Than-Temporary Impairment Guidance for Perpefual Preferred Securifies issued on October 15, 2008 states
that if an investor holds & perpetual preferred security with an estimated fair value below cost that is not attributable to the credit
deterioration of the issuer, then the investor would not be required to recognize an OTT! by asserting that it has the infent and
ahitity to continue holding the security for a sufficient period fo allow for an anticipated recovery in market value.

Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are determined on a specific identification basis and are included in net
realized investment gain (loss).

Mortgage loans on real esiate are carried at their unpaid principal balance, net of deferred origination fees and write-downs.

Mortgage loans are considered to be impaired when management estimaltes that based upon current information and events, itis
probable that the Company will not be able to collect amounts due according to the contraciual terms of the mortgage loan
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agreement, For morfgage loans deemed to be impaired, a write-down is taken for the difference between the carrying amount and
the Company's estimate of the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the current market rate and recorded
in net realized investment gain (loss). As of December 31, 2009, two loans totaling $8 million were considered impaired, however

no valuation allowance was necessary as the fair value of the collateral was greater than the carrying amount of the related loans.

The Company had no write-downs during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. Policy loans are stated at unpaid

principal balances.

Other investments primarily consist of partnership and joint ventures, real estate investments, derivafive instruments, non-
marketable equity securities, and low income housing related investments qualifying for tax credits (LIHTC). Parinership and joint
venture interests where the Company does not have a confrolling interest or majority ownership are recorded under the cost or
equity method of accounting depending on the equily ownership position. Real estate investments are carried at depreciated cost,
net of write-downs, or, for real estate acquired in safisfaction of debt, estimated fair value less estimated seiling costs at the date of
acquisition, if lower than the related unpaid halance.

Investments in LIHTC are recorded under either the effective interest method, if they meet certain requirements, including a
projected positive yield based solely on guaranteed credits, or are recorded under the equity method if these certain requirements
are not met. For investments in LIHTC recorded under the effective inferest method, the amortization of the original investment and
the tax credits are recorded in the provision (benefit) for income taxes. For investments in LIHTC recorded under the equity
method, the amortization of the initial investment is included in net investment income, and the related tax credits are recorded in
the provision (benefit} for income texes (Note 18}). The amortization: recorded in net investment income was $3 miliion, $5 miilion
and $20 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

All derlvatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are required fo be recorded at estimated fair value. if the
derivative is designated as a cash fiow hedge, the effective portion of changes in the estimated fair value of the derivative is
recorded in OCI and recognized in earings when the hedged item affects earnings. If the derivative is designated as a {air value
hedge, the changes in the estimated fair value of the derivative and the hedged item are recognized in net realized invesiment gain
{loss). The change in value of the hedged item associated with the risk being hedged s reflected a5 an adjustment to the carrying
amount of the hedged item. For derivative instruments not designated as hedges, the change in estimated fair value of the
derivative is recorded in net realized invesiment gain {loss). Estimated fair value exposure is calcutated based con the aggregate
estimated fair value of all derivative instruments with each counterparty, net of collateral received, in accordance with legally
enforceable counterparty master netting agreements (Note 10).

The periodic cash flows for all hedging derivatives are recorded consistent with the hedged item on an accrual basis, For
derivatives that are hedging securities, these amounts are included in net investment income. For derivatives that are hedging
iabilities, these amounts are included in interest credited to policyholder account balances. For derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments, the pericdic cash flows are refiected in net realized investment gain (foss) on an accrual basis. Upen
termination of a cash flow hedging relationship, the accumuiated amount in OClis amoriized info net invesiment income or interest
credited fo policyholder account balances over the remaining life of the hedged item. Upon termination of a fair value hedging
relationship, the accumulated adiustment to the carrying value of the hedged item is amortized into net investment income, interest
expense or inferest credited to policyhoider account balances over its remaining life.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include all invesiments with an original maturity of three months or less. The Company entered info a
serfes of Federal National Morigage Association (FNMA) pass-through dollar roll transactions during the fourth quarter of 2008.
The Company purchased FNMA pass through securifies and was contractually obligated to resell the same or substantially the
same securifies within 30 days of purchase. The Company classified these dollar roll transactions as shori-term secured ioans and
reported them as cash and cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2008 and 2008, the loans amountad fo zero and $403 million,
respectively, The fair values of the securities held in connection with the secured lending were zero and $410 million as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash primarily consists of security deposits, commitment fees, maintenance reserve payments, supplemental rental
payments and rental payments received from certain lessees related to the aircraft leasing business,
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DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITICN COSTS

The costs of acquiring new insurance business, principally commissions, medical examinations, underwriting, policy issue and other
expenses, ali of which vary with and are primarily associated with the production of new business, are deferred and recorded as an
asset commonly referred to as DAC. DAC related to internally replaced contracts (as defined in the Codification's Firancial
Services - Insurance Topic), is immediately written off to expense and any new deferrable expenses associated with the
reptacement are deferred if the contract modification substanfially changes the coniract. Howsver, if the contract modification does
not substantially change the contract, the existing DAC asset remains in place and any acquisition costs associated with the
medification are immediately expensed. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the carrying value of DAC was $4.8 billion and $5.0
billion, respectively (Note 7).

For universal life (UL), variable annuities and other investment-type contracts, acquisition costs are amortized through earnings in
proportion to the present value of estimated gross profits (EGPs) from projected investment, mortality and expense margins, and
surrender charges over the esfimated lives of the confracts. Actual gross margins or profiéss may vary from management's
estimates, which ¢can increase or decrease the rate of DAC amortization. DAC related to fraditional pelicies is amoriized through
eamings over the premium-paying period of the related policies in proporfion to premium revenues recognized, using assumptions
and estimates consistent with those used in computing policy reserves. DAC related to certain unreatized components in OC,
primarily unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale, is recorded directly to equity through OCI.

Significant assumptions in the development of EGPs inciude investment refurns, surrender and lapse rates, rider utilization, interest
spreads, and mortality margins. The Company's long-term assumption for the undetlying separate account investment return
ranges up to 8.0%.

A change in the assumptions utilized to develop EGPs results in a change o amounts expensed in the reporting period in which the
change was made by adjusting the DAC balance to the level DAC would have been had the EGPs been calculated using the new
assumptions over the entire amortization period. In general, favorable experience variances result in increased expected future
profitabitity and may lower the rate of DAC amortization, whereas unfavorable experience variances result in decreased expected
future profitability and may increase the rate of DAC amortization. All crifical assumptions utilized to develop EGPs are evaluated
at least annually and necessary revisions are made to certain assumptions to the extent that actual or anficipated experience
necessitates such a prospective change (Note 7).

The Company defers sales inducements and amartizes tham over the life of the policy using the same methodology and
assumptions used to amortize DAC. The Company offers a sales inducement to the policyholder where the policyholder receives a
bonus credit, typically ranging from 0.5% to 8.0% of each deposit. The capitalized sales inducement balance included in the DAC
asset was $583 million and $552 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

AIRCRAFT LEASING PORTFOLIO

Aircraft are recorded at cost, which inciudes certain acquisition costs, less accumulated depreciation. Major improvements to
aircraft are capitalized when incurred. The Company evaluales carrying values of aircraft based upon changes in market and other
physical and economic condiffons and will record impairment losses to recognize a loss in the value of the aircraft when
management believes that, based on estimated future cash flows, the recoverability of the Company's investment in an aircraft is
uniikety (Note 9). The Company had four and two non-eaming aireraft in the portfolio as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

GOODWILL FROM ACQUISITIONS

Goodwill represents the excess of costs over the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amorfized but is reviewed for
impairment at least annually or more frequently if events occur or circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwill from acguisitions, included in other assets, totaled $43 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. There were no
goodwill impairment write-downs from continuing operations during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

POLICYHOLDER ACCOUNT BALANCES
Policyholder account balances on UL and investment-type contracts, such as funding agreements, annuity and deposit liabilities
and guarantead interest contracts (GICs), are valued using the retrospective deposit method and are equal to accumulated account

values, which consist of deposits received, pius interest credited, less withdrawals and assessments (Note 11). Interest credited to
these cenfracts primarily ranged from 0.2% to .0%.
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FUTURE POLICY BENEFITS

Annuity reserves, which primarily consist of group retirement and structured setflement annuities, are equal to the present value of
estimated future payments using pricing assumptions, as applicable, for inferest rates, mortality, morbidity, retirement age and
expenses {Note 11). Interest rates used in establishing such liabilities ranged from 1.6% to 11.3%.

The Company offers a rider on certain variable annuity contracts that guarantees net principal over a ten-year holding period, as
well as riders on cerfain variable anpuity contracts that guarantee a minimum withdrawal benefit over specified periods, subject to
certain restrictions. These variable annuity guaranteed fving benefits (GLBs) are considered embedded derivatives and are
recorded in future policy benefits (Note 11).

Policy charges assessed against policyholders that represent compensation to the Company for services to be provided in future
periods, or uneamed revenue reserves (URR), are recognized in revenue over the expected Hife of the contract using the same
methods and assumpfions used to amortize DAC. Uneamed revenue related o certain unrealized components in OCI, primarily
unrealized gains and losses on securites available for sale, is recorded directly to equity through OCI

Life insurance reserves are valued using the net level premium method on the basis of actuarial assumptions appropriate at policy
issue. Mortality and persistency assumptions are generally based on the Company's experience, which, together with interest and
expense assumptions, include a margin for possible unfavorable deviations. Interest rate assumptions ranged from 3.0% to 8.3%.
Future dividends for participating business are provided for in the liabifity for future policy benefits.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, participating experience rated policies paying dividends represent less than 1% of direct Iife
insurance in force.

Estimates of future policy benefit reserves and liabilities are continually reviewed and, as experience develops, are adjusted as
necessary. Such changes in estimates are included in garnings for the period ih which such changes ocour,

REINSURANCE

The Company has ceded reinsurance agreements with other insurance companies fo limit potential losses, reduce exposure arising
from farger risks, provide additional capacity for future growth, and assumed reinsurance agreements intended fo offset reinsurance
costs. As part of a strategic aliance, the Company also reinsures risks associated with policies written by an independent producer
group through medified coinsurance and yearly renewable term arrangements with this producer group’s reinsurance company,

All assets associated with business reinsured on a modified coinsurance basis remain with, and under the control of, the Company.
As part of its risk management process, the Company routinely evaluates ifs reinsurance programs and may change retention
limits, reinsurers or other features at any time.

Reinsurance accounting is utilized for ceded fransactions when risk transfer provisions have been met. To meet risk transfer
requirements, a refnsurance contract must include insurance risk, consisfing of both underwriting and fiming risk, and a reasonable
possibility of a significant loss to the reinsurer.

Reinsurance premiums ceded and reinsurance recoveries on benefits and claims incurred are deducted from their respective
reverue and benefit and expense accounts. Prepaid reinsurance premiums, included in other assets, are premiums that are paid in
advance for future coverage. Reinsurance recoverables, included in other assets, include balances due from reinsurance
companies for paid and unpaid losses. Amounts receivable and payable are offset for account settlement purposes for contracts
where the right of offset exists. See Note 16.

REVENUES, BENEFITS AND EXPENSES

Insurance premiums, annuity contracts with life contingencies and traditionat life and term insurance contracts, are recognized as
revenue when due. Benefils and expenses are matched against such revenues fo recognize profits over the lives of the contracts.
This matching is accomplished by providing for liabilities for fulure policy benefits, expenses of contract administration and the
amortization of DAC and URR.

Receipts for UL and investment-type contracts are reported as deposits to either policyholder account balances or separate
account iabilities, and are not inciuded in revenue. Policy fees consist of mortality charges, surrender charges and expense
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charges that have been eamed and assessed against related account values during the period. The timing of policy fee revenue
recognition is determined based on the nature of the fees. Benefits and expenses include policy benefits and claims incurred in the
period that are in excess of related policyhoider account balances, interest credited o poticyholder account balances, expenses of
contract administration and the amortization of DAC.

Investment advisory fees are primarily fees earned from Pacific Life Fund Advisors LLC {PLFA), a whoily owned subsidiary of
Pagific Life formed in 2007, which serves as the investment advisor for the Pacific Select Fund, an investment vehicle provided to
the Company's variable universal life (VUL) and variable annuity contract holders, and the Pacific Life Funds, the investment
vehicle for the Company's mutual fund products. These fees are based upen the net asset value of the underlying portfolios, and
are recorded as earned. Related subadvisory expense is included in operating and other expenses and recorded when incurred.

Aircraft leases, which are structured as iriple net leases, are accounted for as operating leases. Aircraft leasing revenue is
recognized ratably over the terms of the lease agreements. ACG has four capital leases, which are accounted for under the
provisions in the Codification's Leases Topic. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, capital leases in the amount of $8 million and
$11 million, respectively, are classified in other assets.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Alrcraft and cerfain other assets are depraciated or amortized using the siraight-line method over esfimated useful lives, which
range from three to 40 years. Depreciation and amortization of aircraft under operating leases and certain other assets are
included in operating and other expenses. Depreciation of investment real estate is computed using the sfraight-line method over
estimated useful ves, which range from five to 30 years. Depreciation of investment real estate is included in net invesiment
income.

INCOME TAXES

Pacific Life and its includable subsidiaries are included in the consolidated Federal income tax return of PMHC. Pacific Life and its
wholly owned, Arizona domiciled life insurance subsidiary, Pacific Life & Annuity Company (PL&A), and Pacific Alliance
Reinsurance Company of Vermont (PAR Vermont), a Vermont-based life reinsurance company whelly owned by Pacific Life, are
taxed as life insurance companies for Federal income tax purposes. Pacific Life's non-insurance subsidiaries are either included in
PMHC's combined California franchise tax return or, if necessary, file separate state tax refurns, Companies included in the
consolidated Federal income tax retumn of PMHC andfor the combined California franchise fax return of PMHC are allocated fax
expense or benefit based principally on the effect of including their operations in PMHC's returns under a tax sharing agreement.
Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable fo differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assefs and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years the differences are expected to be recovered or
settled.

CONTINGENCIES

Each reporting cycle the Company evaluates alf identified contingent matters on an individual basis. A loss is recorded if probable
and reasonably estimable. The Company establishes reserves for these contingencies at the best estimate, or, if no one number

within the range of possible losses is more probable than any other, the Company records an estimated reserve at the low end of

the range of losses. See Nole 21.

SEPARATE ACCOUNTS

Separate accounts primarily include variable annuity and life contracts, as well as other guaranteed and non-guaranteed accounts.
Separate account assets are recorded af estimated fair value and represent legally segregated contract holder funds. A separate
account liability is recorded equal fo the amount of separate account assets. Deposits to separafe accounts, investment income
and realized and unrealized gains and losses on the separate account assets accrue directly to confract holders and, accordingly,
are not reflected in the consolidated statements of operations or cash flows. Amounts charged to the separate account for
mortality, surrender and expense charges are included in revenues as policy fees.

For separate account funding agreements in which the Company provides a guaraniee of principal and interest fo the contract
hoider and bears all the risks and rewards of the investments underiying the separate account, the related investments and
liabilities are recognized as investments and liabilities in the consclidated statements of financial condition. Revenue and expenses
are recognized within the respective revenue, and benefif and expense lines in the consolidated statements of operations.
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FAR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of financial instruments, disclosed in Notes 8, 10 and 14, has been determined using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is often required to interpret market data to
develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented may not be indicative of the amounts the Company could
realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could have a
significant effect on the estimated fair vaiue amounts.

STATUTORY FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS
STATUTORY ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

Pacific Life prepares its regulatory statutory financial statements in accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or
permitted by the NE DOI, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. GAAP. Statutory accounting practices
primarily differ from U.S. GAAP by charging policy acquisition costs to expense as incurred, recognizing certain policy fees as
revenue when biled, establishing future policy benefit fiabilities using different actuarial assumptions, reporting surplus notes as
surpius Instead of debt, as well as valuing investments and certain assets and accounting for deferred income taxes on a different
basis,

As of December 31, 2009, Pacific Life had one permitted practice approved by the NE DOI that differed from statutory accounting
practices adopted by the Naticnal Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC), This permitted practice relates fo the valuation
of certain stalufory separate account assets that are carried at book value instead of esfimated fair value. Pacific Life's stafutory
capital and surplus as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 did not reflect unrealized losses of $29 million and $88 million, respectively,
with regards to this permitted practice. Pacific Life had a second permitted practice with a financial statement filing date of
December 31, 2008 that expired on December 30, 2009, This permitted practice aflowed Pacific Life to apply the revised version of
Actuarial Guideline 39 (AG 39) for variable annuity reserves that is contained in the finat recommendations submitted by the Capital
& Surplus Relief Working Group fc the Executive Committee of the NAIC, This permitted practice resulted in lowering statutory
reserves by $442 million as of December 31, 2008,

in addition, Pacific Life uses a NE DOI prescribed accounting practice for certain synthefic GIC reserves that differs from statutory
accounting practices adopted by the NAIC. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, this NE DO! prescribed accounting practice
resulted in statutory reserves of $20 million and $12 million, respectively, as opposed fo statutory reserves of zero and $640 million,
respectively, using statufory accounting practices adopted by the NAIC.

STATUTORY NET INCOME (LOSS) AND SURPLUS

Statutory net income (loss} of Pacific Life was $652 million, ($1,528) million and $362 mitlion for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus of Pacific Life was $5,006 million and $3,136 million as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

RISK-BASED CAPITAL

Risk-based capital is a method developed by the NAIC to measure the minimum amount of capital appropriate for an insurance
company fo support its overall business operations in consideration of its size and risk profile. The formulas for determining the
amount of risk-based capitai specify various weighting factors that are applied to financial balances or various levels of activity
based on the perceived degree of risk. Additionally, certain risks are required to be measured using actuarial cash flow modeting
techniques, subject to formulaic minimums. The adequacy of a company's actual capital is measured by a comparison to the risk-
based capital results. Companies below minimum risk-based capital requirements are classified within ceriain levels, sach of which
requires specified corrective action. As of December 31, 2000 and 2008, Pacific Life, PL&A and PAR Vermont exceeded the
minimum risk-based capital requirements.

DiVIDEND RESTRICTIONS
The payment of dividends by Pacific Life to Pacific LifeCorp is subject to restrictions set forth in the Siate of Nebraska insurance

laws. These laws require (i} notification to the NE DOI for the declaration and payment of any dividend and {ii} approval by the NE
DOl for accumulated dividends within the preceding twelve months that exceed the greater of 10% of stafutory policyholder surplus
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as of the preceding December 31 or statutory net gain from operations for the preceding fwelve months ended December 31,
Generally, these restrictions pose no short-ferm liquidity concerns for Pacific LifeCorp. Based on these restrictions and 2008
statutory resulis, Pacific Life could pay $629 milfion in dividends in 2010 to Pacific LifeCorp without prior approval from the NE DO,
subject to the notification reguiremant,

No dividends were paid during 2009 and 2007. During the year ended December 31, 2008, Pacific Life paid a cash dividend to
Pacific LifeCorp of $345 million,

The maximum amount of ordinary dividends that can be paid by PLEA o Pacific Life without restriction cannot exceed the lesser of
10% of statutory surplus as regards i policyholders, or the statutory net gain from operations. Based on this limitation and 2009
statutory results, PL&A could pay $23 million in dividends to Pacific Life in 2010 without prior regulatory approval. No dividends
were paid during 2009, 2608 and 2007.

OTHER

The Company has reinsurance contracts in place with a reinsurer whose financial stability has been deteriorating. In January 2009,
the reinsurer's domicifiary state reguiator issued an order of supervision, which requires the regulator's consent fo any fransaction
outside the normal course of business. The Company will continue to monitor the evenis surrounding this reinsurer and evaluate
its options to deal with any further deterioration of this reinsurer's financiai condition. As of December 31, 2009, statutory reserves
ceded to this reinsurer amounted to approximately $162 million.

CLOSED BLOCK

In connection with the Conversion, an arrangement known as a closed block (the Closed Block) was established, for dividend
purposes onty, for the exclusive benefit of certain individual life insurance policies that had an experience based dividend scale for
1897. The Closed Block was designed to give reasonable assurance fo holders of the Closed Block policies that poficy dividends
will not change solely as a resutt of the Conversion.

Assefs that support the Closed Block, which are primarily included in fixed mafurity securities and policy loans, amounted to $285
million and $278 millicn as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, Liabilities allocated to the Closed Block, which are
primarily incleded in future pelicy benefits, amounted to $307 million and $311 miliion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The net contribution to income from the Closed Biock was $4 million, $1 million and $1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

The following tabie presenis, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fotal assets and maximum exposure fo loss relating to VIEs,
which the Company {i) has consclidated because it is the primary beneficiary or (i} holds a significant variable interest, but has not
consclidated because itis not the primary beneficiary:

Primary Beneficiary Not Primary Beneficiary
Maximum Maximum
Total Exposure to Total Exposure {0

Assets Loss Assets Loss
December 31, 2009: (In Millions)
Aircraff securitizations $2,642 $218 $371
Private equity funds 239 30
Asset-backed securities 1,910 $103
Total $2,881 $248 $2,281 $103
December 31, 2008:
Aircraft securitizations $2.777 $145 O $427
Private equity funds 236 30
Asset-backed securities 3,816 $93
Total $3,013 $175 $4,243 $93

1 Excludes contingent purchase obligations (Nofe 21) totaling $100 million and $50 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

AIRCRAFT SECURITIZATIONS

ACG has sponscred three financial asset securifizations secured by interests in aircraft. ACG serves as the remarketing agent and
provides various aircraft related services in alf three securitizations for a fee. This fee is eliminated for the fwo consolidated
sesurifizations and is included in other income as earned for the unconsolidated securitization.

[n 2005, ACG sponsored a securitization transaction whereby ACG Trust Il acquired 74 of ACG's aircraft through a private
placement note offering in the amount of $1,860 million. ACG receives all of the expected residual refurn from ACG Trust 1Il.
Therefore, ACG was determined fo be the primary beneficiary of this VIE and ACG Trust Hl is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Company. These private placement notes are the obligation of ACG Trust Iil and represent debt that is
non-recourse fo the Company (Note 13). Nen-recourse debt consolidated from ACG Trust It was $4,308 million and $1,445 mittion
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the maximum exposure to loss, based on
carrying value, was $130 million and $72 mifiion, respectively. Consolidaled assets are reported in aircraft leasing porifolio, net,
restricted cash and other assets. Consolidated liabilities are reported in long-term debt and other fiabilities.

in 2003, ACG sponsored a securitizafion fransaction whereby Aviation Capital Group Trust Il {ACG Trust |1 acquired 37 of ACG's
aireraft through a private placement note offering in the amount of $1,027 million. ACG owns 100% of the equity of ACG Trust ||
and absorbs any losses in the trust up to ACG's equity interest. Therefore, ACG was determined fo be the primary beneficiary of
this VIE and ACG Trust If is consoiidated info the consolidated financial statements of the Company. These private placement
hotes are the obligation of ACG Trust Il and represent debt that is non-recourse to the Company {Note 13). Non-recourse debt
consofidated from ACG Trust il was $666 million and $728 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the maximum exposure 1o loss, based on carrying value, was $88 million and $73 million,
respectively. Consolidated assets are reported in aircraft leasing portfolio, net, restricted cash and other assets. Consolidated
liabiiities are reported in long-term debt and other liabilities.

In 2600, ACG spensored a firancial asset securitization of aireraft to Aviafion Capital Group Trust (Aviation Trust), ACG and Pacific
Life are beneficial interest holders in Aviation Trust. Aviation Trust is not consclidated as the Company is not the primary
seneficiary. The carrying value is comprised of beneficial interests issued by Aviation Trust. As of December 31, 2002 and 2008,
the maximum exposure to loss, based on carrying value, was zero.
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PRIVATE £QUITY FUNDS

Private equity funds (the Funds) are three limited partnerships that invest in private equity investments for cutside investors, where
the Company s the general partner. The Company provides investment management services to the Funds for a fee and receives
carried interest based upon the performance of the Funds and is a VIE due to the lack of control by the other equity investors. The
Company has not guaranteed the performance, liquidity or obligations of the Funds, and the Company's maximum exposure to loss
is equal to the carrying amounts of iis retained inferest. VIE debt consolidated from the Funds was $2 million as of December 31,
2009 and 2008. Consolidated assets are reported in other investments and cash and cash equivaients and consolidated liabilities
are reported in long-term debt.

ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES

As part of the Company's investment strategy, the Company purchases primarily investment grade bensficial interests issued from
hankruptcy-remote special purpose entities (SPEs), which are collateratized by financial assets including corporate debt. The
Company has not guaranieed the performance, liquidity or obligations of the SPES, and the Company's maximum exposure to loss
is limited to ifs carrying value of the beneficial interests in the SPEs. The Company has no liabiiities related to these VIEs, The
Company has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of these entities as the Company does not absorb a majority of the
expected fosses or receive a majority of the expected residual retumn. The Company does not consolidate these enfiies. The
investments are reported as fixed maturity securities avaitable for sale and had a net carrying amount of $103 million and $93
million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company
recorded OTTls of $60 million and $117 million, respectively, related to these securities.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company will change the methodology it employs to determine if an enfity is a VIE and, once
identified, if a VIE should be inciuded in the consolidated financial statements. The new methodology will pface more emphasis on
the Company’s abifity to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entity's financiat performance. The Company will
examine anew all entities previously identified as VIEs. The Company does not expect this change to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST IN PIMCO

As of December 31, 2007, the Company owned a beneficial economic interest in Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
(PIMCO]) through Allianz Global Investors of America LLC (interest in PIMCQ). PIMCO offers investment products through
managed accounts and institutional, retail and offshore mutual funds. The inferest in PIMCO was reported at estimated fair value,
as determined by a contractual put and call option price, with changes in estimated fair value reported as a component of OCI, net
of taxes.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company exercised a put option and sold all of its remaining inferest in PIMCO to
Allianz of America, Inc., a subsidiary of Allianz SE, for $288 milfien. The Company recognized a pre-tax gain of $109 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008,

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company's broker-dealer operations and group insurance business have been reflected as discortinued operations in the
Company's consolidated financial statements. Discontinued operations do not include the operations of Pacific Select Distributors,
Inc. {PSD}, a wholly owned broker-dealer subsidiary of Pacific Life, which primarily serves as the underwriter/distributor of
registered investment-related products and services, principally variable life and variable annuity contracts issued by the Company,
and mutual funds.

I March 2007, the Company classified its broker-dealer subsidiaries, other than PSD, as held for sale. On June 20, 2007, a
transaction closed whereby the Company sold certain of these broker-dealer subsidiaries to an unrelated third-party. Proceeds
from the sale included cash of 353 million and a common stock interest in the buyer's parent of $57 million, A pre-tax gain of $54
million was recognized from this sale during the year ended December 31, 2007. On December 31, 2007, a transaction closed
whereby the Company sold another one of its broker-dealer subsidiaries to subsidiary management. The Company incurred a pre-
tax loss of 1 miltion from this transaction during the year ended December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, one broker-dealer
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subsidiary remained classified as held for sale. On March 31, 2008, a transacfion closed whereby the Company sold this held for
saie subsidiary to an unrelated third-parly. The Company recoghized an insignificant pre-tax gain from this fransaction during the
year ended December 31, 2008.

Operating resulfs of discontinued operations were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Revenues $13 $276
Benefits and expenses 31 22 300
Loss from discentinued operations (31) {9 (24)
Benefit from income taxes (1) 3) &)
Loss from discontinued operations, nef of taxes {20} {6) (16)
Net gain on sale of discontinued operations 53
Provision for income faxes 26
Net gair: on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes 27
Discontinued operations, net of taxes ($20) ($6) $11

Assets and liabilities from discontinued operations are included in other assets and cther liabllities, respectively. Assets related to
discontinued operations were zero and $6 miflion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, Liabilities related to
discontinued operations were zerc and $13 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

Components of DAC are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

{in Miliions)

Balancs, January 1 $5,012 $4.481 $4.248
Cumislative pre-tax effect of adoption of new

accounting principle (Note ) 7 (45)
Additions:

Capitalized during the year 777 752 852
Amortization:

Aliocated to commission expenses (448) (444) (432)

Allocated to operating expenses (129 (133) (118)
Total amortization {575) (577) (550)
Allocated to OCI (415) 356 {24)
Balance, December 31 $4,806 $5,012 $4 481

Duting the years ended December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007, the Company revised certain assumptions to deveiop EGPs for its
products subject to DAC amortization (Note 1), This resulted in increases in DAC amortization expense of $23 million and $20
million for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and a decrease in DAC amortization expense of $12 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007. The revised EGPs also resulted in an immaterfal decrease in URR amortization for the
year ended December 31, 2008, increased URR amortization of $2 milllon for the year ended December 31, 2008, and decreased
URR amortization: of $15 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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INVESTMENTS

The net carrying amount, gross unreaiized gains and losses, and estimated fair value of fixed maturity and equity securities
available for sale are shown befow. The naf carrying amount represents amortized cost adjusted for credit related OTTIs and
changes in the estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities affributable to the hedged risk in a fair value hedge. See Note 14 for
information on the Company's fair value measurement and disclosure.

Net
Camrying  Gross Unrealized  Estimated
Amount Gains Losses  Fair Value

{in Millions)

December 31, 2003:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. government authorities and agencies $105 $10 $115
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 833 12 $46 599
Foreign governments 389 42 431
Corporate securities 17,256 90% 308 17,853
RMBS 8,133 105 1,078 5,160
Commercial mortgage-backed securifies 1,160 42 23 1,179
Collateralized debt obligations 18 27 33 112
Other asset-backed securities b62 45 17 580
Total fixed maturity securities $26,356  $1,188  §1,505 $26,039
Perpetual preferred securities $324 $6 $55 $275
Other equity securities 1 2 3
Total equity securities $325 $8 $55 $278

Net
Carrying  Gross Unrealized  Estimated
Amount Gans  Losses  Fair Value

{In Millions)

December 31, 2008:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S, government autherities and agencies $98 $19 $117
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 512 5 $148 369
Foreign governments 21 41 7 245
Corporate securities 15,828 307 1,618 14,517
RMBS 6,133 105 1,306 4,932
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 1,191 15 106 1,100
Collateralized debt obligations 126 2 124
Other asset-backed securities 615 32 109 538
Total fixed maturity securifies $24 714 $524  $3,296 $21,942
Perpetual preferred securifies $385 $3 $174 $214
Other equity securities 2 2
Total equity securities $387 $3 $174 $216
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The Company has investments in perpetuai preferred securities that are issued primarily by European and U.S. banks. The net
carrying amount and estimated fair valus of the available for sale perpetual preferred securities was $451 million and $391 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2009, Included in these amounts are perpetual preferred securities carried in trusts with a net
carrying amount and estimated fair value of $127 million and $116 million, respectively, that are held in fixed matarifies and
included in the fables above in corporate securiies. Perpetuat preferred securities reporied as equity securifies available for sale
are presented in the fables above as perpefual preferred securifies.

The net carrying amount and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale as of December 31, 2008, by
confractual repayment date of principal, are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from confractual maturities as borrowers
may have the right to call cr prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalifes.

Net
Carrying Gross Unrealized  Estimated
Amount Gains Losses  Fair Value

{In Millions)

Due in one year or less $1,825 $68 $25 $1,868
Due after one year through five years 5,235 288 b4 5469
Due after five years through ten years 7,210 366 135 7,441
Due after fen years 4113 247 140 4,220

18,383 869 354 18,998
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securifies 7,973 219 1,151 7,041
Total $26,356  $1,188  $1,505  §26,039
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The folfowing tabies present the number of investments, estimated fair value and gross unrealized losses on investments where the
estimated fair value has declined and remained continuously below the net carrying amount for less than twelve months and for
twelve months or greater, Included in the tables are gross unrealized losses for fixed maturity securities avaitable for sale and
other securities, which include equity securities available for sale, cost method investments, and non-markefable securities.

Cecember 31, 2G09:

Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Corporate securities

RMBS

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Collateralized debt obligations

Other asset-backed securities

Total fixed maturity securities

Perpetual preferred securities
Other securities

Total other securities

Total

December 31, 2009

Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Corporate securities

RMBS

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Collateralized debt cbligations

Other asset-backed securities

Total fixed maturity securities

Perpetual preferred securities
Other securities

Total other securities

Total

Total
Gross
Estimated  Unrealized
Number Fair Value Losses
(In Miliions)

27 $383 346

442 4,539 308

307 3844 1,078

19 339 23

6 81 33

24 205 17

825 9,371 1,505

18 195 55

31 97 26

49 292 81

874 $9,663 $1,586

Less than 12 Months 12 Monihs or Greater
Gross Gross
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Number  Fair Vaiue Losses Number Fair Value Losses
(In Millions) {In Millions)

11 $116 $6 16 $267 $40
182 1,768 50 260 2773 258
53 488 84 254 3,346 984
6 100 5 13 239 18
5 59 32 1 2 1
24 205 17
257 2,539 187 568 6,832 1,318
18 195 55
16 54 9 15 43 17
16 54 9 33 238 72
273 $2,593 $196 601 $7,070 $1,390
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December 31, 2008:

Obligations of states and politica subdivisions
Foreign govemments

Corporate securities

RMBS

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Collateralized debt cbfigations

Other asset-backed securities

Total fixed maturity securities

Perpetual preferred securities
Ofher securilies

Total other securities

Total

December 31, 2008:

Obligations of states and pofitical subdivisions
Foreign governments

Corporate securities

RMBS

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Coilateralized debt obligations

Other asset-backed securities

Total fixed maturity securities

Perpetual preferred securities
Other securities

Total other securities

Total

Total

Gross
Estimated  Unrealized
Number Fair Value Losses
{In Miliions}
32 $276 $148
5 66 7
956 9,674 1,618
342 3,693 1,308
45 796 106
5 2 2
43 326 109
1,428 14,833 3,296
30 197 174
24 85 28
54 292 202
1,482 $15,125 $3,498
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater
Gross Gross
Estimated  Unrealized Estimated  Unrealized
Number  Fair Value Losses Number  Fair Value Losses
{In Millions) (In Millions}
29 $254 $144 3 $22 34
5 66 7
855 6,692 805 301 2,982 813
145 2,229 599 197 1464 807
31 569 74 14 227 32
4 1 2 1 1
25 203 47 18 123 62
894 10,014 1,778 534 4,819 1,518
7 29 16 23 168 158
18 89 27 6 6 1
25 118 43 29 174 159
919 $10,132 $1,821 563 34,903 $1,677

The Company has evaluated fixed maturity and other securities with gross unrealized losses and determined that the unrealized
fosses are temporary and that the Company does not intend to sell the securities and it is more likely than not that the Company will
not be required fo sell the securities before recovery of their net carrying amounts,

Prime mortgages are loans made to borrowers with streng credit histories, whereas sub-prime mortgage lending is the origination
of residential morigage loans to customers with weak credit profiles. Alt-A mortgage lending is the origination of residential
morfgage loans to customers who have good credit rafings, but have firmited documentation for their scurce of income or some
other standard input used fo underwrite the mortgage loan. The slowing U.S. housing market, greater use of affordability morigage
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products and refaxed underwriting standards by some originators for these loans has led fo higher delinguency and loss rates,
especially within the 2007 and 2006 vintage years.

The table below illustrates the breakdown of non-agency RMBS and commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) by
investment rating from independent rafing agencies and vintage year of the underlying collateral as of December 31, 2008,

Net Rating as % of Vintage Breakdown

Carrying  Estimated Net Carrying 2004 and

Rating Amount  Fair Value Amount Prior 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008
{$ In Mifiions)

Prime RMBS:
AAA $960 $878 29% 21% % 1%
AA 320 279 9% 4% 2% 3%
A 252 208 8% 1% 2% 3% 2%
BAA 525 402 16% 2% % 6% 1%
BA and below 1,264 893 38% 8% 8%  12%
Total $3,321 $2.660 100% 28%  28% 3% 15% 0% 0%
Alt-A RMBS;
AAA $58 $52 8% 8%
AA 13 16 1% 1%
A 13 9 1% 1%
BAA 24 23 3% 1% 2%
BA and below 843 556 89% 0%  27%  52%
Total 3951 $656 100% 8%  H% 29%  52% 0% 0%
Sub-prime RMBS:
AAA $230 $179 52% 52%
AA 97 73 22% 22%
A 21 13 5% 5%
BAA 42 32 9% 9%
BA and below 53 37 12% 1% 9% 1% 1%
Total $443 $334 100% 80%  18% 1% 1% 0% 0%
CMBS:
AAA $1,017 $1,054 88% 56% 3% 15% 1% 4%
AA 66 61 6% 4% 2%
A 37 32 3% 3%
BAA 28 22 2% 2%
BA 12 10 1% 1%
Total $1,160 $1179 100% 73% 3% 0% 17% 1% 8%

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has received advances of $1.5 bilion from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of
Topeka and has issued funding agreements to the FHLB of Topeka. Funding agreements are used as an alternative source of
funds for the Company's spread lending business and the funding agreement liabilities are included in generaf account policyholder
account balances. Assets with an estimated fair vaiue of $1.8 billion as of December 31, 2009 are in a custodial account pledged
as collateral for the funding agreements. The Company is required to purchase stock in FHLB of Topeka each &me it receives an
advance. As of December 31, 2008, the Company holds $76 million of FHLB of Topeka stock.

PL&A is a member of FHLB of San Francisco. As of December 31, 2009, no assets are pledged as collateral. As of December 31,
2008, the Company hoids $25 milfior: of FHLB of San Francisco stock.
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The Company had a securifies lending program administered by one of the largest U.S. financial insfitutions spegializing in
securiffes tending and short-term fixed-income asset management. This securities lending program was terminated in February
2009. Securities foaned were zerc as of December 31, 2008.

Major categories of investment income and related investment expense are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

(i Millions)
Fixed maturity securities $1.448  $1467  $1,492
Equity securities 20 23 26
Mortgage loans 297 289 248
Real estate 92 86 68
Policy loans 229 223 208
Partnerships and joint ventures {78) 21 170
Other 12 21 44
Gross investment income 2,020 2,130 2,257
Investment expense 168 136 137
Net investment income $1,862 $1,894 $2,120

The components of net realized investment gain (ioss) are as follows:

Years Endead December 31,
2009 2008 2007

{In Miflions}

Fixed maturity securities:

Gross gains on sales $35 $100 $117

(3ross losses on sales {18 (37) (23)

Cther 12 4 20
Total fixed maturity securities 29 87 114
Equity securities:

Gross gains on sales 5

Gross losses on sales {11)

Other 2 ]
Total equity securities 9 1 5
Trading securities 20 (22) &)
Variable annuity GLB embedded derivatives 2,211 (2,775) (222)
Variable annuity GL.B policy fees 147 108 78
Variable annuity derivatives - interest rate swaps {104) 402
Variable annuity derivatives - total return swaps (1,542) 646 13
Equity put options (672) 853 31
Synthetic GIC policy fees 25 15
QOther derivatives 45 (62) {11}
Other 3 18 62
Total $153 ($749) $69
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As a result of the significant disruption in the housing, financial and credit markets, the OTTi charges recorded during the year
ended December 31, 2009 were primarily related to the Company's exposure to RMBS, certain structured securities and direct
exposure to corporate securities. The fable below summarizes the OTTis by security type (In Millions):

Recordedin  included in

Eamings OCI Total

Year ended December 31, 2008:

Corporate securities $63 W $2 $65
RMBS 116 35 431
Collateralized debt obligations 66 13 7%
Perpetual preferred securilies 26 26
Cther investments 40 40
Total OTTls $311 $330 $641
Year ended Dacember 31, 2008:

Corporate securities $70

RMBS 227

Collateralized debt obligations 156

Cther asset-backed securities 1

Perpetual preferred securifies 68

Other eguity securities 58

Total OTTls $580

) Included are $29 million of OTT! recorded in earnings on perpelual preferred securities carried in frusts,

in accordance with additional guidance under the Codification's Investments — Debt and Equity Securities Topic effective January 1,
2009, the Company began recording the credit loss portion of OTT! adjustments in earnings and the portion related to other factors
in OC1. The tabie below details the amount of OTTls attributable to credit losses recorded in earnings for which a portion was
recognized in OCH (In Millions).

Cumulative credit loss, January 1, 2009 $88
Additions for credit impairments recognized on;
Securities not previously other than temporarily impaired 48
Securities previously other than temporarily impaired 106
Total additions 154

Reductions for credit impairments previously recognized on:

Securities that matured or were sold (40)
Securities dug fo an increase in expected cash flows and time value of cash flows {2)
Total subtractions (42)
Cumulative credit loss, December 31, 2009 $200
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The table below presents separately the gross unrealized losses on investments for which OTT has been recorded in earnings in
current or prior periods and the gross unrealized losses on temporarily impaired investments for which no OTT| has been recorded.

Gross Unrealized Losses

o1l Non-QTTI
Investments Investments  Toial
(in Millions)
December 31, 2009;
Chligations of states and pofitical subdivisions $46 $46
Corporate securities $2 306 308
RMBS 328 750 1,078
CMBS 23 23
Coltateralized debt obligations 32 1 33
Other asset-backed securifies 17 17
Total fixed maturity securities $362 $1,143 $1,505
Perpetual preferred securities $55 $55
Total equity securities 555 $55

The change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments in available for sale and frading securities is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2000 2008 2007

{In Millions)
Available for sale securities:
Fixed maturity $2455  {$3,269) {$211)
Equity 124 {143) (49)
Total available for sale securities $2,579  ($3.412) {$260)
Trading securities $26 ($19) ($2)

Trading securities totaled $206 mitlion and $114 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The cumulative
unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities held as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $7 million and ($19) mitiion,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, fixed maturity securities of $12 million were on deposit with state nsurance departments to
satisfy regulatory requirements.

Mortgage loans totaled $6,577 million and $5,622 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respeciively. Mortgage loans are
collateralized by commercial real estate properties primarily located throughout the U.S, As of December 31, 2008, $1,122 million,
$963 miliion, $785 million, $554 million and $369 million were located in California, Washington, Florida, Texas and Maryland,
respectively. As of December 31, 2009, $543 million was located in Canada. There were no defaults during the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2008, and 2007. The Company did not have any morigage loans with accrued interest more than 180 days
past due as of December 31, 2009 or 2008. As of December 31, 2008, mortgage loan investments with one commercial sponsor
exceeded 10% of stockholder's equity. The carrying value of these investments was $725 million as of December 31, 2009

investments in real estate totaled $574 million and $459 mitlion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respactively. There were no
real estate write-downs during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
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8.

10.

AIRCRAFT LEASING PORTFOLIO, NET

Alircraft leasing portfolio, net, consisted of the following:

December 31,
2009 2008
{In Miffions}

Aircraft consolidated from VIEs $3,081 $3,099
Cther aircraft 3,217 2,687

8,298 5,766
Accumulated depreciation 994 767
Aircraft leasing portfolio, net $5,304 $4,999

As of December 31, 2009, domestic and foreign future minimum rentals scheduled to be received under the noncancelable portion
of operating leases are as follows (/n Millions);

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter
Domestic $23 $19 $15 S $13 $28
Foreign 526 448 369 274 214 390
Total operating leases $549 $467 $384 $287 $227 $418

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, aircraft with a carrying amount of $4,954 million and $4,366 mitlion, respectively, were
assigned as collateral to secure debt (Notes 4 and 13).

There were no impairments recorded during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, ACG recognized pre-tax gains on the sale of aircradt of zero, zero and
$18 million, respectively, which are included in other income.

in December 2007, ACG sold its enfire ownership interest in an unconsolidated affiiate. The transaction resulted ir a pre-tax gain
of $17 million, which is included in net realized investment gain {Joss) for the year ended Dacember 31, 2007.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company primarily utilizes derivative insiruments to manage its exposure fo interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk,
and equity risk. Derivafive instruments are also used to manage the durafion mismatch of assels and liabilities. The Company
utilizes a variety of derivafive instruments including swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts, caps, fioors and opfions. In
addition, certain insurance products offered by the Company contain features that are accounted for as derivatives,

Accounting for derivatives and hedging activifies requires companies to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or
liabikities at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial condifion. In accordance with zccounting for derivatives and
hedging activities, the Company applies hedge accounting by designafing derivative instruments as either fair value or cash flow
hedges on the daie the Company enters into a derivative contract. The Company formatly documents at inception all relationships
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as ifs risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. n this documentation, the Company specifically identifies the asset, liability, firm commitment, or forecasted
transaction that has been designated as a hedged ifem and states how the hedging instrument is expected to hedge the risks
related fo the hedged item. The Company formally assesses and measures effectiveness of its hedging relationships both at the
hedge incepfion and on an ongoing hasis in accordance with its risk management policy.

DERIVATIVES DESIGNATED AS CASH FLOW HEDGES

The Company primarily uses foreign currency interest rate swaps, forward starting interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps to
manage its exposure to variability in cash flows due to changes in foreign currencles and the benchmark interest rate. These cash
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flows include those associated with existing assets and liabififies, as well a5 the forecasted interest cash flows refated o anticipated
investment purchases and liability issuances. Such anticipated investment purchases and liability issusances are considerad
probable fo ccour and are generaily completed within 22 years of the inception of the hedge.

Ferelgn currency interest rate swap agreements are used to convert a fixed or floating rate, foreign-denominated asset or liability to
a U.S. doflar fixed rate asset or liability. The foreign currency interest rate swaps invoive the exchange of an initial principal amount
in two currencies, and the agreement to re-exchange the currencies at a future date at an agreed exchange rate. There are also
periodic exchanges of interest payments in the two currencies at specified intervals, calcuiated using agreed upon rates and the
exchanged principal amounts, The main currencies that the Company hedges are the Euro, British Pound, and Canadian Dollar.

Forward starting interest rate swaps are used to hedge the variabllity in the future inferest receipts or payments stemming from the
anticipated purchase of fixed rate securifies or issuance of fixed rate liabilities due fo changes in benchmark interest rates. These
derivatives are predominantly used to lock in interest rate levels fo match future cash flow characteristics of assets and liabilities.
Forward starfing interest rate swaps involve the exchange, at specified intervals, of interest payments resulting from the difference
between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an underlying notional amount fo begin at a specified
date in the future for a specified pericd of time. Generally, no ¢ash is exchanged af the outset of the contract and no principal
payments are made by either party. The notional amounts of the contracts do not represent fulure cash requirements, as the
Company intends to close out open positions prior to their effective dates.

Interest rate swap agreements are used to convert a floating rate asset or fiability fo a fixed rate fo hedge the variability of cash
flows of the hedged asset or liability due to changes in benchmark interest rates. These derivatives are predominantly used to
better match the cash fiow characteristics of certain assets and ligbilities. These agreements invoive the exchange, at specified
intervals, of interest payments resulting from the difference between fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts calculated by
reference fe an underlying notional amount. Generally, no cash is exchanged at the outset of the contract and no principal
payments are made by either party.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effactive portion of changes In the estimated fair value of the derivative
is recorded in OCI and recognized in earnings when the hedged ifem affects sarnings, and the ineffective portion of changes in the
estimated fair value of the derivative is recorded in net realized nvestment gain (loss). For the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, the Company had net losses of zero, zero and $21 miltion, respectivaly, reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (AQCH fo earnings resulting from the discontinuance of cash fiow hedges due to forecasted transactions
that were no longer prebable of cocurring. Over the next iwelve months, the Company anficipates that $24 million of deferred
losses on derivative instruments in AOCH will be reclassified to earnings. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
all of the Company's hedged forecasted transactions were dstermined fo be probable of occurring.

The Company had the following outstanding derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:

Notional Amount

December 31,
2009 2008
{In Miftions}
Foreign currency interest rate swaps $5,099 $6,488
Forward starfing interest rate swaps 1,060 1,535
Interest rate swaps 3,910 4,384

Notional amount represents a standard of measurement of the volume of derivatives, Notional amount is not a quantification of
market risk or credit risk and is not recorded on the consolidated statements of financial condition. Nofional amounts generatly
represent those amotnts used {o calculate confraciual cash flows to be exchanged and are not paid or received, excapt for certain
contracts such as currency swaps.
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DERIVATIVES DESIGNATED AS FAIR VALUE HEDGES

Interest rate swap agreements are used fo convert a fixed rate asset or liabiity to a floafing rate to hedge the changes in estimated
fair value of the hedged asset or liability due to changes in benchmark interest rates. These derivafives are used primarily to
closely match the duration of the assets supporting specific liabilities.

When a derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the estimated fair value of the derivative and the hedged item
are recognized in net realized investment gain {Joss). The change in value of the hedged item associated with the risk being
hedged is reflected as an adjustment fo the carrying amount of the hedged item. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, hedge ineffectiveness related fo designated fair value hedges reflected in net realized investment gain (loss) was $5
million, {$1) million and zero, respectively. No componhent of the hedging instrument's estimated fair value is excluded from the
determination of effectiveness.

The Company had the following outstanding derivatives designated as fair value hedges:

Notional Amount

December 31,
2009 2008
(in Millions)
Foreign currency interest rate swaps $13 $18
Interest rate swaps 1,658 1,264

DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

The Company has certain insurance and reinsurance contracts that are considered to have embedded derivatives. When it is
determined that the embedded derivative possesses economic and risk characteristics that are not clearly and closely related to
those of the host confract and that a separate instrument with the same terms would qualify as a derivative instrument, it is
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a stand-alone derivative. The changes in the estimated fair vaiue of the
derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and the periodic cash flows are recognized in net realized investment gain
{loss).

The Company offers a rider on certain variabie annuity contracts that guarantees net principal over a ten-year hoiding period, as
well as riders on certain variable annuity contracts that guarantee a minimum withdrawal benefit over specified periods, subject fo
certain restrictions. These variable annuity GLBs are considered embedded derivatives and are recorded in future policy benefits.

GLBs on variable annuity contracts issued between January 1, 2007 and March 31, 2009 are partially covered by reinsurance.
These reinsurance arrangements are used to offset a portion of the Company’s exposure to the GLBs for the lives of the host
variable annuity contracts issued. The ceded portion of the GLBs is considered an embedded derivative and is recorded in other
assets or other liabilities as either a reinstrance recoverable or reinsurance payable.

The Company employs hedging strategies (variable annuity derivatives} to mitigate equity risk associated with the GLBs not
covered by reinsurance. The Company ufilizes total return swaps based upon the S&P 500 Index (S&P 500} primarily to
economically hedge the equity risk of the mortality and expense fees in its variable annuity products. These contracts provide
periodic payments to the Company in exchange for the fotal return of the S&P 500 in the form of a payment or recsipt, depending
on whether the return relative to the index on trade date is positive or negative, respectively. Payments are recognized in realized
investment loss and receipts are recognized in realized investment gain. The Company has used interest rate swaps to hedge
fluctuations in the valuation of GLBs as a result of changes in risk free rates. These agreements involved the exchange, at
specified intervals, of interest payments resuifing from the difference between fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts
calcutated by reference to an underlying notional amount,

The Company also uses equity put options {o hedge equity and credit risks. These equity put options involve the exchange of
periodic fixed rate payments for the retur, at the end of the option agreement, of the equity index below a specified strike price.
Generally, no cash is exchanged at the outset of the contract and no principal payments are made by either party.

The Company offers equity indexed universal life insurance products, which credits the tofal return of the S&P 500 to the policy

cash value. A policyholder may allocate the policy's net accumuiated value to one or a combination of the following: fixed return
account, one year indexed account capped at 12%, or a five year indexed account,
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The Company utilizes one year European style S&P 5G0 call opfions to hedge the annual exposure of the indexed life insurance
product's index growth rate for the one year indexed account. The Company alse purchases five year European style S&P 500
Asian cafl options to hedge the five year exposure of the indexed life insurance product's index growth rate for the five year indexed
account.

The Company issues synthetic GICs to Employee Refirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) qualified defined contribution
empioyee benefit plans (ERISA Pian). The ERISA Plan uses the contracts in its stable value fixed income option. The Company
receives a fee for providing book value accounting for the ERISA Pian stable value fixed income option. The Company does not
manage the assets underlying synthetic GICs. In the event that plan participant elections exceed the estimated fair value of the
assets or if the contract Is terminated and at the end of the fermination period the book value under the contract exceeds the
estimated fair value of the assets, then the Company is required to pay the ERISA Plan the difference between book value and
estimated fair value. The Company mitigates the investment risk through pre-approval and monitoring of the investment guidetines,
requiring high quality investments and adjustments fo the plan crediting rates to compensate for unreaiized losses in the portfolios.

The Company uses credit default swaps in combination with cash instruments to reproduce the investment characteristics of certain
investments. Credit default swaps involve the recelpt or payment of fixed amounts at specific intervals in exchange for the
assumption of or protection from potential credit events associated with the underlying security. The Company writes credit default
swaps for which a payment is delivered if the underlying security of the derivative defaults. The maximum potential amounts of
future payments under credit default swaps were $50 millior: and $95 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As
of December 31, 2000 and 2008, the fair value of credit derivatives sold by the Company was ($17) million and ($38) million,
respectively. The terms for these instruments range from five to seven years.

The Company had the following outstanding derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Notional Amount
December 31,

2009 2008
{In Miflions)
Variable annuify GLB embedded derivafives $36,408 $33,455
Variable annuity derivatives - interest rate swaps 2,150
Variable annuity derivatives - total return swaps 4,456 2437
Variable annuily GLB reinsurance contracts 14,878 13,274
Equity put options 5,267 5,173
Synthetic GiCs 23,993 23,85
Interest rate swaps 178 535
Foreign currency interest rate swaps 398 460
Other 1,021 849

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT IMPACT
Derivative instruments are recorded in the Company's consolidated statements of financial condition at fair value and are presented

as assets or liabilities determined by calculating the net position for each derivative counterparty by legai entity, taking into account
income accruals and net cash collateral,
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The following fable summarizes the gross asset or liability derivative fair value and excludes the impact of offsetting asset and
liability positions held with the same counterparty, cash collateral payables and receivables and income accruals. See Note 14.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments;
Foreign currency interest rate swaps

Forward stariing interest rate swap agreements
Interest rate swaps

Total derivatives designated as hedging insfruments

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Variable annuity derivatives - interest rate swaps

Variable annuity derivatives - total return swaps
Equity put options
Foreign currency interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps
Other
Embedded derivatives:
Variabte annuity GLB embedded derivatives
(including reinsurance confracts}
Synthetic GICs

Other
Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Total derivatives

Asset Derivafives Liabifity Derivatives
Estimated Fair Value Estimated Fair Value
December 31, December 31,
2000 2008 2009 2008
(In Millions) {In Millions)
$177 $308 $230 $87
69 146 © 154 423
34 gg " 23
8 232 © 45
32 32 W 106 124
13 72 ® 152 337
333 878 642 1,039
232
6 i 60 33
55 © 4 53
329 350 16
41 587 © 14
21 1 W
15 0 13
9 18 O 2 3
1 1@ 39
18 2 O 23 1
26 1@ 38
52 429 @ 754 3,342
3
44 8
503 1,851 917 3,533
$836 $2,729 $1,550 $4,572

Location on the consclidated statements of financial condition:
™ Other investments * Other assets * Future policy benefits * Policyholder account balances © Other liabilities
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Net cash collateral received from counterparfies was $237 milfion and $1,392 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2008,
respectively. This unrestricted cash collateral is included in cash and cash equivalents and the obligation fo return it is netted
against the estimated fair value of derivatives in other investments or other fiabilities. Net cash coliateral pledged to counterparties
was $137 million and $66 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. A receivable representing the right to call this
collateral back from the counterparty is netted against the estimated fair value of derivatives in other invesiments or other liabilities.
ff the net estimated fair value exposure to the counferparty is positive, the amount is reflected in other investments, whereas, if the
net estimated fair value exposure fo the counterparty is negative, the estimated fair value is included in future policy benefits or
other liabilities, depending on the nature of the derivative.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had aiso accepted collateral consisting of various securities with an estimated
fair value of $14 million and $147 million, respectively, which are heid in separate custodial accounts. The Company is permitted
by contract o sell or repledge this collateral and as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, zero and $15 million, respectively, of the
coflateral had been repledged. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company provided collateral in the form of various
securities of zero and $17 million, respectively, which are included in fixed maturity securities. The counterparties are permitted by
contract fo sell or repledge this collateral,

The following table summarizes amounts recorded in net realized investment gain (loss) for derivatives designated as fair value
hedges. Gains and losses inclide the changes in estimated fair value of the derivatives and the hedged items, and amounts
realized on terminafions. The net of the amounts presented for each year represent the ineffective portion of the hedge. The
amounts presented do not include the periodic net coupen sefflements of the derivatives or the coupon income (expense) related to
ihe hedged item.

Derivatives in fair value hedges:
Foreign currency interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps

Total

Gain (Loss)
Recognized in
income on Derivatives

Gain {Loss)
Recognized in
Income on Hedged Items

Years Ended Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
2008 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
(In Mitlions} (In Millions)
{81) {$1) $1 $2

$97 (135 (56)

($93) 134 56

897 (3138) (357

{$93)  $135 $58
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The following table summarizes amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements for derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges. Gain and losses include the changes in esfimated fair value of the derivatives and amounts realized on terminations, The
amounts presented do not include the periodic net coupon settlements of the derivatives,

Derivatives in cash flow hedges:
Foreign currency interest rate swaps

Forward starting interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps

Futures

Totat

Gain (Loss) Gain {i.oss) Gain {Loss)
Recognized in Reclassified from Recognized in Income
OCl on Derivatives AQClinto Income on Derivatives
{Effective Portion) {Effective Porfion) (Ineffective Porfion)
Years Ended Years Ended Years Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2000 2008 2007 2000 2008 2007
{In Millions) {In Mitlions} {in Millions)
$42  $66  ($97)  (3t04) ($368) ($3) O g1 @
9 14 18 @
(254) 336 33 4 @ gy 3 (2) M
(1) @
an - m 0®
66  (146)  (83) 9 (1o 9 (7) ”’
9 3 @
(18) 3 @
1 3 4 @
(1) (1@
($146) 8$256 ($147)  (8114) (§347) $15 $8 ($4)  (81)

Location on the consolidated statements of operations:
™ Net realized investment gain (foss) ** Net investment income @ Interest credited to policyholder account balances
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The following table summarizes amounts recorded in the consofidated financial statements for derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments. Gains and fosses include the changes in estimated fair value of the derivatives and amounts realized on
terminations. The amounts presented do not include the periodic net coupon settlements of {$1,476) miliion, $639 million and ($41)
million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respecfively, which are recorded in net realized investment gain
(loss), :

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in
income on Derivatives

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Variable annuity derivatives - interest rate swaps ($168)  $386 @
Variable annuity derivatives - total return swaps (102) (55) s28
Equity put options (580) 927 55
Foreign currency interest rate swaps (83 12 (2y
(1) 0 ®
Interest rate swaps (8) 2 O
(1) 9 "
Cther 44 (56) o
Embedded detivatives:
Variable annuity GiL.B embedded derivafives {including
reinsurance contracts) 2,211 {2,775) (222) W
Other embedded derivatives {14) 13 7 W
Total $1381  (31566)  (3139)

Location on the consclidated statements of operations:
" Net realized investment gain (loss) “ Interest credited to policyholder account balances

CREDIT EXPOSURE AND CREDIT RiSK RELATED CONTINGENT FEATURES

Credit exposure is measured on a counterparty basis as the net positive aggregate estimated fair value, net of collateral received, if
any. The credit exposure for over the counter derivatives as of December 31, 2009 was $126 million. The maximum exposure to
any single counterparty was $41 million at December 31, 2009.

For all derivative contracts, excluding embedded derivative contracts such as variable annuity GLBs and synthetic GiCs, the
Company enters into master agreements that may include a termination event clause associated with Pacific Life's insurer financial
strength ratings assigned by certain independent rating agencles. If Pacific Life's insurer financial strength rating falls below a
specified level, as defined within each counterparty master agreement or, in most cases, if one of the rating agencies ceases to
provide an insurer financial strength rating, the counterparty can terminate the master agreement with payment due based on the
estimated fair value of the underlying derivatives. As of December 31, 2009, Pacific Life's insurer financial strength raings were
above the specified level.

If Pacific Life's insurer financial strength rating were to fall below the next investment grade from its current standing, the
counterparties to the derivafive instruments could request immediate and ongoing full ovemight collateralization on derivative
instruments in net fiability positions. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit risk related contingent features
that are in a fiability position on December 31, 2009, is $232 million for which the Company has posted coliateral of $137 million in
the normat course of business. If certain of Pacific Life's insurer financial strength ratings were to fall one notch as of December 31,
2008, the Company would have been required to post an additional $14 million of collateral to ifs counterparties.

The Company attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing with creditworthy counterparties, establishing risk control limits,
executing legally enforceable master nefling agreements, and obtaining collateral where appropriate. In addition, each
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counterparty is reviewed fo evaluate its financial stability before entering into each agreement and througheut the period that the
financial instrument is owned. A#l of the Company's credit exposure from derivative contracts is with investment grade
counterparties. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company has incurred losses of $4 million, included in net realized
investment gain {loss), on derivative Instruments due to counterparty default related to the bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers Special
Finance. These losses were a result of the termination of all remaining open positions with Lehman counterparties.

POLICYHOLDER LIABILITIES
POLICYHOLDER ACCOUNT BALANCES

The detall of the liability for policyholder account balances is as follows:

December 31,
2009 2008
(In Millions)
Universal life $19,298 $18,729
Annuity and deposit liabitities 7,109 4515
Funding agreements 5,240 7,880
GICs 2,337 1,538
Total $33,084 $32,670
FUTURE POLICY BENEFITS
The detail of the liability for fulure policy benefits is as follows:
December 31,
2009 2008
(In Miflions)
Annuity reserves $4,980 $4.455
Variable annuity GLE embedded derivatives 754 3,342
URR 734 925
.ife insurance 365 350
Closed Block liabilities 306 311
Policy benefits payable 260 433
Other 24 15
Total $7.403 $9,841

SEPARATE ACCOUNTS AND VARIABLE ANNUITY GUARANTEED BENEFIT FEATURES

The Company issues variable annuily contracts through separate accounts for which investment income and investment gains and
losses accrue directly to, and investment risk is borne by, the contract holder {fraditional variable annuities). These contracts also
include various types of guaranteed minimum death benefit (GMDB) and GLB features. For a discussion of certain GLBs
accounted for as embedded derivatives, see Note 9.

The GMDBs provide a specified minimum return upon death. Many of these death benefits are spousal, whereby a death benefit
will be paid upon death of the first spouse, The survivor has the oplion to ferminafe the contract or continue it and have the death
benefit paid into the contract and a second death benefit paid upon the survivor's death. The GMDB features inciude those where
the Company contractually guarantees to the contract holder either (a) return of no less than fotal deposits made {o the contract
less any partial withdrawals (retumn of net deposits), (b} the highest cantract value on any confract anniversary date through age 80
minus any payments or withdrawais following the contract anniversary {anniversary contract value), or {c) the highest of contract
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value on certain specified dates or total deposits made to the confract iess any partiaf withdrawals plus a minimum return (minimum
refurn).

The guaranteed minimum income benefit (GMIB) is a GLB that provides the contract holder with a guaranteed annuitization value
after 10 years. Annuitization value is generally based on deposits adjusted for withdrawals plus a minimum return. In general, the
GMIB requires contract hotders fo invest in an approved asset allocafion sfrategy.

Information in the event of death on the various GMDB features outstanding was as follows (the Company's variable annuity
confracts with guarantees may offer more than one type of guarantee in each coniract; therefore, the amounts fisted are not
mutually exclusive):

December 31,
2009 2008
(8 In Miliions)
Return of net deposits
Separate account value $46,884  $36,672
Net amount at risk 4017 11,557
Average attained age of confract hoiders 61years 61 years
Anniversary contract value
Separate account value $16,483  $13465
Net amount at risk 2,541 5750
Average attained age of contract holders B3 years 62 years
Minimum return
Separate account value $1.241 $1,107
Net amount at rigk ** 620 898
Average atfained age of contract holders Bbyears 64 years

() Represents the amount of death benefit in excess of the current account balance as of December 31.

information regarding GMIB features outstanding is as follows:

Cecember 31,
2009 2008
($ In Miltions)
Separate account value $2.675 $2.230
Average attained age of contract helders b8 years 57 years

The determinatior of GMDB and GMIB liabilities is based on models that involve a range of scenarios and assumptions, including
those regarding expected market rates of return and volatility, confract surrender rates and mortality experience. The following table
summarizes the GMDB and GMIB liabilities, which are recorded in future policy benefits, and changes in these liabiliies, which are
reflected in policy benefits paid or provided:

December 31, December 31,
2009 2608 2009 2008
GMDB GMIB
(In Miflions) (In Miltions)

Balance, beginning of year $11% $48 $62 $24
Changes in reserves (1 119 {23) 38
Benefits paid {108) {48) (1

Balance, end of year $0 $119 $38 $62
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Reinsurance recoverables related to GMDB reserves totaled zero and $3 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
which are included with other reinsurance receivables in other assets. Reinsurance recoverables refated to GMIB reserves are not
significant,

Variabie annuity confracts with guarantees were invested in separate account investment options as follows:

December 31,
2009 2008
{In Millions)
Asset type
Domestic equity $25,760 $17.927
International equity 8,728 5476
Bonds 13,775 12,182
Money market 621 1,087
Total separate account value $46,884 $38,672
13. DEBT
Debt consists of the following:
December 31,
20609 2008
{ln Millions)
Short-term debt:
Credit facility recourse only to ACG $105 $150
Total shori-ferm debt 3105 $150
Long-ferm debt:
Surplus notes $1,150 $150
Fair value adjustment for derivatives and
hedging activiies {(13) 55
Non-recourse long-term debt:
Debt recourse only to ACG 1,636 1,271
ACG non-recourse debt 761 687
Other non-recourse debt 121 121
ACG VIE debt (Note 4) 1,975 2173
Other VIE debt (Note 4) 2 2
Total long-term debt $5,632 $4,459
SHORT-TERM DEBT

ACG has a revolving credit agreement with a bank for a $105 miltion borrowing facility, which was entered into in May 2009.
Interest is at variable rates and the facility mafures in April 2010. The amount cutstanding as of December 31, 2009 was $105
miflion, bearing an interest rate of 4.8%. As of and during the year ended December 31, 2009, ACG was in compliance with the
debt covenants related to this facility. This credit facility is recourse only to ACG.

ACG had a revolving credit agreement with a bank for a $150 million borrowing facility, which was entered into in April 2008. The

amount cutstanding as of December 31, 2008 was $150 million, bearing an interest rate of 2.3%. This credit facility matured and
was repaid In May 2009.
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Pacific Life maintains a $700 miilion commercial paper program. There was no commercial paper debt outstanding as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, In addition, Pacific Life has a bank revolving credit facility of $400 million maturing in 2012 that
serves as & back-up fne of credit for the commercial paper program. This facility had no debt cutstanding as of December 31,
2009 and 2008. As of and during the year ended December 31, 2009, Pacific Life was in compliance with the debt covenants
related to this facility.

PL&A maintains a $40 million reverse repurchase fine of credit with a commercial bank. These borrowings are at variable rates of
interest based on collateral and market conditions. There was no debt outstanding in connection with this line of credit as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Pacific Life is a member of the FHLB of Topeka. Pacific Life has approval from the FHLB of Topeka to advance amounts up to 40%
of Pacific Life's statutory general account assets provided it has available collateral and is it compliance with debt covenant
restrictions and insurance laws and regulations, There was no debt outstanding with the FHLB of Topeka as of December 31, 2008
and 2008. The Company had $127 miliion and $1.0 biffion of addifional funding capacity from eligible collateral as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

PL&A is a member of the FHLB of San Francisco. PL&A is eligible to borrow from the FHLEB of San Francisco amounts based on a
percentage of statutory capital and surolus and could borrow up to amounts of $102 million. Of this amount, haif, or $51 million,
can be borrowed for terms other than overnight, out to a maximum term of nine months. These borrowings are at variable rates of
interest, collateralized by certain mortgage loan and government securities. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, PL&A had no
debt outstanding with the FHLB of San Francisco.

LONG-TERM DEBT

In June 2009, Pacific Life issued $1.0 biliion of surplus notes at a fixed interest rate of 9.25%, maturing cn June 45, 2038. Interest
is payable semiannually on June 15 and December 15. Pacific Life may redeem the 9.25% surplus notes at ifs opfion, subject fo
the approval of the Nebraska Director of Insurance for such optional redemption. The 9.25% surplus notes are unsecured and
subordinated to all present and future senior indebtedness and policy claims of Pacific Life. All future paymenis of interest and
principal on the 8.26% surplus notes can be made only with the prior approval of the Nebraska Director of Insurance. The
Company entered into interest rate swaps converting $650 million of these surplus notes to variable rate notes based upon the
London interBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The inferest rate swaps were designated as fair vaiue hedges of these surplus nofes and
the changss in fair value of the hedged surplus notes associated with changes in interest rates are reflected as an adjustment to
their carrying amount. This adjusiment to the carrying amount of the surplus notes, which decreased long-term debt by $35 million
as of December 31, 2009, is offset by a fair value adjustment which has also been recorded for the interest rate swap derivative
instruments.

Pacific Life has $150 million of surplus nofes outstanding at a fixed interest rate of 7.9%, maturing on December 30, 2023. interest
is payable semiannually on June 30 and December 30, The 7.9% surpius notes may not be redeemed at the oplicn of Pacific Life
or any holder of the surplus notes. The 7.9% surplus notes are unsecured and subordinated to all present and future senior
indebtedness and policy claims of Pacific Life. Al fufure payments of interest and principal on the 7.9% surplus notes can be made
only with the prior approval of the Nebraska Director of Insurance. The Company entered into interest rate swaps converting these
surplus notes to variable rate notes based upon the LIBOR. The interest rate swaps were designated as fair value hedges of these
surplus notes and the changes in fair value of the hedged surplus notes associated with changes in interest rafes are reflacted as
an adjustment to their carrying amount. This adjustment to the carrying amount of the surplus notes, which increased long-term
debt by $22 million and $55 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, is offset by a fair value adjustment which has
also been recorded for the interest rate swap derivative insiruments,

ACG enters into varicus ferm loans with third-parties. Interest on these loans is payable monthly, quarterly or semi-annuaily and
ranged from 0.3% to 6.8% as of December 31, 2009 and from 1.7% to £.8% as of December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2009,
$1,636 miliion was olitstanding on these loans with maturities ranging from 2010 to 2021. Principal paymenis due over the next
twelve months are $287 million. As of December 31, 2008, $1,271 milion was outstanding on these loans. These loans are
recourse only to ACG.

ACG enters into various acquisition facilifies and bank loans fo acguire aircraft. Inferest on these facilities and loans accrues at

variable rates, is payable monthly and ranged from 1.6% fo 3.2% as of December 31, 2009 and from 2.0% to 3.0% as of December
31, 2008. As of December 31, 2009, $761 million was outstanding on these facilities and loans with maturities ranging from 2010
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to 2014, As of December 31, 2008, $687 million was outstanding on these facilities and loans. These facilities and loans are non-
recourse io the Company.

ACG had a loan with Pacific Asset Funding, LL.C, a whelly owned subsidiary of Pacific LifaCorp, for $50 million, which was entered
into in Aprit 2009, Interest was at variable rafes and the loan was repaid in November 2009.

Certain subsidiaries of Pacific Asset Holding 1.L.C (PAH), a wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific Life, entered info various term loans
with third-parties. Interest on these loans accrues at fixed rates, is payable monthly and ranged from 5.8% to 6.2% as of December
31, 2009 and 2008. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, there was $87 million outstanding on these foans with maturities ranging
from 2010 to 2012. Principal payments due over the next twelve months are $32 million. All of these loans are secured by real
estate properfies and are non-recourse to the Company.

Ceriain subsidiaries of PAH also entered into various property improvement loans with third-parties for a maximum loan balance of
$43 million. Inferest on these loans accrues at variable rates, is payable monthly and ranged from 1.4% and 2.0% as of December
31, 2009 and 2.6% fo 3.6% as of December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, there was $34 million outstanding on
these loans with maiurities ranging from 2610 to 2011, Principal payments due over the next tweive months are $26 milllon. Al of
these loans are secured by real estate properties and are non-recourse to the Company.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Codification's Fair Value Measurements and Disciosures Topic establishes a hierarchy that pricritizes the inputs of valuation
methods used to measure fair value for financial assels and financial liabilities that are carried at fair velue. The hierarchy consists
of the following three levels that are prioritized based on observable and unobservable inpuis.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. Level 1 financial instruments would include
securifies that are fraded in an acfive exchange market.

Level Z Observable inputs other than Leve! 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; guoted
prices for identical or similar instruments on inactive markets; and model-derived valuations for which all significant inputs
are observable market data. Level 2 insiruments include most corporate debt securities and U.S. government and
agency mortgage-backed securities that are valued by models using inputs that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data.

lLevel 3 Valuations derived from valuation technigues in which one or more significant inputs are unobservable. Level 3
instruments include less liquid securities for which significant inputs are not observable in the market, such as highly
structured securifies and variable annuity GLB embedded derivatives that require significant management assumptions or
estimation in the fair value measurement,

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available,
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The following tables present, by fair value hierarchy level, the Company's financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value

as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,

December 31, 20069:
Assets:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of
U.8. government authorities and agencies
Obligations of states and politicat subdivisions

Foreign governments
Corporate securities

RMBS

CMBS

Collateralized debt obligations
Other asset-backed securities
Total fixed maturity securities

Fserpemal preferred securities
Other equity securifies
Total equity securifies

Trading securities

Cash equivalents

Other investments
Defivatives

Separafe account assets &
Total

Liabilities:
Derivatives
Totat

Gross
Derivatives Netting
Levelt  level2 Level3 FairVale Adustments ¥  Total
{in Millions)
$109 $6 $115
565 34 509
323 108 431
15,566 2,287 17,853
1,510 3,650 5,160
852 327 1,179
8 104 112
355 235 590
19,288 8,751 26,039
205 70 275
$3 3
3 205 70 278
02 85 29 206
1,714 1,714
183 163
368 467 $836 {$595) 241
52,305 116 101 52,522
$54,114  $20,063  §7,581 $836 {$595)  $81,163
$645 $914 $1,559 ($595) $964
$645 $914 $1,559 {$595) $964

F-54



Gross
Derivatives Neiting
Level1  Level2  Level3 FairValue Adustments ' Total

{In Millions)

December 31, 2008:
Assets:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.8. govermnment authorities and agencies $117 $117
Obligations of states and pofitical subdivisions 369 369
Foreign governments 223 $22 245
Corporate securifies 12,274 2,243 14,517
RMBS 1,577 3,355 4,932
CMBS : 899 201 1,100
Collateratized debt obligations 20 104 124
Other assef-backed securities 328 210 538
Total fixed maturity securities 15,807 6,135 21,942
Perpetual preferred securities 202 12 214
Other equity securities 2 2
Total equity securities 204 12 216
Trading securities ¥ 17 97 114
Cash equivalenis $2,597 2,597
Other investments 150 ' 150
Derivatives 1,204 1,435 §2,720 ($656) 2,073
Separate account assets 41,145 275 61 41,481
Total $43,742  $17,597 $7,890 $2,729 (5656) $68,573
Liabilifles:
Derivatives $1,005 $3477 $4,572 ($656) 33916
Total $1,095 $3,477 $4,572 {$656) $3,916

{1} Netting adjustments represent the impact of offsetting asset and liabilify positions held with the same counterparty as permitted
by guidance for offsetting in the Codification's Derlvatives and Hedging Topic.

& Trading securities are presented in other investments in the consolidated statements of financial condition.

@ Separate account assets are measured at fair vaiue. Investment performance related to separate account assets is offset by
corresponding amounts credited to contract holders whose Hability is reflected in the separate account tabiliies. Separate
account Habilities are measured fo equal the fair value of separate account assets as prescribed by guidance in the
Codification's Financial Services — Insurance Topic for accounting and reporting of certain non traditional long-duration contracts
and separate accounts. Separate account assets as presented in the table above differ from the amounts presented in the
consolidated statements of financial condition because cash and receivables for securifies are not subject fo the guidance under
tne Codification's Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Codification's Fair Value Measuremenis and Disclosures Topic defines fair vaiue as the price that would be recaived fo sell the

asset or paid to transfer the liability 2t the measurement date. This "exit price” notion is a market-based measurement that requires
a focus on the vaiue that market pariicipants would assign for an asset or liability.
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The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the Company fo measure various types of financial
instruments af fair vaiue.

FIXED MATURITY, EQUITY AND TRADING SECURITIES

The fair vaiues of fixed maturity securities available for sale, equily securifies available for sale and trading securities are
determined by management after considering external pricing sources and internal vaiuation techniques,

For publicly traded securities with sufficient frading volume, prices are obtained from third-party pricing services. For structured or
complex securities that are fraded infrequently, prices are obtained from independent brokers or are valued internally using various
valuation techniques. Such techniques include matrix mode! pricing and internally developed models, which incorporate observable
market data, where available. Matrix model pricing measures fair value using cash flows, which are discounted using observable
market yield curves provided by a major independent data service. The matrix model determines the discount yisld based upon
significant factors that include the securily's weighted average life and rating.

Where matrix modei pricing is not used, particularly for RMBS and other asset-backed securities, other infernally derived valuation
models are utilized. The inputs used to measure fair value in the internal valuations include, but are not limited to, benchmark
yields, issuer spreads, bids, offers, reported frades, and estimated projected cash flows that incorporate significant inputs such as
defaults and delinquency rates, severity, subcrdination, vintage and prepayment speeds.

For non-agency RMBS backed by prime, sub-prime and Alt-A collateral, the Company has determined that there has been a
significant decrease in the volume and level of transaction activity indicating the need for a valuation technigue not solely based on
observable transactions andfor quoted market prices. As permitted by guidance in the Codification's Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures Topic beginning March 31, 2009, the Company determines the estimated fair value for these assets utifizing an
internally developed weighting of valuations derived from internal pricing models and independent pricing services. This approach
utilizes muitiple valuation techniques incorporating an income approach (maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs) and a market approach (based on data provided by independent pricing services)
producing a resuit more representative of an investment's fair value as compared to a single vaiuation technique. The income
approach incorporates cash flows for each investment adjusted for expected losses assuming various interest rate and housing
price-level scenarios. The adjusted cash flows are discounted using a risk premium that market participants would demand given
the risk in the modeled cash flows. The risk premium utilized is reflective of an orderly transaction between market participants
under current market conditions and includes considerations such as fiquidity and structure risk, These internally generated prices
are then reviewed in conjunction with prices obtained from muitiple independent pricing services. The internally generated prices
are weighted with the prices obtained from independent pricing services, with consideration given to the relative range of vaiues
that are most representative of fair valiie under current conditions. These securities have been classified as Level 3 financial
assets,

Prices obtained from independent third-parties are generally evaluated based on the inputs indicated above. The Company's
management analyzes and evaluates these prices and determines whether they are reasonable estimates of fair value.
Management's analysis may include, but i not limited to, review of third-party pricing methodologies and inputs, anaiysis of recent
trades, and development of internal models ulilizing observable market data of comparable securities. Based on this analysis,
prices received from third-parties may be adjusted if the Company determines that there is a more appropriate fair value based on
available markst information.

Most securifies priced by a major independent third-party service have been classified as Level 2, as management has verified that
the inputs used in determining their fair values are market observable and appropriate. Other externally priced securities for which
fair value measurement inputs are not sufficiently transparent, such as securities valued based on broker quotations, have been
classified as Level 3. Internally valued securifies, including adjusted prices received from independent third-parties, where
significant management assumptions hava been ulilized in determining fair value, have been classified as Lavel 3.

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash equivalents include, but are not imited to, corporate discount nofes and money market mutual funds. The fair value of cash

equivalents is measured at amortized cost due fo the short-term, highly fiquid nature of these securities, which have original
maturities of three months or less. These investments are classified as Level 1.
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OTHER INVESTMENTS

Other investments include non-marketable equity securities that do not have readily determinable fair values. Certain significant
inputs used in determining the fair value of these equities are based on management assumplions or contractual terms with
another party that cannet he readily observable in the market. These investments are classified as Level 3 assels.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Derivaiive instruments are reported at fair value using pricing valuation models, which utilize market data inputs or independent
broker quotations. Excluding embedded derivatives, as of December 31, 2009, 99% of derivatives based upon notional values
were priced by valuation modeis, which utilize independent market data. The remaining derivatives were priced by broker
quotations. The derivatives are valued using mid-market inputs that are predominantly ohservable in the market. Inputs used to
value derivatives include, but are not limited to, interest swap rates, foreign currency forward and spot rates, credit spreads and
correlations, interest and equity volatility and equity index levels. In accordance with the Codification's Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures Topic, a credit valuation analysis was performed for all derivative positions to measure the risk that one of the
counterparties to the transaction will be unable to perform under the contractual terms {nonperformance risk), and was determined
to be immaterial as of December 31, 2008,

the Company performs a monthly analysis on derivalive valuations, which includes both quantitative and qualitative analysis.
Examples of procedures performed inciude, but are not limited to, review of pricing stafistics and trends, analyzing the impacts of
changes in the market environment, and review of changes in market value for each derivative including those derivatives priced by
brokers.

Derivative instruments classified as Level 2 primarily include interest rate, currency and certain credit default swaps. The derivative
valuafions are determined using pricing medels with inpuls tha are ebservable in the market or can be derlved principally from or
corroborated by observable market data.

Derivative instruments classified as Level 3 inciude complex derivatives, such as equity options and swaps and certain credit
default swaps. Also included in Level 3 classification for derivatives are embedded derivafives in certain insurance and reinsurance
coniracts. These derivatives are valued using pricing models, which utiiize both cbservable and unohservable inputs and, to a
lesser extent, broker quotations. A derivative instrument containing Level 1 or Level 2 inputs wiil be classified as a Level 3 financial
instrument in its enfirety if it has at least one significant Level 3 input.

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to manage the risk associated with certain assets and fiabilities. However, the
derivative instrument may not be classified within the same fair value hierarchy level as the associated assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivatives reported in Level 3 may not reflect the offsetting impact of
the realized and unrealized gains and losses of the associated assets and liabilities.

VARIABLE ANNUITY GLB EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

Fair values for variable annuity GLB and refated reinsurance embedded derivatives are calculated based upon significant
unobservable inputs using internally developed models because active, observable markets do not exist for those items. Asa
result, variable annuity GLB and refated reinsurance embedded derivatives are categorized as Level 3. Below is a description of
the Company's fair value methodologies for these embedded derivatives.

The Company’s fair value is cafculated as an aggregafion of fair vaiue and additional risk margins including, Behavior Risk Margin,
Mortatlity Risk Margin and Credit Standing Adjustment. The resulting aggregation is reconciled or calibrated, if necessary, to market
information that is, or may be, available io the Company, but may not be chservable by other market participants, including
reinsurance discussions and transactions, Each of the components described below are unobservable in the market place and
requires subjectivity by the Company in determining their value.

e Behavior Risk Margin: this component adds a margin that market participants would require for the risk that the
Company's assumptions about policyholder behavior used in the fair value model couid differ from actuat experience.

=  Mortality Risk Margin: This component adds a margin in mortaiity assumptions, both for decrements for policyholders
with GLBs, and for expected payout lifetimes in guaranteed minimum withdrawai benefits.
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e  Credit Standing Adjustment: This component makes an adjustment that market participants woutd make to refiect the
chance that GLB obligations or the GLB reinsurance recoverables will not be fuifilled {nonperformance risk).

SEPARATE ACCOUNT ASSETS

Separate account assets are primarily invested in mufual funds, but alse have investments in fixed maturity and short-term
securifies. Separate account assets are valued in the same manner, and using the same pricing sources and inputs, as the fixed
maturity and equity securities available for sale of the Company. Mutual funds are included in Level 1. Most fixed maturity
securifies are included in Level 2. Level 3 assets include any investments where fair value is based on management assumptions
or obtained from independent third-parfies and fair value measurement inputs are not sufficiently fransparent.

LEVEL 3 RECONCILIATION

The tables below present reconciliations of the beginning and ending balances of the Level 3 financial assets and liabilities that
have been measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs.

Purchases,
Transfers Sales, Unrealized
Total Gains or Losses  Inand/or  fssuances, (3ains
January 1, Includedin Includedin  Qutof and December 31,  (Losses)
2009 Earnings QC! Level3  Setflements 2009 Still Held
(In Millions)
Assets:
U.8. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. government
authorifies and agencies 36 $6
Obligations of states and
polifical subdivisions {$3) 7 $30 34
Foreign governments $22 $2 5 71 8 108
Comorate securities 2,243 (28) 644 (974) 402 2287 (85)
RMBS 3,355 (115) 437 427 {454} 3,850
CMBS 201 1 26 80 39 327
Coilateralized debt obligations 104 (67) 71 (4) 104
Other asset-backed securities 210 2 10 42 {29) 235
Total fixed maturity securities 6,135 {205) 1,190 {361) (8) 6,751 (5)
Perpetual preferred securities 12 {17) 12 {5) 68 70
Other equity securities 1 4 {28) 23
Total equity securities 12 {16) 16 {33) 91 70
Trading securities 97 (51) (7 29 2
Other investments 150 24 (1) 163
Derivatives, net {2,042) 1,504 1 80 (447) 1,697
Separate account assets® 61 6 20 14 101 12
Total $4,413 $1,289 $1,231 ($4.25) $159 $6,667 $1,606
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Assets:

Foreign governments
Corporate securities

RMBS

CMBS

Collateralized debt obligations
Cther asset-backed securities
Total fixed maturity securities

Perpetual preferred securities
Other equity securities
Total equity securities

Trading securities
QOther investments
Derivafives, net

Separate account assets'?
Total

Purchases,

Transfers Sales, Unrealized
Total Gains or Losses Inandfor  Issuances, Gaing
January 1, includedin Includedin  Outof and December 31,  {Losses)
2008 Earnings oCl Level 3 Settlements 2008 Still Held "
{In Mitlions)
$32 87 {$3) $22
1,505 $2 {329 $733 332 2,243 {$16)
431 (1) {168) 3,025 88 3,355
434 (40) (141) (52) 201
230 {90) (35) (1) 104
247 (4) (16) (11) (1) 210
2,874 {93) {595) 3,606 343 5,135 {16)
46 {33) 4) 12
4 4
50 {37) (1) 12
47 (12) 10 52 97 (11
480 105 {133) (282) 150
{103) {1,945) 2 4 (2,042) (4,822)
ik {5) 46 9 61 (25)
$3,339 {$1,987) {(§726) $3,662 $125 $4,413 ($1,874)

! Represents the net amount of {otal gains or losses for the period, recorded in earnings, afiributable to the change in unrealized
gains {losses) relating fo assets and llabilities classified as Level 3 that are still heid as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,

@ The realized/unrealized gains (losses) included in netincome {loss} for separate account assets are offset by an equal amount
for separate account Habifities, which resulls in a net zero impact on net income (loss} for the Company.

The Company did net have any nonfinancial assels or liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecursing basis resulting from
impairments as of December 31, 2009. The Company has not made any changes in the valuation methodclogies for nonfinancial

assefs and liabifities.
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value under the
Codificafion's Financial Instruments Topic are as follows:

December 31, 2609 December 31, 2008
Carrying  Esfimated  Carrying  Estimated
Amount  Fair Value  Amount  Fair Value

(in Mitfions)
Assets:
Mortgage loans $6,577 $6,660 $5.622 $5,645
Policy loans 6,508 6,509 6,920 6,920
Other invested assets 198 185 305 334
Restricted cash 221 22 227 22
Lizbilities:
Funding agreements and GICs!" 7,572 8,093 9419 10,136
Annuity and deposit lfabilities 7,108 7,109 4,515 4,515
Short-term debt 105 105 150 150
Long-term debt 5832 5,806 4,459 4,373

) Balance excludes smbedded derivatives that are included in the fair value hierarchy level tables above.

The following methods and assumptions were used o estimate the fair value of these financial instruments as of December 31,
2009 and 2008

MORTGAGE LOANS

The estimaied fair value of the mertgage loan portfolio is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows, using current
rates that are applicable to similar credit quality, property type and average maturity of the composite portfolic.

POLICY LOANS

The carrying amounts of policy loans are a reasonable estimate of their fair values because interest rates are generally variable
and based on current market rates.

OTHER INVESTED ASSETS

Included in other invested assets are private equity investments in which the estimated fait value of private equity investments is
based on the ownership percentage of the underlying equity of the investments.

RESTRICTED CASH
The carrying values approximate fair values due to the short-term maturities of these insfruments.
FUNDING AGREEMENTS AND GICs

The fair value of funding agreements and GICs is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining
maturities.

ANNUITY AND DEPOSIT LIABILITIES
The estimated fair value of annuity and deposit liabilities approximates carrying value and primarily includes policyholder deposits

and accumulated credited interest. The estimated fair value of deposit liabilities with no defined maturities is the amount payable
on demand.
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DEBT

The carrying amount of short-term debt is a reasonable estimate of its fair value because the interest rates are variable and based
on curent market rates. The estimated fair value of long-term debt is based on market quotes, except for VIE debt and non-
recourse debt, for which the carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of their fair vaiues because the inferest rate approximates
current market rates.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The Company displays comprehensive income (loss) and its components on the consolidated statements of equity. The disclosure
of the gross components of other comprehensive income (loss) and related taxes are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
{In Milfions}
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives and securities available
for sale, net:
Gross holding gain (loss):
Securities available for sale $2,601 ($3,870) ($239)
Derivatives (146) 256 (147)
Income tax {expense) benefit (861) 1,269 135
Reclassification adjusiment - realized (gain) loss:
Sale of securities available for sale 251 458 2%
Derivatives 25 (4) (15)
Income tax expense (beneflt) {98) {159) 12
Allocation of hoiding (gain) loss fo DAC {415) 358 (24)
Allocation of hoiding (gain) loss to future policy benefits 85 (119) {15)
Income tax expense (benefit) 113 {83) 14
Cumutative effect of adoption of new accounting principle {263)
Income tax expense ' 83
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives and securities available for sale, net 1,385 {1,856) {300)
Other, net:
Holding gain (loss) on interest in PIMCO and other security 22 {24) 5
Income fax (expense) benefit (8) 9 N
Reclassification of realized gain on sale of interest in PIMCO {109)
Income tax on realized gain 42
Net unrealized gain (loss) on interest in PIMCO and other security 14 (82) 4
Cumutative effect of adoption of new accounting principle,
net of tax (20)
Other, net of tax 33 {15)
Other, net 47 {87) {16)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net $1,432 ($1,993) ($316)
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REINSURANCE

Certain no lapse guarantee rider (NLGR) benefits of Pacific Life's UL insurance products are subject to Actuarial Guideline 38 (AG
38) statutory reserving requirements. AG 38 resuits in additional statutory reserves on UL products with NLGRs issued after June
30, 2005. U.S. GAAP henefit reserves for such riders are based on guidance in the Codification's Financial Services ~ Insurance
Topic for accouniing and reporting of certain non traditional long-duration confracts and separate accounts. Substantially all the
.S, GAAP bensfit reserves relating to NLGRs issued after June 30, 2005 are ceded from Pacific Life to Pacific Alliance
Reinsurance Lid. (PAR Bermuda), a Bermuda-based life reinsurance company wholly owned by Pacific LifeCorp and PAR Vermont
under reinsurance agreements. Funded reserves and irevocable letters of credit (LCC) held in trust accounts with Pacific Life as
beneficiary provide secusty for statutory reserve credits taken by Pacific Life. Pacific LifeCorp guarantees the obligafions of PAR
Bermuda and PAR Vermont under the LOC agreement,

The Company eniered into treaties fo reinsure a portion of new variable annuity business under medified coinsurance
arrangements and certain variable arnuity living and death benefit riders under coinsurance agreements. Effective January 1,
2008, the guota share on these variable annuity reinsurance treaties was increased from a total of 39% to 45%. Additionally,
effective January 1, 2008, the Company recaptured a portion of the variable annuity business ceded during 2007, Effective
January 1, 2009, all but one reinsurance freaty terminated for new business, reducing the quota share to 15%. The final treaty
terminated for new business issued after March 31, 2009. Variable annuity business ceded prior fo these dates confinues to be
reinsurad,

Reinsurance receivables and payables generally include amounts related io claims, reserves and reserve related items.
Reinsurance receivables were $404 million and $839 miflion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Reinsurance
payables were $37 million and $38 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The ceding of risk does not discharge the Company from its primary obligations fo contract owners. To the extent that the
assuming companies become unable to meet their obligations under reinsurance contracts, the Company remains contingently
liabie. Each reinsurer is reviewed to evaiuate its financial stability before entering infe each reinsurance contract and throughout
the period that the reinsurance contract is in place.

The components of insurance premiums presented in the consolidated statements of operations are as follows;

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
{In Millfons)
Direct premiums $666 $410 $271
Reinsurance ceded” {323) (291) (274)
Reinsurance assumed 80 @ 53 53
insurance premiums $403 $i72 $50

" Included are $21 million, $13 million and $12 million of reinsurance ceded to PAR Bermuda for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

@ Included are $4 million of assumed premiums from Pacific Life Re, a wholly owned subsidiary of Pacific LifeCorp.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
PENSION PLANS

Prior to December 31, 2007, Pacific Life provided a defined benefit pension pian (ERP) covering all eligible employees of the
Company. Certain subsidiaries did not participate in this plan. The full-benefit vesting period for all participants was five years,
Pacific Life's funding policy was to contribute amounts to the plan sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirements set forth in
ERISA, plus such additional amounts as was determined appropriate. All such confribufions were made to a tax-exempt frust,

The Company amended the ERP to terminate effective December 31, 2007. In anticipation of the final settlement of the defined
benefit pension plan, the plan's investment strategy was revised and the mutual fund investments were sold, fransferred o a
separate account group annuity contract managed by the Company and invested primarily in fixed income investments fo better
match the expected duration of the liabilities.

in September 2009, the Company received regulatory approval fo commence the final termination of the ERP and payment of plan
benefits fo the pariicipants. The Company completed the final distribution of plan assets to participants in December 2008. The
Company recognized setflement costs of $5 million in 2608 and recognized the final seftiement costs for the ERP totaling $72
million in 2008,

Pacific Life also maintains supplemental employee retirement plans (SERPs) for certain eligible employees. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, the projected benefit obligation was $37 mifiion and $32 million, respectively. The fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008 was zero. The net periodic benefit expense of the SERPs was $4 million, $5 million and $6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following table sets forth the benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of the defined benefit plans:

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008
ERP SERP ERP SERP
{In Miliions) {In Miliions)
Defined benefit plans:
Benefit obligation, end of year $37 $198 $32
Fair value of plan assels, end of year $26 242
Over (under) funded status, end of year $26 {$37) $44 (832)

The Company incurred a net pension expense of $79 million, 8 million and $9 million for the years ended December 31, 2008,
2008 and 2007, respectively, as detailed in the following table:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
ERP SERP ERP SERP ERP SERP

(in Mittions) {In Millions) (In Millions)

Components of the net perfodic pension expense:

Service cost - benefits earned during the year $2 $2 §2
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $12 2 $12 2 $14 2
Expected return on plan assets {(12) (14) (16)
Settlement costs 72 5 4
Amortization of net obligations and prior service cost 3 1 2 1
Net periodic pension expense $75 $4 $3 $5 $4 $5
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Significant plan assumptions:

December 31, 2000 December 31, 2008
ERP SERP ERP SERP
Weighted-average assumptions used to defermine benefit
obligations:
Discount rate 8.35% 6.30% 8.35% 6.30%
Salary rate /A 4.50% N/A 4.50%

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine

the ERP's net periodic benefit expense:
Discount rate 6.30% £.25% 5.75%
Expected long-term retum on plan assets N/A 5.25% 6.13%

The salary rate used to defermine the net perlodic benefit expense for the SERP was 4.5% for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007,

Pacific Life expects to contribute $3 milfion to the SERP in 2010. The expected benefit payments are as follows for the years
ending December 31 (In Millions).

2010 21 a2 2013 2014 2015-2019
$3 $3 $3 $3 $3 $15

RETIREMENT INCENTIVE SAVINGS PLAN

Pacific Life provides a Retirement Incentive Savings Ptan (RISP) covering all eligible employees of Pacific LifeCorp and certain of
its subsidiaries. The RISP matches 75% of each employee's contributions, up to a maximum of 6% of eligible employee
compensation in cash. Contributions made by the Company to the RISP amounted to $26 million, $28 million and $25 million for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and are included in operating expenses.

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pacific Life provides a defined benefit health care pian and a defined benefit life insurance plan (the Plans) that provide
postretirement benefits for all eligible retirees and their dependents. Generally, qualified employess may become eligible for these
benefits if they have reached normal retirement age, have been covered under Pacific Life's policy as an active employee for a
minimum continuous period prior o the date refired, and have an employment date before January 1, 1980. The Plans contain
cost-sharing feaiures such as deductibles and coinsurance, and require retirees to make contributions, which can be adjusted
annually. Pacific Life's commitment to qualified employees who retire after Aprit 1, 1994 is limited to specific dollar amounts,
Pacific Life reserves the right to modify or terminate the Plans at any fime. As in the past, the generai policy fs to fund these
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The net periodic postretirement benefit cost for each of the years ended December 3%, 2008, 2008 and 2007 was $1 million. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the accumulated benefit obligation was $19 million and $18 million, respectively. The fair value of
the plan assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 was zero.

The discount rate used in determining the accumutaied postretirement henefit obligation was 5.50% and 6.35% for 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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18.

Benefit payments for the year ended December 31, 2009 amounted to $3 milfien. The expected benefit payments are as follows for
the years ending December 31 (In Millions):

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015-2018
$3 $4 4 $4 $4 $24

OTHER PLANS

The Company has deferred compensation plans that permit eligibte employees to defer portions of their compensation and earn

interest on the deferred amounts. The interest rate is determined annually. The compensation that has been deferred has been

accrued and the primary expense related o this plan, other than compensation, is interest on the deferred amounts. The Company

aiso has performance-based incentive compensation plans for its employees.

INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefif} for income taxes is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

{In Millions)
Current (5407) $198 $43
Deferred 451 {(511) 86
Provision (benefit) for income faxes from continuing operations 44 (315) 129
Provision (benefit) for income taxes on discontinued operations {11) {3 18
Total $33 {$318) $147

A reconciliation of the provision (benefif) for income taxes from continuing operations based on the Federal corporate statutory tax
rate of 35% fo the provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations reflected in the consolidated financial statements
is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

{In Millions)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes at the statutory rate $170 (3199) $292
Separate account dividends received deduction {93) (107) {103}
Low income housing and foreign fax credits {19) {(31) (33}
Other (14) 22 (27)
Proviston {benefit) for income taxes from confiruing operations $44 {$315) §129

Upon adoption of new guidance fo the Codification's income Taxes Topic relating to the accounting for uncertainty In income taxes
on January 1, 2607, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $32 million, which relate entirely to an unceriain tax position
regarding refund claims for the impact of short-term capital gains on computing separate account Dividends Received Deductions
{DRDY.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company's tax contingency related to the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes increased by $402 million for & tax position for which there was uncertainty about the timing, but not the deducfibiiity, of
certain tax deductions, Since the benefits of the tax position were not being claimed on an original return and the Company did not
receive cash, interest or penalties were not accrued. Due fo the nature of deferred tax accounting, the tax position does not have
an impact on the annual effective tax rate.
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The $434 million tax contingency related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes was decreased by $420 miflion as a
result of events that occurred during the year ended December 31, 2009, The Company effectively settied $18 miflion of the gross
uncertain tax position related to DRD, which resulted in the realization of $9 million of tax benefits. The Company alsc resolved the
uncertain tax accounting position on certain tax deductions resulting in a $402 million decrease. The provision for income taxes
from continuing operations has also been reduced by $10 million for additional interest income resulfing from favorable fax
settlements.

A reconciliation of the changes in the unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (In Millfons):

Batance at January 1, 2007 $32
Additions and defetions

Balance at December 31, 2007 32
Additions and deletions 402
Balance at December 31, 2008 434
Additions and deletions {420)
Balance at December 31, 2009 $14

Depending on the outcome of Internal Revenue Service (IRS) audits, approximately $7 million of the unrecognized DRI tax
benefits may be realized during the next twelve months. Al realized tax benefits and related interest are recorded as a discrete
itern that will impact the effective tax rate in the accounting period in which the uncertain tax position is uitimately settled.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company paid an immaterial amount of interest and penalties to
state tax authorities,
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The net deferred tax (Jiability) asset, included in other liabilities and other assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
is comprised of the foilowing tax effected temporary differences:

December 31,
2009 2008
{Irn Millions)
Deferred tax assets:
Policyholder reserves $724  $1.274
Investment valuation 283 271
Tax net operating loss carryforward 245 168
Tax credit carryforward 214 122
Deferred compensation 45 42
Maintenance reserves 38 46
Dividends fo poticyhoiders 8 8
Other 25 27
Total deferred tax assefs 1,586 1,958
Deferred tax liabilities:
DAC (1,313) (1,222
Depreciation {563) {458)
Reinsurance {rn) (74)
Hedging (44) (14}
Partnership income (28) (65}
Retirement benefits (18)
Other (41 (43)
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,068) (1,894
Net deferred tax asset {liability} from continuing operations {480) 84
Unreatized loss on derivatives and securities availabie for sale 101 947
Unreaiized loss on interest in PIMCO and other security 8
Deferred taxes on cumulative changes in accounting principles 120 27
Minimum pension liability and other adjustments (10 8
Net deferred tax asset (liability) ($269)  §1,054

The tax net operating loss carryforwards relate to Federal {ax losses incurred in 1998 through 2008 with a 20-year carryforward for
non-life losses and a 15-year carryforward for life losses, and California tax losses incurred in 2004 through 2008 with a ten-year
carryforward.

The Cadification's Income Taxes Topic requires the reduction of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowancs if, based on the
weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that a portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Based on
management's assessment, it is more likely than not that the Company's deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxable
income and the reversal of deferred tax liabilities,

The Company files income tax returns in U.S. Federal and various state jurisdictions. The Company is under confinuous audit by
the IRS and is audited periodically by some state taxing authorities. The IRS has completed audits of the Company's tax returns
through the tax years ended December 31, 2005 and has commenced audits for tax years 2008, 2007 and 2008. The State of
California recently concluded audits for tax years 2603 and 2004 without a material assessment. The Company does not expect
the Federal and state audits to result in any material assessments,
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has four operafing segments: Life Insurance, Investment Management, Annuities & Mutual Funds and Aircraft
Leasing. These segments are managed separately and have been identified based on differences in products and services
offered. A#l other activity is inciuded in the Corporate and Other segment,

The Life Insurance segment provides a broad range of life insurance products through multiple distribution channels operating in
the upper income and corporate markets. Principal products include UL, VUL, survivor life, interest sensitive whole life, corporate-
owned life insurance and traditionat products such as whole life and term life. Distribution charnels include regional life offices,
marketing organizations, broker-dealer firms, wirehouses and M Financial, an association of independently owned and operated
insurance and financial producers.

The Investment Management segment provides investment and insurance products fo institutional investors, pension fund
sponsors and structured settlement annuitants, primarily through its home office markefing team and other intermediaries. The
segment's principal products include GICs, synthetic GICs, funding agreement-backed notes issued to institutional investors via
medium-term note programs or to the FHLEB of Topeka, as well as siructured sefttement annuities issued in conjunction with
personal injury awards and group refirement annuities sold to pension plans.

The Annuities & Mutuai Funds segment's principle products include variable and fixed annuities, and mutual funds, and are offered
through multipie distribution soutces. Distribution channels include independent planners, financial institutions and
national/regional wirehouses.

The Aircraft Leasing segment (Note 9) offers aircraft leasing fo the airfine industry throughout the world and provides brokerage and
asset management services io other third-parties.

The Corporate and Other segment primarily inciudes investment income, expenses and assets not attributable to the operating
segments, and the operations of certain subsidiaries that do not qualify as operaling segments. The Corporate and Other segment
also includes the interest in PIMCO and the elimination of intersegment fransactions. Discontinued operations (Note 6) are also
included in the Corporate and Other segment,

The Company uses the same accounting policies and procedures to measure segment net income (foss) and assets as it uses to
measure its consolidated net income (ioss) and assets. Net invesiment income and net realized investment gain {loss) are
aliocated based on invested assets purchased and held as is required for transacting the business of that segment. Overhead
expenses are aflocated based on services provided. Interest expense is allocated based on the short-ferm horrowing needs of the
segment and is included in netinvesiment income. The provision (benefif) for income taxes is allocated based on each segment's
actual tax provision (benefit},

The cperating segments, excluding Aircraft Leasing, are allocated equity based on formulas determined by management and
receive a fixed interest rate of return on interdivision debentures supporting the allocated equity. The debenture amount is reflected
&s investment expense in net investment income in the Corporate and Other segment and as investment income in the operating
segments,

The Company generates substantially all of its revenues and net income from customers located in the U.S. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, the Company had foreign investments with an estimated fair value of $7.2 billion and $5.8 biltion, respectively.
Ajrcraft leased to foreign customers were $5.0 billion and $4.8 billion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Revenues
derived from any customer did not exceed 10% of consolidated total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007,
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The following is segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009:

Annuities
Life investment & Mutual Aircraft Corporate
Insurance Management Funds lLeasing and Other  Tofal

REVENUES (In Milions)
Policy fees and insurance premiums $1,083 $628 $581 $3 $2,275
Net investment income 892 759 278 $1 {68) 1,862
Net realized investment gain {loss) 55 313 7 (222) 153
OTTis {63) {176) (16) {56) (311)
Investment advisory fees 18 180 208
Alrcraft leasing revenue 578 578
Other income 10 112 13 2 137
Total revenues 1,920 1,266 1,458 599 (341 4,902
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Interest credited 681 379 193 1,263
Palicy benefits 363 903 {40) 1,226
Cormission expenses 353 18 320 591
Operating expenses 290 26 273 59 134 782
Depreciation of aircraft 227 227
Inferest expense 182 55 237
Total benefits and expenses 1,687 1,326 748 468 189 4,416
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

provision {benefit} for income taxes 233 (60) 712 131 (530) 486
Provision {benefit) for income taxes 66 (24) 151 39 (188) 44
Income (loss) from continuing operaticns 167 (36) 561 92 (342) 442
Discontinued operations, net of faxes {20) (20)
Net income (loss) 167 (36) 561 92 (362) 422
Less: net {income} loss atfributable to the noncontrolling

inferest from continting operations {9) 23 14
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $167 ($36) $561 $83 ($339) $436
Total assets $28,589 $13,256 $57.903 $6,091  $2,638 $108477
DAC 1,865 59 2,882 4,806
Separate account assets 5,580 87 46,907 52 564
Policyholder and contract Eabilities 21,133 12,526 7,728 41,387
Separate account liabilities 5,580 67 46,807 52 564
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The following is segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Annuifies
Life investment & Mutual  Aircraft  Corporate
Insurance Management  Funds  Leasing and Other Total

REVENUES {In Mitlions}
Poiicy fees and insurance premiums $943 $363 $691 $1,997
Net investment income 855 876 178 $85 1,084
Net realized investment gain {ioss) 24 51 {768) {56) (749)
OTTls {69) (398) (30) {$3) {80) (580)
Realized investment gain on interest in PIMCO 108 109
investment advisory fees 22 233 255
Aircraft leasing revenue 571 571
Othet income 1 117 38 1 167
Total revenues 1,786 892 421 606 50 3,764
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
interest credited 661 440 133 1,234
Policy benefits 372 684 150 1,206
Commissicn expenses 268 18 429 715
Operating expenses 263 34 317 40 78 732
Depreciation of aircraft 208 208
Interest expense 221 17 238
Total benefits and expenses 1,564 1,176 1,029 469 95 4,333
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

provision {benefit) for income taxes 222 (284) (608) 137 {36) (569)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 81 {103) (329) 48 8 (315)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 161 (181) (279) 89 {44) (254)
Discontinued operations, net of taxes {6) {6)
Net income {loss) 161 (181) {279} 89 (50) {260)
Less: net (income} loss atfributable o the noncontrolling

interest from continuing operations (8) 11 3
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $161 ($181) ($279) $81 ($39)  ($257)
Total assets $26,695 $16155 945285 $5400  $2,633 95,168
DAC 2,118 84 2,830 5,012
Separate account assets 4,525 284 36,698 41,505
Policyholder and contract liabilities 20,786 14,099 7,626 42,511
Separafe account liabilites 4,525 284 36,696 41,505
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The following is segment information for the year ended December 31, 2007;

Annuities
Life Investment & Mutual Aircraft Corporate
Insurance Management  Funds Leasing and Other  Tofal

REVENUES {in Mitlions)
Policy fees and insurance premiums §777 $224 $779 $1,780
Net Investment income 803 405 186 $9 $217 2,120
Net realized investment gain (loss) 4 115 (99} 17 32 89
OTTis (3) {95) (98)
Investment advisory fees 29 298 327
Aircraft leasing revenue 535 535
Other income 9 84 50 4 147
Total revenues 1,619 1,149 1,248 611 253 4,880
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Interest credited 618 504 144 1,266
Policy benefits 308 535 12 855
Commission expenses 208 1" 470 690
Operating expenses 252 34 46 49 88 769
Depreciation of aircraft 189 189
interest expense 261 16 277
Total benefits and expenses 1,387 1,084 872 489 104 4,046
tncome from continuing operations before

provision (beneflt) for income taxes 232 65 276 112 149 834
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 58 12 {5) 32 33 129
income from continuing cperations 174 53 282 80 116 705
Discontinued operations, net of taxes 11 11
Netincome 174 53 282 80 127 718
Less: net income attributable to the noncontroiling

interest from continuing operations (2) (36} (38}
Net income attributable to the Company $174 $53 $282 $78 $91 $678

TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES

PLFA serves as the investment adviser for the Pacific Select Fund, an investment vehicle provided to the Company's variable life
insurance policyholders and variable annuity contract owners, and the Pacific Life Funds, the investment vehicle for the Company's
mutual fund products. Prior to May 1, 2007, Pacific Life served in this capacity. Investment advisory and other fees are based
primarily upon the net asset value of the underlying portfolios. These fees, included in investment advisory fees and other income,
amounted to $244 miflion, $287 million and 3337 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In
addition, Pacific Life provides certain support services to the Pacific Select Fund, the Pacific Life Funds and other affiliates based
on an allocation of actual costs. These fees amounted to $8 million, $7 million and $7 million for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In addifion, effective May 1, 2007, a service plan adopted by the Pacific Select Fund went info effect whereby the fund pays PSD,

as distributor of the fund, a service fee in connection with services rendered or procured to or for shareholders of the fund or their
variable contract owners. These services may include, but are not limited to, payment of compensatior: to broker-dealers, including
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PSD itself, and other financial institutions and organizations, which assist in providing any of the services. For the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, PSD received $86 milfion and $10C million, respectively, in service fees from the Pacific Select
Fund, which are recorded in other income, For the period May 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007, PSD received $74 million in
service fees from the Pacific Select Fund, which are also recorded in other income. The service fees were allocated to the
operating segments, primarily the Annuities & Mutual Funds segment {Note 19).

As discussed in Note 16, NLGR benefits are reinsured with PAR Bermuda and PAR Vermont.

ACG has derivative swap confracts with Pacific LifeCorp as the counterparfy. The notional amounts total $2.0 billion and §1.8
billion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The estimated fair values of the derivatives were net fiabilities of $48
million and $106 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

COMMITMENTS

The Company has outstanding commitments fo make investments primarily in mortgage loans, limited partnerships and other
investments, as follows (In Millions):

Years Ending December 31;

2010 $1,005
2011 through 2014 494
2015 and thereafter 31
Total $1,560

The Company leases office facilities under various operating leases, which in most, but nct all cases, are noncancelable, Rent
expense, which is included in operafing and cther expenses, In connection with these leases was $8 million, $10 million and §13
million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 andg 2007, respectively. In connection with the sale of a block of business in
2005, PL&A is contingently liable untit March 31, 2013 for certain future rent and expense obligations, not to exceed $15 million,
related to an office tease that has been assigned to the buyer. Aggregate minimum future commitments are as follows {fn Millions):

Years Ending December 31:

2010 §8
2011 through 2014 20
2015 and thereafter 2
Total $30

As of December 31, 2008, ACG has commitments with major aircraft manufacturers to purchase aircraft at an estimated defivery
price of $6,370 million with defivery from 2010 through 2017. Such purchase commitments may be funded:

up fo $635 million in tess than one year,

an additional $2,325 million in one to three years,

an additional $2,116 million in three to five years, and
an additional $1,021 million thereafter.

As of December 31, 2009, deposits related to these agreements iotaled $273 miltion and are inciuded in other assets.

In connection with an acquisttion in 2005, ACG assumed residual value support agreements with expiration dates ranging from
2011 fo 2015. The gross remaining residual value exposure under these agreements was $99 million as of December 31, 2009
and 2008. As of December 31, 2008, the Company has estimated that it has no measurable liabiity under the remaining residual
value guarantee agreements.
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In connection with the reinsurance of NLGR benefits from Pacific Life fo PAR Bermuda and PAR Vermont (Note 16}, PAR Bermuda
and PAR Vermont entered into a three year fetter of credit agreement with a group of banks in Agril 2009. This agresment allows
for the issuance of lefters of credit with an expiration date of March 2012 to PAR Bermuda and PAR Vermont for up to a combined
total amount of $650 million. As of December 31, 2009, a $340 million letter of credit had been issued from this facility for PAR
Bermuda. In addition, & letter of credit issued for PAR Vermont totaled $52 mitlion as of December 31, 2009. Pacific LifeCorp
guarantees the obligations of PAR Bermuda and PAR Vermont under the letter of credit agreement,

CONTINGENCIES - LITIGATION

Duzing the year ended December 31, 2007, Pacific Life settled a national class action lawsuit, Cooper v. Pacific Life, for a
combination of cash distributions and contract credits to owners of qualified annuity contracts who purchased their contracts
between August 19, 1998, and April 30, 2002, or paid premium payments during that time period. Pacific Life strongly disagreed
with the claims in the lawsuit. The settlement is not considered an admission or concession with respect to any claims made in the
lawsuit and did not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position. Initial distributions were made
to eligible class mambers in the first quarter of 2008 with subsequent annual distributions for four years thereafter.

The Company is a respondent in a number of other legal proceedings, some of which involve allegations for extra-contractual
damages. Although the Company is confident of its position in these matters, success is not a certainty and it is possible thatin
any case a judge or jury could rule against the Company. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such proceedings is not
likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position. The Company believes adequate
provision has been made in its consolidated financial statements for alf probable and estimable losses for liigation claims against
the Company.

CONTINGENCIES - IRS REVENUE RULING

On August 16, 2007, the IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2007-54, which provided the IRS' interpretation of tax law regarding the
computation of the DRD. On September 25, 2007, the IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2007-61, which suspended Revenue Rufing
2007-54 and indicated the IRS would address the proper interpretation of tax law in a regulation project that is on the IRS' priority
guidance pfan. Aithough no guidance has been issued, if the IRS ultimately adopts the interpretation contained in Revenue Ruing
2007-54, the Company could lose a substantial amount of DRD tax benefits, which could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's consolidated financia! statements.

CONTINGENCIES - OTHER

In connection with the sale of certain broker-dealer subsidiaries (Note 6}, cerfain indemnifications triggered by breaches of
representations, warranties or covenants were provided by the Company. Also, included in the indemnifications is indemnification
for certain third-party claims arising from the normal operation of these broker-dealers prior fo the clesing and within the nine month
period following the sale. The Company believes adequate provisfon has been made in its consolidated financial statements for all
probable and estimable losses for litigation ¢laims against the Company.

in the course of its business, the Company provides certain indemnifications related to other dispositions, acquisitions, investments,
igase agreements or other transactions that are triggered by, among other things, breaches of representations, warranties ot
covenants provided by the Company. These obligations are typically subject fo time limitations that vary in duration, including
contractual limitations and those that arise by operation of law, such as applicable statutes of limitation. Because the amounts of
these types of indemnifications often are not explicitly stated, the overall maximum amount of the obligation under such
indemnifications cannot be reasonably estimated. The Company has not historically made material payments for these types of
indemnifications. The estimated maximum potential amount of future payments under these obligations is not determinable due to
the fack of a stated maximum Hability for cerfain matters, and therefore, no related liability has been recorded. Management
believes that judgments, if any, against the Company retated o such matters are not likely fo have a material adverse effect on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Most of the jurisdictions in which the Company is admitted to fransact business require life insurance companies to participate In
guaranty associations, which are organized to pay contractual benefits owed pursuant fo insurance policies issued by insolvent life
insurance companies. These associations levy assessments, up to prescribed limits, on all member companies in a particular state
based on the proportionate share of premiums written by member companies in the lines of business in which the insclvent insurer
operated. The Company has not received nofification of any insolvency that is expected to result in a material guaranty fund
assessment,
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In relation to the ACG Trust It securitization (Note 4), Pacific Life is contingently obligated to purchase certain notes from ACG Trust
il to cover shortfalis in amounts due fo the holders of the notes, up to certain levels as specified under the related agresments. As
of December 31, 2009, the maximum potential amount of this future investment commitrent was $100 million.

The Asset Purchase Agreements of Aviation Trust, ACG Trust [l and ACG Trust I {Note 4) provide that Pacific LifeCorp will
guarantee the performance of certain obligations of ACG, as well as provide certain indemnifications, and that Pacific Life will
assume certain obligations of ACG arising from the breach of certain representations and warranties under the Asset Purchase
Agreements. Management befieves that obtigations, if any, related to these guarantees are not likely to have a material adverse
effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. The financial debi obligations of Aviation Trust, ACG Trust il and ACG
Trust Il are non-recourse to the Company and are not guaranteed by the Company.

In connection with the operations of certain subsidiaries, Pacific Life has made commitments to provide for additional capital
funding as may be required.

See Note 10 for discussion of contingencies related to derivative instruments.

See Note 18 for discussion of other confingencies related to income taxes.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaiuated events subseguent to December 31, 2008 and through March 4, 2010, the date the consolidated
financiai statements were avafiable to be issued. The Company has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
presentation in these consolidated financial statements.

As of January 1, 2010, the Board of Directors of Pagific LifeCorp and Pacific Life authorized a cash capital contribution fo ACG in
the amount of $350 milion, which couid be made up to March 31, 2010.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Investment Management segment's producis were moved info other segments of the Company.
Structured sefflement and group retirement annuities were moved to the Annuities & Mutuai Fund segment and the other
institutional investment products became part of the Corporate and Cther segment,

F-74



